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http://www.sainikfinance.com/2021-22/29th%20AnnuaJ %20Report%20202 0-21 %20-F inal. pdf 

Fwther in terms of the provisions of Regulations 33(3)(d) and 34(2)(a)of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended vide notification dated 25th May 2016 read 
with SEBI's Circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD/56/2016 dated 2ih May, 2016, we hereby declare that the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company, Mis Nagar Goel & Chawla, Chartered Accountants, (ICAI Firm 
Registration No. 009933N) have issued Audit Report with unmodified opinion on the Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. 

Kindly take the same in your record. 

Thanking You, 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

29
th

 

 
Annual Report 

 

 

2020 -2021 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LTD. 

CIN: L26912DL1991PLC045449 

Registered Office : 

129, Transport Centre,  Rohtak Road, Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110035. 

Corporate Office : 

7
th

 Floor, Office Tower, Ambience Mall, NH-48, Gurugram, Haryana-122002  
 

E-mail : legal.secretarial@sainikmining.com   Website: www.sainikfinance.com  
Tel: 0124-2719000 Fax: 0124-2719100 

 
 
 
 

mailto:legal.secretarial@sainikmining.com
http://www.sainikfinance.com/


 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS    : DIN  
Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu    : 00006999 
Mr. Kuldeep Singh Solanki    : 00009212 
Mr. Samai Singh     : 00235036 
Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal     : 06963293 
Mr. Sarvesh Sindhu     : 06545787 
Mr. Ramesh Shah     : 00029864 
 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) 
Mr. Akash Shrivastava    : Chief Executive Officer 
Mr. Jagdish Chandra      : Chief Financial Officer 
Mrs. Renu      : Company Secretary 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Mr. Samai Singh  
Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu 
Mr. Ramesh Shah 
Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
Mr. Samai Singh 
Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu 
Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal  
 
STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
Mr. Samai Singh 
Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu 
Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 
Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu 
Mr. Kuldeep Singh Solanki  
Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal  
 
STATUTORY AUDITORS 
M/s. Nagar Goel & Chawla  
Chartered Accountants, 
New Delhi 
 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 
M/s S.S. Bhati & Associates  
Company Secretaries, 
Nioda (UP) 
 
INTERNAL AUDITORS 
M/s. Kumra Bhatia & Co.  
Chartered Accountants, 
New Delhi 
 
REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER 
AGENT (RTA) 
Indus Portfolio Private Limited 
 
SHARES LISTED AT 
BSE Limited  
 

CONTENTS 
 

Particulars                                   Page No. 
 
Notice                                                    3 
 
Directors’ Report                                 15 
 
Auditors Report                                   58 
 
Balance Sheet                                      66            
 
Profit & Loss Statement                      67              
 
Cash Flow Statement                           68 
 
Notes                                                    70 

2



SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L26912DL1991PLC045449 

 
NOTICE 

 
Notice is hereby given that the 29th Annual General Meeting of the Members of M/s Sainik Finance & Industries 
Limited will be held on Thursday, the 30th day of September, 2021 through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio 
Visual Means (“OAVM”) at 11:15 a.m. to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS:  
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 

on 31st March, 2021 including the audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, a Profit and Loss Account and Cash 
Flow Statements for the financial year ended on that date together with the reports of the Board of the Directors and 
Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kuldeep Singh Solanki (DIN 00009212), who retires by rotation and, being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:  
 
3. Appointment of Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal (DIN 06963293) as an Independent Director of the Company and in this 

regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
  
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to 
the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal (DIN: 06963293), who is appointed 
as an additional director in category of Independent Director of the Company by the Board of Directors at its meeting 
held on 12th November, 2020 and who holds office pursuant to the provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act, 
2013 upto the date of this Annual General Meeting or last date of Annual General Meeting for the financial year 
ended 2020-21 should have been held, whichever is earlier and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the 
criteria for independence as provided in the Act and Listing Regulations, be and is hereby appointed as an Non-
Executive Independent Director of the Company to hold office as such for a term of five consecutive years i.e. upto 
11th November, 2025 and the period of her office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.” 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such 
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

4. Approval for the matter relating to entering into related party transactions with TRN Energy Private Limited and to 
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time (herein referred to as 
“the Listing Regulations”) and pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”):, if 
and to the extent applicable and other applicable provisions of the Act read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)), the consent of the 
members / shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (herein referred to as 
“the Board” which term shall include any Committee thereof) for approval of the material related party transaction 
entered or to be entered by the Company with TRN Energy  Private Limited (TRN), a related party as defined in 
Section 2(76) of the Act with regard to receive back an inter-corporate loans and advances (including interest) 
amounting to Rs.84.08.Crores (Rupees Eighty Four Crore Eight Lakh only) outstanding  to TRN as on 31st March, 
2021 alongwith interest due thereon till date of repayment, in one or more trenches, on the  terms and conditions as 
stipulated in ICD Agreement dated 27.09.2017 as amended by the  Board from time to time and on such terms are 
briefly mentioned in the explanatory statement to this resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTEHR THAT the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby also accorded to the 
Board or committee thereof for approving / ratifying ICD Agreement dated 27.09.2017 including amendment thereof 
entered into with TRN for providing or given inter-corporate loans and advances, not exceeding to Rs.100 Crores 
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(Rupees One Hundred Crore Only) from time to time which are in ordinary course of business and are on an arm’s 
length basis and to do all acts, deeds and things which was done or to be done and documents executed or to be 
executed in connection with such related party transaction.  

RESOLVED FURTEHR THAT Sh. Rudra Sen Sindhu, Sh. Sarvesh Sindhu and Sh. Kuldeep Singh Solanki, 
Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to execute the fresh ICD agreement or addendum to 
the existing agreement or any other papers or documents in connection therewith and to do such other acts, things, 
deeds as may be deemed essential and incidental for the purpose, on behalf of the Company. 
 
 
 By Order of the Board 
 
 
 
 
Dated: 13th August, 2021             
Place: New Delhi  

For Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 
 
 

Rudra Sen Sindhu 
Director 

DIN: 00006999 
 

Notes: 
 
1. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) setting out material facts 

concerning the special business under Item Nos. 3 to 4 of the accompanying Notice, is annexed hereto. The Board of 
Directors of the Company on 13th August, 2021 considered that the special business under item Nos. 3 to 4, being 
considered unavoidable, be transacted at the 29th AGM of the Company. 
 

2. In view of the massive outbreak and continuing Covid-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and 
pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated 
January 13, 2021 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and Circular No. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD1/ CIR/ P/ 
2020 /79 dated 12th May 2020 and followed by SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD2/ CIR/ P/ 2021 /11 dated 15th January, 2021 
permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence 
of the Members at a common venue. The physical attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and 
general meeting may be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, 
Members can attend and participate in the ensuing 29th AGM through VC/OAVM. 
 

3. The deemed venue for the 29thAGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 
 

4. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Director seeking 
appointment / re-appointment at this AGM is annexed. 
 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy 
to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being 
held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. 
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the 
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 
 

6. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative 
to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said 
Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to 
r.gulati64@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
7. The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Saturday 25th September, 2021 

to Thursday, 30th September, 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of holding Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. 
 

8. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only 
in dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or 
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transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of 
portfolio management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings 
to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agent, Indus 
Portfolio Private Limited (“IPPL”), having its corporate office at G-65, Bali Nagar, Delhi -110015 Ph. No. 011-
47671214 for assistance in this regard.  
 

9. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to register 
the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with IPPL in case the shares are 
held by them in physical form.  
 

10. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, telephone/ 
mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such 
as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the 
shares are held by them in electronic form and to IPPL in case the shares are held by them in physical form.  
 

11. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for the Members in 
respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register 
the same by submitting Form No.SH-13. The said form can be downloaded from the Company’s website 
www.sainikfinance.com. Members are requested to submit the said details to their DP in case the shares are held by 
them in electronic form and to IPPL in case the shares are held in physical form. 
 

12. SEBI has mandated submission of PAN and Bank Details by every participant in securities market. Members holding 
shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their respective depository participants with 
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN 
details to IPPL. 
 

13. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM are requested to 
write to the Company on or before 29th September, 2021 through email on legalsecretarial@sainikmining.com. The 
same will be replied by the Company suitably. 
 

14. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are requested to send to 
the Company or IPPL, the details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holdings in 
one folio. A consolidated share certificate will be issued to such Members after making requisite changes. 
 

15. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020 and followed by SEBI/ HO/ 
CFD/ CMD2/ CIR/ P/ 2021 /11 dated 15th January, 2021 , Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2020-21 
is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the 
Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2020-21 will also be available on the 
Company’s website www.sainikfiinance.com,, on websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com  
 

16. Notice of AGM shall be send electronically to the members/ shareholders whose name are appeared on Friday 27th 
August, 2021 in the records of Depository and Register of Members maintained by RTA and whose email addresses 
are registered with the Company / Depositories / RTA  
 

17. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 
Section 103 of the Act. 
 

18. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register 
of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 
 

19. At the 25th AGM held on 28th September, 2017, the members approved appointment of M/s Nagar Goel & Chawla, 
Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (bearing ICAI Registration No.009933N) as Statutory Auditors to hold office for 
a period of five years from the conclusion of that AGM till the conclusion of the 30th AGM to be held for the 
financial year ending on 31st March 2022, subject to ratification of their appointment by Members at every AGM, if 
so required under the Act. The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for ratification by 
Members at every AGM has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 7, 
2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the 29th 
AGM. 

5

mailto:legalsecretarial@sainikmining.com
http://www.sainikfiinance.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L26912DL1991PLC045449 

 
 

20. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.  
 

21. In terms of Section 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Rules made thereunder, the copy 
of the Annual Report including Financial Statements, Board’s report etc. and this Notice are being sent by electronic 
mode, to those members who have registered their email ID’s with their respective depository participants or with the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company, unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the 
same. In case you wish to get a physical copy of the Annual Report, you may send your request to 
rs.kushwah@indusinvest.com or legal.secretarial@sainikmining.com mentioning your Folio/DP ID & Client ID. 

 
22. Instructions for e-voting and joining the AGM are as follows:  

 
A. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS  

 
i. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-voting 
services provided by NSDL, on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. The instructions for e-voting are given 
herein below.  

 
ii. The remote e-voting period commences on Sunday, 26th September, 2021 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on Wednesday 

29th September, 2021 (5:00 p.m. IST). During this period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on Friday, 24th September, 2021 i.e. cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. The e-
voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Those Members, who will be present in the AGM 
through VC / OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on the resolutions through remote e-voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the AGM. 

 
iii. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the 

Company as on cut-off date i.e. Friday, 24th September, 2021. 
 
iv. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Rajesh Gulati, Practicing Chartered Accountant (Membership No. 

089046), Proprietor of SMR & Associates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi, as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the 
voting process during the AGM and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.  

 
v. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend / participate in the 

AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.  
 
vi. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the 

Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Friday, 24th September, 2021, may obtain the login ID and 
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.  However, if he/she is already registered with NSDL for 
remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID and password for casting the vote.  

 
vii. The details of the process and manner for remote e-voting are explained herein below:  
 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 issued on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their 
demat accounts in order to access e-voting facility. Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode is given below: 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL. 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/ either on 
a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on 
the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under “IDeAS” section. A. 
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 

6

mailto:rs.kushwah@indusinvest.com
mailto:legal.secretarial@sainikmining.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://eservices.nsdl.com/


SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L26912DL1991PLC045449 

 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on options available 
against company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be re-directed to 
NSDL e-Voting website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at  https:// 
eservices.nsdl.com/ SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  
 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a personal computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID 
(i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on options 
available against company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user Id and 
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https:// web.cdslindia.com/ 
myeasi/home/ login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be .also able to see the E Voting Menu. 
The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast 
your vote. 

3. .If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https: // 
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/ Registration/ EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP 
i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  Once login, you will be able to see 
e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
options available against company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free 
no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43 
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B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and 
shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on  e-Voting 
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** 
then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your 
user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 
company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user 
ID is 101456001*** 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote. 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which 

was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf 
file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial 
password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 
 
a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 

CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
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c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your 
registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting 
system of NSDL 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 
1) After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 

and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status 
2) Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting 

your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed 
under “Join General Meeting 

3) Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens 
4) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 

you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 
5) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed  
6) You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page 
7) Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 
 
1) Institutional / Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc., with attested specimen signature of the 
duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by email to r.gulati64@gmail.com with a 
copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in  
 

2) It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset Password?” option available on https://www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

 
3) In case of any queries relating to e-voting you may refer to the FAQs for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for 

Shareholders available at the download section of https://www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-
990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. In case of any grievances connected with facility for e-voting, please 
contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL, 4th Floor, ‘A’ Wing, Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati 
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013. Email: evoting@nsdl.co.in /pallavid@nsdl.co.in, Tel: 91 22 2499 4545/ 
1800-222-990. 

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

Physical 
Holding 

Send a request to the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, IPPL at 
rs.kushwah@indusinvest.com mentioning Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self- attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self- attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) for registering email address, and scanned copy of the cancelled cheque 
bearing the name of the first shareholder shall be provided to  update the Bank Account details of the 
Shareholders. 

Demat 
Holding 

Please contact your Depository Participant (DP) and register your email address and bank account 
details in your demat account by providing DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) or any other 
documents as advised by your DP. If Shareholder is an Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode, you may refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting 
and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.. 

Alternatively  The shareholder / members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting. 

 
2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC / OAVM facility and have not 

casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 
 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the 
day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
 

5. Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM or view the live webcast of AGM provided by NSDL 
at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com by using their remote e-voting login credentials and selecting the EVEN for 
Company’s AGM. Members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID 
and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-voting instructions mentioned in the Notice. Further 
Members can also use the OTP based login for logging into the e-voting system of NSDL.  

 
6. Members may note that the VC/OAVM Facility, provided by NSDL, allows participation of atleast 1,000 Members 

on a first-come-first-served basis. The large shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
promoters, institutional investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, etc. can attend the 29th 
AGM without any restriction on account of first-come- first-served principle. 

 
7. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact NSDL on evoting@nsdl.co.in/ 1800-222-990 

or contact Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior Manager – NSDL at amitv@nsdl.co.in/ 022-24994360/ +91 9920264780 or Mr. 
Sagar Ghosalkar, Assistant Manager- NSDL at sagar.ghosalkar@nsdl.co.in/ 022-24994553/ +91 932678146 

 
8. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a 

speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID / 
folio number, PAN, mobile number at legal.secretarial@sainikmining.com from 27th September, 2021 (9:00 a.m. 
IST) to 28th September, 2021 (5:00 p.m. IST). Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only 
be allowed to express their views / ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the 
number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.  
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 
1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. 

Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After 
successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against 
company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for 
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please 
note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and 
Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last 
minute rush. 

 
2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 
3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 

during the meeting. 
 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 

Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
5. Shareholders who would like to express their views / have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning 

their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at legal.secretarial@sainikmining.com. The 
same will be replied by the company suitably. 
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OTHER INSTRUCTIONS AND RESULTS DECLARATION: 

 
1) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the 

AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of 
the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a 
person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.  
 

2) The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 
www.sainikfinance.com and on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately. The Company 
shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed. 

 By Order of the Board of Directors 
For SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 

 

 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Dated:13th August 2021 

 Rudra Sen Sindhu 
Director 

DIN: 00006999  

 

  

11

http://www.sainikfinance.com/


SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L26912DL1991PLC045449 

 
Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) 
The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the Notice: 
 
Item No. 3 

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 12th November, 2020 had appointed Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal 
(DIN 06963293) as an additional director (Independent Director) of the Company who holds office pursuant to the 
provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 upto the date of this Annual General Meeting or last date of Annual 
General Meeting for the financial year ended 2020-21 should have been held, whichever is earlier. She fulfils all criteria 
of Listing Regulations as well as the provisions of section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013 for appointment as Independent 
Director of the Company. She has also given declaration that she fulfils and complies with all the conditions specified in 
the Section 149(6) and Schedule IV of Companies Act, 2013 making her eligible to be appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company at ensuing Annual General Meeting.  
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board of Directors on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation, has recommended appointment of Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal as an Independent Director of the Company.  
 
The Board, based on the performance evaluation and as per the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, considers that, given her background and experience, Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal would be beneficial to the 
Company and it is desirable to appoint her as an Independent Director. Accordingly, it is proposed to appoint Mrs. Nishi 
Sabharwal as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of 5(Five) consecutive 
years upto 11th November, 2025, on the Board of the Company.  
 
Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal is not disqualified from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act’), and has given her consent to act as a director. 
 
The Company has also received declaration from Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal that she meets the criteria of independence as 
prescribed both under Section 149(6) and Schedule IV of the Act and under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). 
 
Copy of draft letter of appointment of Mrs. Nish Sabharwal setting out the terms and conditions of appointment is 
available for inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company.  
 
None of the other Director/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives is in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 
 
The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the members.  
 
Items No. 4:  
 
The Company is Non-Banking Finance Company registered with Reserve Bank of India and engaged in investment and 
finance business, providing / availing Inter-Corporate loan and advance in normal course of business. The Company 
entered or to be entered with related transactions to provide or to take intercorporate loan or advances and also to provide 
/ to avail services to / from related parties from time to time. At the starting of every financial year, the Audit Committee, 
at its meeting gives omnibus approval for such related parties transactions entered or to be entered during the financial 
year which are in ordinary course of business and are on an arm’s length basis and are with the limit prescribed under the 
Act or rules & regulations. 
 
The members of the Company are requested to note that pursuant to provisions of  Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“Act”) read with the relevant Rules made there under and pursuant to provisions of Regulation 23 of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Regulations”) 
as amended from time to time, any transactions with related party having monetary value exceeding of 10% of turnover of 
the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the Company would be considered a Material Related Party 
Transactions. All Material Related Party Transactions will require approval of the members through an ordinary 
resolution. 
 
The Company being a NBFC Company has provided / given inter-corporate loan and advances (ICD) to TRN Energy 
Private Limited (TRN) from time to time, pursuant to ICD Agreement dated 27th September 2017 entered into with TRN 
when it was non-related party. Such ICD given to TRN are in ordinary course of business and are on an arm’s length 
basis. With effect from 31st March, 2021, TRN has become related party as defined under section 2(76) of the Companies 
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Act, 2013 (“Act”) because of Sh. Rudra Sen Sindhu, Director of the Company has been appointed as Director of TRN 
with effect from that date. As on 31st March, 2021, total outstanding amount of ICD given to TRN (including interest due 
thereon) was Rs.84,08,00,000/-(Rupees Eighty Four Crores Eight Lakhs Only)  

TRN has become related party in terms of the provisions section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 because of Sh. Rudra 
Sen Sindhu, Director of the Company has been appointed as Director of TRN Energy Private Limited w.e.f. 31st March, 
2021. As the Company has to receive back such ICD from TRN, hence such transaction become related party 
transactions. Consequently, the Company has to obtain approval of shareholders of the Company to approve such related 
party transactions pertaining to receiving back ICD which was given to TRN from time to time and/ or to enter other 
related party transactions with TRN, if required.  

It is necessary to mention here that no transaction was made with TRN since 31st March, 2021 till date. The Company 
now intends to seek the approval of shareholders of the Company for approving and ratifying such related party 
transactions pertaining to receiving back ICD which was given to TRN and to modify terms and conditions as stipulated 
in ICD Agreement dated 27.09.2017 (as amended from time to time) with respect to receive back /recover amount of ICD 
outstanding to TRN as on 31st March, 2021 including interest due thereon till date of actual repayment in one or more 
tranches. 

Even though the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder regarding related party 
transactions do not attract to the above transaction of  providing or taking inter-corporate loans to or from related 
party(ies) because the Company is NBFC and this transaction is in ordinary course of business and is on an arm’s length 
basis. However, this transaction may become a material related party transaction pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 
23 of SEBI Regulations. i.e. monetary value of inter- corporate loans & advances is more than 10% of turnover of the 
Company. Therefore, the approval of the shareholders/ the members is being sought by way of passing an ordinary 
resolution in compliance of Regulation 23 of SEBI Regulations to enter into such related party transactions. 
 
The Audit Committee and Board of Directors in their meeting held on 13th August, 2021 have reviewed and approved 
major terms & conditions of this transaction and recommended to the members/ shareholders for their approval by way of 
an ordinary resolution. The other related information as envisaged under provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rule and SEBI Regulations are furnished 
hereunder: 

Name of Related Party TRN Energy Private Limited (TRN) 
Name of the Director / 
KMP who is related and 
nature of relationship 

Sh. Rudra Sen Sindhu, Director and Promoter of the Company, is also director of TRN. 

Nature, material terms, 
monetary value and 
particulars of the contract 
or arrangement 

The Company has entered ICD Agreement on 27.09.2017 with TRN when it was non-
related party for granting Inter Corporate Loan and Deposit upto an amount of Rs.100 
Crore (Rupees Hundred Crore Only) at rate of interest of 15% P.A., which was reduced 
to 10% per annum with effect from 01.04.2020. Such ICD is repayable on demand. As 
on 31st March’ 2021, total outstanding dues on account of such ICD given to TRN was 
Rs.84.08 Crore (Rupees (Rupees Eighty Four Crore Eight Lakh only) including interest 
due thereon till 31st March, 2021.  
 
TRN has now become related party because of Sh. Rudra Sen Sindhu, Director and 
Promoter of the Company has been appointed as Director of TRN w.e.f. 31st March, 
2021. 
 
Consequently, the Company now intends to seek approval of the members / shareholders 
of the Company to approve and ratify such related party transactions pertaining to 
receiving back ICD given to TRN and to modify terms & conditions as stipulated in ICD 
Agreement dated 27.09.20217 (as amended from time to time) with respect to receive 
back /recover ICD amount of Rs.84.08 Crore (Rupees Eighty Four Crore Eight Lakh 
only) outstanding to TRN as on 31st March, 2021 including interest due thereon till date 
of actual repayment in one or more tranches. 

Any other information 
relevant or important for 
the members to take a 
decision on the proposed 
resolution 

Such ICD is repayable on demand and are in ordinary course of business and are on an 
arm’s length basis. 
.  
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Sh. Rudra Sen Sindhu and his relative- Sh. Sarvesh Sindhu, Directors and their relative will not participate in above said 
business to be transacted at AGM through e-voting process or otherwise as they are interested in the resolution. 
 
None of the Director or Key managerial personal of the Company and their relatives, other than Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu 
and Sh. Sarvesh Sindhu, Directors and their relatives, are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this 
Resolution. 
 
The Board accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No.4 of the accompanying Notice for 
approval of the Members. 
 
Annexure to Item No. 2 &3 of Notice of AGM 
Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (in pursuance 
of regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
Brief Profile of Director being appointed/re-appointed:  
Name Mr. Kuldeep Singh Solanki Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal  
DIN 00009212 06963293 
Age 65 years 61 years 
Date of Appointment 27/03/1997 12/11/2020 
Qualification He is ex-army person and has bachelor's 

degree in arts. 
She is ex-banker and has master degree in 
Economics. 

Expertise in specific 
functional area 

After his Bachelor’s degree he joined the 
Indian army. After serving the army for a 
period of five years he joined Sainik 
Transporters Private Limited in 1982. At 
present he is also interested as the 
director of several companies engaged in 
the business of coal mining, coal 
washing and related industries. He has 
approximately 36 years of experience in 
the coal sector, power & finance sector. 
Apart from the Company. 

In a career spanning 30 years, she has held 
numerous senior positions across various 
business segments and also worked with a 
multinational bank for 12 years across 
various business segments and large Indian 
Private banks for 3 years. She has 
specialization in Client Experience 
Management, Relationship Banking, Wealth 
Management, Investment Advisory, Private 
Banking, Business Banking, International 
Trade Services, Branch Banking, Team 
Building Management, Business 
Development, Channel Management. She has 
rich experience and in depth knowledge in 
field of Banking, Accounts and finance etc. 

Directorships held in other 
companies  (except foreign 
companies) 
 
 

- Maneesha Finlease Limited 
- Global Opticals Private Limited 
- ACB (India) Limited 
- Aryan Clean Environment 

Technologies Private Limited 
- Global Coal And Mining Private 

Limited 
- Sainik Potash Private Limited 
- ACB (India) Power Limited 
- Thriveni Sainik Mining Private  

Limited 
- Thriveni Sainik PBNW Private 

Limited 

- Shyam Telecom Limited  
- Globus Power Generation Limited  
- Aryan Energy Private Limited  
- Spectrum Power Generation Ltd  
- Giser Consultants Private Limited  
- Sainik Mining And Allied Services 

Limited  
- Aryan Chhattisgarh Power Generation 

Private Limited 

Memberships / 
Chairmanships of 
committees of other Public 
companies (includes Audit 
& Stakeholders Committee) 

He is neither a Chairman nor a member 
of Audit Committee and Stakeholder 
Committee of any Company wherein he 
is director. 

She holds the Chairmanship in 1 (One) Audit 
Committee and membership of 6 (Six) Audit 
Committee and 3 (Three) Stakeholders 
Committee of the Companies wherein she is 
director.  

Shareholding in the 
Company 

2503982 Equity Shares Nil 

Relationship with any 
Director(s) of the Company 

He is not related to any Director or Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company 

She is not related to Company or any director 
or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The Members, 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
  
Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 29th Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2021. 
 
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS   

 (Amount in Rupees Lakhs) 
Particulars For the financial year 

2020-21 
For the financial year 

2019-20 
Total Revenue  2,482.52 3,409.29 
Profit before finance costs, depreciation, and tax  1,527.44 3,095.07 
Finance Costs 1,683.94 2,467.32 
Profit before depreciation and tax  (156.50) 627.75 
Depreciation for the financial year  0.34 0.71 
Profit /(Loss) before  tax  (156.84) 627.04 
Direct Taxes ( current and deferred taxes) (61.32) 220.78 
Profit / (Loss) after Tax (95.52) 406.26 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) 1.97 (7.23) 
Total Comprehensive income (Loss) for the year (93.55) 399.03 
Transfer to Reserve Fund   NIL 81.25 

 
2. COVID-19- A GLOBAL “PANDEMIC” 

 
The World Health Organization (WHO) on March 11, 2020 declared the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) as a global 
“pandemic”. The declaration from WHO came at a time when COVID-19 cases rapidly increased across the world. The 
spread of virus has triggered panic across the world and financial markets. Like some of the other countries in the World, 
the virus’ impact led the Hon’ble Prime Minister of India, Shri Narendra Modi to announce a lockdown across the country 
from March 25, 2020 to restrict it from spreading further and to break the cycle of infection. As a result, the Country’s 
economic activities came to a standstill. During the year 2020-21, the second wave of Covid -2019 has also affected world 
economy. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s impairment loss/allowance on assets 
and future results will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and the Company will continue to 
closely monitor the same. The appropriate measures were taken by the Company to mitigate the risk of COVID-19 to its 
business operations. 

 
3. APPLICABILITY OF INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (‘IND AS’) AND  PREPARATION OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as per the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the 
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) as applicable to a Non-Banking Finance Company (‘NBFC’). The 
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except in 
case of significant uncertainties. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent 
with those used in the previous year. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees. 

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had prepared its financial statements in 
accordance with accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the 
NBFC Master Directions (hereinafter referred as ‘Previous GAAP’). These financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2020 was the first, the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The Company has applied Ind AS 101. 
The Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 has been prepared in accordance 
with the provisions of Ind AS. 
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4. TRANSFERS TO RESERVES AND PROVISIONS  
 
Except as mentioned below, no amount was proposed to transfer to any reserve by the Company during the year under 
review. 
 
During the year under review, the Company did not require to transfer any amount to Special Reserve Funds in order to 
comply with the provisions of Section 45IA read with section 45IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as the 
Company incurred net losses of Rs.93.55 lakhs during the year under review. However, the Company has transferred an 
amount of Rs.81.25 Lakhs (Rupees Eighty One Lakhs and Twenty Five Thousands only) to Special Reserve Funds in order 
to comply with the provisions of Section 45IA read with section 45IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 during the 
previous year. 
 
As on 31st March, 2021, the Company has made the provision of Rs.272.38 Lakhs (Rupees Two Crore Seventy Two Lakh 
Thirty Eight Thousand Only) for Sub Standard Assets and Rs.764.02 Lakhs (Rupees Seven Crore Sixty Four Lakh Two 
Thousand Only) for Standard Assets in order to comply with the guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India. 
 
5. OPERATIONS  OF THE COMPANY 
 
During the year under review, the Company was engaged in carrying on the business as Non- Banking Financial Company 
without accepting public deposits for which the Certificate of Registration has been obtained from the Department of Non- 
Banking Supervision, Reserve Bank of India, New Delhi. Your directors also intend to diversify its operation into another 
area / business in order to make the Company more profitable. 
 
6. PERFORMANCE REVIEW 
 
During the year under review, the Company’s total income has decreased to Rs.2,482,52 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 
3,409.29 Lakhs in the previous year and the Company incurred losses before tax of Rs.156.84 Lakhs as compared to the 
profit of Rs. 627.04 Lakhs in the previous year. 
 
7. NON-PERFORMING ASSETS OF THE COMPANY  

 
Your Company is in adherence to the provisions of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) with respect to computation of 
Stage-3 Assets Non- performing assets (NPA). Your Company’s assets have been classified based on expected 
performance. Exposure at Default (EAD) is the total amount outstanding including accrued interest as on the reporting 
date. Further in compliance with Ind AS accounting framework, Interest earned on NPA’s is recognized net of expected 
losses, if the present realisable value of the security is greater than the outstanding loan dues. 
 
During the year under review, using a pro-active collection and recovery management system supported by analytical 
decision making, your Company was able to contain its gross NPAs at Rs.272.38 lakhs as compared to Rs.69.37 Lakhs in 
previous financial year. Your Company reviews the delinquency and loan portfolio on regular basis. Further, the 
information on the Business overview and outlook and state of affairs of your Company have been discussed in detail in 
the MDA which forms part of this Annual Report. 
 
8. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY  
 
The Authorised share capital of the Company is Rs.1100.00 Lakhs divided into 11000000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital of the Company is Rs.1088.00 Lakhs divided into 10880000 Equity Shares of 
Rs.10/- each fully paid up. 
 
Out of the above 9412306 Equity Shares being 86.51% of the Company’s paid up equity shares capital are in 
dematerialized form as on 31st March, 2021 and balance 1467694 Equity Shares being 13.49% of the Company’s paid up 
equity shares capital are in physical form. The Company request all the shareholders who hold equity shares in physical 
form to get their equity shares dematerialised with their depository at earliest. Our Registrar & Transfer Agent is M/s Indus 
Portfolio Private Limited, having their communication office at G-65, Bali Nagar, New Delhi-110015. 
 
9. PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND  

 
Your directors do not recommend any dividend for payment to the shareholders / members of the Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2021. 
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10. DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY  
 
As on date, the Board of the Company comprises of 6 Directors, consisting of three Independent Directors (including one 
Women Director), three Non-Executive Non Independent Directors as on date who bring in a wide range of skills and 
experience to the Board. The Board of Directors of the Company are: 

Name of Director  Designation  DIN 
Sh. Rudra Sen Sindhu Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 00006999 
Sh. Kuldeep Singh Solanki  Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 00009212 
Sh. Sarvesh Sindhu Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 06545787 
Sh. Ramesh Shah Non- Executive Independent Director  00029864 
Sh. Samai Singh Non- Executive Independent Director 00235036 
Smt. Nishi Sabharwal  Non- Executive Independent Director 06963293 

 
In term of the Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, Sh. Kuldeep Singh 
Solanki (DIN-00009212), non- executive director of the Company, retires by rotation at ensuing Annual General Meeting 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your directors recommend his re-appointment as director of the 
Company.  
 
During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company on the basis of recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on 25th June, 2020 appointed Mr. Ramesh Shah as an  additional director in 
capacity of Independent Director and Sh. Sarvesh Sindhu as an additional director in capacity of Non- executive Non- 
Independent Director with effect from 25th June, 2020 whose appointment have  been regularized at the Annual General 
Meeting held on 30th September, 2020.  
 
Subsequent to the Annual General Meeting of the Company held for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, due to her 
personal reasons, Mrs. Renuka Hooda, Independent Director of the Company tendered her resignation from the post of 
Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 12th November, 2020. Further on the recommendation of Nomination and 
Recommendation Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on 12 th November 2020 has 
appointed Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal as an independent director of the Company for a period of 5 years with effect from 12th 
November, 2020 subject to the approval of the members at the General Meeting. Your Board members believes that 
induction of Mr. Ramesh Shah, Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal and Sh. Sarvesh Sindhu on the Board will support in broadening the 
overall expertise of the Board and will bring wide experience particularly in the areas of corporate governance and various 
laws.  
 
As required under regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
information on the particulars of the Directors proposed for appointment/re-appointment has been given in the Notice of 
the Annual General Meeting 
 
Declaration by Independent Directors 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, Mr. Samai Singh, Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal and 
Sh. Ramesh Shah are the independent directors of the Company as on date. They have submitted declaration that each of 
them meets the criteria of independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Act and there has been no change in the 
circumstances which may affect their status as independent director during the year. 
 
During the year under review, non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with 
the Company, other than the sitting fees, commission and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of 
attending meetings of the Company. 
 
Board Evaluation 
 
Your Company is following the most effective way to ensure that Board Members understand their duties and adopt good 
governance practices. In furtherance to this, the Directors of your Company commit to act in good faith to promote the 
objects of the Company for the benefit of its Employees, the Stakeholders including Shareholders, the Community and for 
the protection of environment. Your Company has defined a manner of evaluation as per the provisions of the Act, SEBI 
LODR Regulations for the Evaluation of performance of the Board, Committees of Board & Individual Directors. The 
above manner is based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the SEBI on January 05, 2017 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board carried out the evaluation of every Director’ performance and its own performance as a 
whole, Statutory Board Committees namely Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee and  Stakeholders Relationship Committee and all the Independent Directors without the 
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presence of the Director being evaluated. The Board expressed its satisfaction on performance evaluation. The manner in 
which the evaluation has been carried out has been explained in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 
Remuneration Policy 
 
The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee adopted a “Policy on Nominations 
and Remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Executives, Senior Management and other Employees”, which, inter-alia, 
lays down the criteria for identifying the persons who are qualified to be appointed as Directors and/or Senior Management 
Personnel of the Company, along with the criteria for determination of remuneration of Directors, KMPs, Senior 
Management and other employees and their evaluation and includes other matters, as prescribed under the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Act and SEBI LODR Regulations. The “Policy on Nominations and Remuneration for Directors, Key 
Managerial Executives, Senior Management and Other is available on the Company’s website www.sainikfinance.com. 
The summary of Nomination and Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report. The Remuneration 
paid to the Directors is in line with the Remuneration Policy of the Company. Details of Remuneration paid to all the 
Directors/ KMPs during the Financial Year 2020-21 is more particularly defined in extract of Annual Return in form 
“MGT-9” attached to this report. 
 
Disclosure under section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder  
 
Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as required under Section 197 of the Act and Rule 
5 (1) Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (Rules) is given below:  

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median 
remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial 
year; 

Name of the Director Ratio to the median 
N.A. N.A. 

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief 
Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary 
or Manager, if any, in the financial year; 

Name of 
Director/CS/CFO 

% increase 

Jagdish Chandra, CFO  - 
Akash Shrivastava, CEO  - 
Renu, CS* - 

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year; 

NIL 

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company at 
end of the financial year under review; 

6 

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of 
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in 
the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point 
out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneration; 

NIL  

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration 
policy of the company. 

Yes; the remuneration is as per the remuneration 
policy of the company. 

Mrs. Renu appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f. 25th June, 2020. 
 
None of employees of the Company has received remuneration of Rs.1,02,00,000 per annum and Rs.8,50,000 per month 
during the financial under review. Details of employees remuneration as required under provisions of Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of Rules are available at the registered office of the Company during working 
hours 21 days before the Annual General Meeting and shall be made available to any shareholders on their request in 
written. 
 
Meetings 
 
During the year under review, (5) Board Meetings were convened and held. The details of which are given in the Corporate 
Governance Report. The intervening gap between two board meetings was within the period prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
11. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Act, as on date the key managerial personnel of the Company are Mr. 
Akash Shrivastava, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Jagdish Chandra, Chief Financial Officer and Mrs. Renu, Company 
Secretary of the Company. It is further informed that with effect from 25th June, 2020 Mrs. Renu has been appointed as 
Company Secretary, KMP and Compliance Officer of the Company during the year under review.  
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12. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 
 
As required under regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report is enclosed as a part of this report. 
 
13. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:  
 
The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the provisions of section 134(3)(c) 
read with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the preparation of the Financial Statement for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2021 and state:  
 
i) That in the preparation of Annual Accounts for the financial year ended as at 31st March, 2021, the applicable 

Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to the material departures.  
 
ii) That the Directors have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 
the financial year ended as at 31st March, 2021 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the financial year ended 
on 31st March, 2021.   

 
iii) That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the Assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud or other irregularities. 

 
iv) That the Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a “Going Concern basis”. 
 
v)    The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and 
 
vi)   There is a proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are 

adequate and operating effectively. 
 
Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the 
Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and external consultants, including audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory auditors, and the reviews performed by management and 
the relevant board committees, including the audit committee, the board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal 
financial controls were adequate and effective during financial year 2020-21 
 
14. PUBLIC DEPOSITS  
 
The Company has not invited or accepted any public deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made thereunder and section 45-I(bb) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 during the year under 
review. The Company does not hold any public deposit as on date and will not accept the same in future without the prior 
approval of Reserve Bank of India in writing. 
 
15. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 
The Company, being a non-banking finance company registered with the Reserve Bank of India and engaged in the 
business of giving loans or finance & investment activities, is exempt from complying with the provisions of section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the disclosures of the loans given as required under the aforesaid section have not 
been given in this Report. 
 
16. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has proper and adequate system of internal control geared towards achieving efficiency in its operations, 
safeguarding assets, optimum utilization of resources and compliance with statutory regulations. The Company has an 
Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. Testing of such Internal 
Control measures and systems forms a part of Internal Audit function. The Internal Auditors of the Company conduct 
audits of various departments based on an annual audit plan covering key areas of operations. Internal Audit reviews and 
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, ensuring adherence to operating guidelines and systems and 
recommending improvements for strengthening them. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit 
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function reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors 
reviews the adequacy of internal controls. This has improved the management of the affairs of the Company and 
strengthened transparency and accountability. The Management ensures adherence to all internal control policies and 
procedures as well as compliance with regulatory guidelines. No significant audit observations and recommendations have 
been received from the Internal Auditors of the Company. 
 
17. AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY  
 
a) Statutory Auditors: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
made thereunder and pursuant to the recommendations of the audit committee of the Board of Directors, M/s Nagar Goel & 
Chawla, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (bearing ICAI Registration No.009933N), Statutory Aauditors of the Company 
were appointed by the Members of the Company in their 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 28th 
September, 2017 to hold office as Statutory Auditors from the conclusion of 25th Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held for the financial year ending on 31st March 
2022. 
 
The Members are requested to note that the MCA vide notification dated May 7, 2018, inter-alia, notified an amendment to 
Section 139(1) of the Act whereby the requirement of placing appointment of the statutory auditors for ratification by the 
Members of the Company at every AGM has been omitted. Accordingly, the Board has not proposed any ratification for 
the appointment of Statutory Auditors in the forthcoming AGM. However the Board has noted the confirmation received 
from M/s Nagar Goel & Chawla, Chartered Accountants, to the effect that their appointment is in compliance of Sections 
139 and 141 of the Act and rules made thereunder 
 
b) Statutory Auditors Report: 
 
The Statutory Auditors have not made any adverse comments or given any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or 
disclaimer in their Audit Report on the Financial Statements for Financial Year 2020-21 and the Report is self-explanatory. 
Hence, no explanation is required to be given in Board Report. Further, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any fraud 
in terms of Section 143(12) of the Act 
 
c) Secretarial Auditors: 
 
Pursuant provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company has, at its meeting held on 17th August, 2020, appointed M/s S.S. Bhati 
& Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the 
financial year 2020-21. 
 
 
d) Secretarial Audit Report 
 
The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by the Secretarial Auditor for the financial ended 31st March, 2021 in Form MR-3 
is annexed as an Annexure– A and is forming integral part of this report. Such Secretarial auditors’ report is also self-
explanatory and does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks. 
 
18. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 134(3)(a) AND SECTION 92(3) READ WITH RULE 12(1) OF THE 

COMPANIES ( MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION) RULES 2014 
 
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as Annexure B and is 
forming integral part of this report 
 
19. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT  
 
The Company is committed to good Corporate Governance as the requirement of the Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. As required under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a detailed report on Corporate Governance together with Auditor’s 
Certificate on compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed herewith as Annexure – C and is forming 
integral part of this Report. 
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20. CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY WITH REGARDS TO NON 

DISQALIFICATION OF DIRECOTRS 
 

A certificate from M/s S.S Bhati & Associate, Practicing Company Secretary to the effect that none of the directors on the 
Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of the Company 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Securities and Exchange Board of India or any other statutory authority is attached 
herewith as Annexure – D. The same forms a part of this Report. 
 
21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The main business of the Company is financing & investment in securities etc. and granting loans to related or unrelated 
parties. All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and 
were in the ordinary course of business. All related party transactions are placed before the Audit committee for their 
consideration and approval. None of the transactions with related parties falls under the scope of section 188(1) of the Act. 
However, the related party transactions so entered are disclosed in note No.36 to Financial Statement of the Company as 
attached herewith. Further details of all related party transactions including material related party transaction are also given 
in AOC-2 attached herewith as Annexure – E and is forming integral part of this Report. The Policy relating to related 
party transactions duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company has been placed on the Company’s website 
www.sainikfinance.com 
 
22. CODE OF CONDUCT: 
 
The Board of directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the members of the Board and all 
employees in the course of day to day business operations of the Company. The Code has been placed on the Company’s 
website www.sainikfinance.com. The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be 
followed by the Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to 
integrity in the work place, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. All the Board Members and the Senior 
Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. 
 
23. MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder and 
pursuant to the provision of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, the Company has established a 
Vigil Mechanism to be known as the ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ for its Directors and Employees, to report instances of 
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The aim of the policy is to 
provide adequate safeguards against victimization of Whistle Blower who avails of the mechanism and also provide direct 
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in appropriate or exceptional cases. 
 
Accordingly, Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy have been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for the 
Directors and employees of the Company to approach the Ethics Officer or the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the 
Company. The purpose of this policy is to provide a framework to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing. It 
protects employees willing to raise a concern about serious irregularities within the Company. During the financial year 
2020-21, no such complaint of unethical or improper activity has been received by the Company. 
 
24. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in 
securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the 
Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees 
while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the 
Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code. All Board Directors and the 
designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code. 
 
25. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 

AND OUTGO: 
 

The particular as prescribed under Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 read with the provisions of Section 
134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 are as follow: 
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A) Conservation of energy- 

Sr. 
No. 

Particular  Remark 

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation 
of energy; 

Your Company carries out its business in an environmental 
friendly manner and is on the look-out for different ways & 
means to reduce the consumption of energy in its operations. 

(ii) The steps taken by the company for 
utilizing alternate sources of energy; 

The Company does not require any alternative sources of energy. 

(iii)  The capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment; 

The Company’s operations do not require capital investment on 
energy conservation equipment. 

 
B) Technology absorption, adaption and innovation: 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Particular Remark 

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption; The Company continues to use the latest 
technologies for improving the productivity and 
quality of its services.  

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost 
reduction, product development or import substitution; 

Not Applicable 

(iii)  in case of imported technology (imported during the last 
three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial 
year) 
the details of technology imported; 
the year of import; 
whether the technology been fully absorbed; 
if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not 
taken place, and the reasons thereof; and 

The Company’s operations do not require 
significant import of technology. 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. The Company’s operations do not require the 
expenditure on Research and Development 

 
C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo 
 
During the year under review, there was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo. 
 
26. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY 
 
There was no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report; 
 
27. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)  
 
During the year under review, the Company has spent Rs.13.20 Lakhs on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities as 
against mandatory expenditures (CSR Budget) of Rs.13.17 Lakhs. Detailed information on the CSR policy and CSR 
initiatives taken during year under review and Annual Report on CSR activities including composition of the CSR 
Committee is given in the annexed as Annexure – F and is forming integral part of this report. 
 
Further, the Company’s net loss calculated in accordance with the provisions of section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 is Rs.534.92 lakh and average net profit of preceding three financial years is 
Rs.259.51 Lakhs. Hence, the Company is required to spend Rs.5.20 Lakhs (i.e.2% of average net profit of preceding three 
financial years) during the financial year 2021-22.  
 
28. DISCLOSURE RELATING TO MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORD  
 
As the Company is Non-Banking Finance Company, the Central Government does not require to maintenance of cost 
records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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29. OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 

In compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
notified on December 9, 2013, the Company has a policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace. 
During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, no complaint of sexual harassment has been received by the Company 
during the year under review.  

30. DISCLOSURE ABOUT THE SHARES ISSUED ON PREFERENTIAL BASIS, IF ANY. 
 

During the year under review, your Company has not made any allotment of shares on preferential basis. 

31. DISCLOSURE ABOUT SWEAT EQUITY SHARES AND ESOP SCHEME. 
 

Your company has not issued sweat equity shares or given stock option in the year under review.  

32. LISTING OF SECURITIES 
 
Presently, the Securities of the Company are listed on BSE Limited, Mumbai. The listing fee for the financial year 2021-22 
has been paid. 
 
33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
Your directors would like to place their grateful appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from the 
Company’s lenders, bankers, employee during the year under review. The directors also acknowledge with appreciation the 
support and co-operation rendered by various Government authorities and departments. Your Directors would also wish to 
place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the continued support of all the investors of the Company.  
 

 By Order of the Board of Directors 
For SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 

 

 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 13th August, 2021  

Kuldeep Singh Solanki 
Director 

DIN: 00009212 

Rudra Sen Sindhu 
Director 

DIN: 00006999  
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Annexure - A 
Form No MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 09 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 
SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN-L26912DL1991PLC045449 
129, Transport Centre, 
Rohtak Road, Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110035 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
a) Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, followed provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company. 
 

d) Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happenings of events etc. 
 

e) The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 
 

f) The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the 
audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of; 
 
I) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under as amended from time to time. 
II) The Securities Contracts ( Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made there under; 
III) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-law framed hereunder; 
IV) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of foreign 

direct investment, overseas direct investment and External commercial Borrowings. (No event took place under this 
act during the audit period). 

V) The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India , 1992 
(“SEBI Act”) and as amended from time to time; 

 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India( Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009 (No event took place under these regulations during the audit period). 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. 
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(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (No event took place under these regulations during the audit period). 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008(No 
event took place under these regulations during the audit period). 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (No event took 
place under these regulations during the audit period). 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (No event took place 
these regulations during the audit period). 

 
VI) The Company has also complied with the provisions of the following laws to the extent of which they are applicable 

to the Company:  
 
(a) The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952. 
(b) Industrial Dispute Act, 1947, 
(c) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936, 
(d) The Payment of Minimum Wages Act, 1948 
(e) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, 
(f) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, 
(g) The Maternity Benefits Act, 1961, 
(h) The Income Tax Act, 1961, 
(i) The Finance Act, 1994 and Goods and Services Tax Act 2017 read with rules made thereunder. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following; 
 
I. The Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is applicable to 

the Company during the audit report. 
II. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited, a Stock Exchange in compliance of the 

provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other 
applicable regulations / guidelines/circulars as may be issued by SEBI from time to time. 

III. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, 
IV. Non-Banking Financial (Non-deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) 

Directions, 2015, 
 
During the period under review and as per the explanations, clarifications, representations made by the management to me, 
we report that, the Company has substantially complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, regulations, guidelines and 
standards etc. that are applicable to the Company. 
 
We further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including direct and indirect tax laws by the Company has 
not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by Statutory Auditor and other designated 
professionals. 
 
We further report that the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules made thereunder and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, with regard to: 
 
a) Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein; 
b) Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and the Central 

Government etc.; 
c) Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies; 
d) Notice of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings of Directors; 
e) The meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by circulation; 
f) The Annual General Meeting during the period was held on Wednesday, 30th September, 2020; 
g) Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee meetings; 
h) Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the government authorities, 

wherever required; 
i) Constitution of the Board of Directors / Committee(s) of Directors, appointment, retirement and reappointment of 

Directors including KMPs; 
j) Payment of remuneration to Directors including KMPs, 
k) Appointment and remuneration of Auditors; 
l) Transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares; 
m) Investment of the Company’s funds including investments and loans to others; 
n) Form of Balance Sheet as prescribed under Part I, form of statement of profit and loss as prescribed under Part II and 

General Instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed in Schedules to the Act; 
o) Directors’ report; 
p) Contracts, common seal, registered office and publication of name of the Company; and 
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q) Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act. 
 
We further report that: 
 
- The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. 
 

- Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 

- As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, decisions at Board meetings and 
Committee meetings are carried unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or 
Committee of the Board, as the case may be and no dissenting views have been made by any Directors or member of 
Committees. 
 

- The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act, and 
  

- There were no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties imposed during the year under review 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
  
We further report that: 
 
As explained by the management, the Company has made related party transaction on ordinary course of business which is 
on arm’s length basis as decided by the Audit Committee in their meeting during the financial year. 
 
With the reference to the compliance of Industry specific acts, the Company is an investment and finance company which 
is engaged in non-banking financial services and does not accept any public deposits, therefore, the company need to 
ensure the compliances relevant provision and process of RBI act and other applicable acts on periodically basis. In this 
regard, we have relied upon management representation issued to us and compliance certificates placed before the Board of 
Directors and also reports of statutory and internal auditors of the Company. Our report of compliance would be limited to 
their reporting and subject to the observations and comments made by them in their report, if any. 
 
During the audit period, there were no specific events/ actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in 
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. as referred above. 
 
Further in view of continuing restrictions on the movement of person at several places in country, due to corona Virus 
(Covid-19), we have verified the information and documents which are provided by the management of the Company 
through email but we have not verified any documents physically. 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 13 August, 2021  
Place: Noida  

For  S.S.BHATI & ASSOCIATES 
   Company Secretaries 

 
Satyapal Singh Bhati 

Proprietor 
FCS No.8252  

CP No.9387  
UDIN: F008252C00077767l 
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Annexure- ‘B’  
Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

CIN : L26912DL1991PLC045449 
 

Registration Date : 22/08/1991 
 

Name of the Company : Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 
 

Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Company Limited by Shares 
 

Address of the Registered office and contact details : 129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road,  
Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi -110035 
 

Whether listed company  Yes 
  

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, if any 

 Indus Portfolio Private Limited 
G- 65, Bali Nagar, New Delhi 110015 
Contact No: 91-11-47671200 
Fax No: 91-11- 25449863 

 
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

 
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated: 

Sl. 
No 

Name and Description  of main products / 
Services 

NIC Code of the Product/ 
service 

%  to total turnover of the 
Company 

 
1. Interest Income  - 83.73% 

 
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 
Sl. 
No. 

NAME AND ADDRESS 
OF THE COMPANY 

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY/ 
ASSOCIATE 

% Of Shares 
Held 

Applicable 
Section 
 

1. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 
 

 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during 

the year 

 Demat Physical Total 
% of 
Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total 
%of 
Total 
Shares 

 

A. Promoter          
1) Indian          
a) Individual/ HUF 7642582 - 7642582 70.24 7642582 - 7642582 70.24 - 
b)  Central Govt. - - - - - - - - - 
c)   State Govt.(s)          
d)  Bodies Corp - - - - - - - - - 
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Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during 

the year 

 Demat Physical Total 
% of 
Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total 
%of 
Total 
Shares 

 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 
f)  Any Other.. - - - - - - - - - 
Sub-total(A)(1): 7642582 - 7642582 70.24 7642582 - 7642582 70.24 - 
2) Foreign - - - - - - - -  
a) NRIs-Individuals - - - - - - - - - 
b) Other-Individuals - - - - - - - - - 
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - 
d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 
e) Any Other…. - - - - - - - - - 
Sub-total (A)(2):- - - - - - - - - - 
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)  7642582 - 7642582 70.24 7642582 - 7642582 70.24 - 

B. Public Shareholding - - - - - - - -  
1. Institutions - - - - - - - - - 
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - 
b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 
c) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - - 
d) State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - - 
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - - 
f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - - 
g) FIIs - - - - - - - - - 
h) Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds - - - - - - - - - 

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - - 
Sub-total(B)(1) - - - - - - - - - 
2. Non Institutions - - - - - - - - - 
a) Bodies Corp.  
 (i) Indian  
 (ii) Overseas 

805881 199657 1005538 09.24 794069 199657 993726 09.13 (0.11) 

b) Individuals 
(i) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 2 lakh  
(ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital in 
excess of Rs 2 lakh 

 
 
320230 
 
 
640388 

 
 
1080484 
 
 
158000 

 
 
1400714 
 
 
798388 

 
 
12.87 
 
 
7.34 

 
 
333991 
 
 
640488 

 
 
1078586 
 
 
158000 

 
 
1412577 
 
 
798488 

 
 
12.98 
 
 
7.34 

 
 
0.11 
 
 
0.00 

c) Others(Specify) 
i) Non-Resident Indian 
 ii) Clearing Member 
 iii) Clearing House 

 
1322 
      5 
- 

 
31451 
     - 
- 

 
  32773 
         5 
- 

 
00.31 
00.00 
- 

 
  974 
  202 
- 

 
31451 
     - 
- 

 
   32425 
      202 
- 

 
00.30 
00.01 
- 

(0.01) 
0.01 

Sub-total(B)(2) 1767826 1469592 3237418 29.76 1769724 1467694 3237418 29.76 0.00 
Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1) + (B)(2) 1767826 1469592 3237418 29.76 1769724 1467694 3237418 29.76 0.00 

C. Shares held by Custodian for 
GDRs &ADRs -    -    - 

Grand Total (A+B+C) 9410408 1469592 10880000 100% 9412306 1467694 10880000 100% - 
 
(i) Shareholding of Promoters 

Sr. No. Shareholder’s  Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year 
 
 

 

  No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered to 
total shares 

% change in 
shareholding 
during the 
year 
 

1 Kuldeep Singh Solanki 2503982 23.01 N.A. 2503982 23.01 N.A. - 

2 Rudra Sen Sindhu 1334835 12.27 N.A. 1334835 12.27 N.A. - 

3 Yuvraj Singh Solanki 432833 3.98 N.A. 432833 3.98 N.A. - 

4 Indu Solanki 337833 3.11 N.A. 337833 3.11 N.A. - 

5 Sarvesh Sindhu 248866 2.29 N.A. 248866 2.29 N.A. - 

6 Vir Sen Sindhu (HUF) 247066 2.27 N.A. 247066 2.27 N.A. - 

7 Vrit Pal Sindhu 206200 1.90 N.A. 206200 1.90 N.A. - 
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Sr. No. Shareholder’s  Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year 
 
 

 

  No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbered to 
total shares 

% change in 
shareholding 
during the 
year 
 

8 Sumati Sindhu 194333 1.79 N.A. 194333 1.79 N.A. - 

9 Kuldeep Singh Solanki 
(HUF) 172800 1.59 N.A. 172800 1.59 N.A. - 

10 Abhimanyu Sindhu 175166 1.61 N.A. 175166 1.61 N.A. - 

11 Surabhi Gehlot 149933 1.38 N.A. 149933 1.38 N.A. - 

12 Parmeshwari Devi 456532 4.20 N.A. 456532 4.20 N.A. - 

13 Manisha Solanki 117800 1.08 N.A. 117800 1.08 N.A. - 

14 Col. Girdhari Singh 
(HUF) 109400 1.01 N.A. 109400 1.01 N.A. - 

15 Vir Sen Sindhu 102198 0.94 N.A. 102198 0.94 N.A. - 

16 Sweta Sindhu 96565 0.89 N.A. 96565 0.89 N.A. - 

17 Rudra Sen Sindhu (HUF) 89600 0.82 N.A. 89600 0.82 N.A. - 

18 Saroj Sindhu 101569 0.93 N.A. 101569 0.93 N.A. - 

19 Rajshree Rathore 64000 0.59 N.A. 64000 0.59 N.A. - 

20 Asha Rathore 75200 0.69 N.A. 75200 0.69 N.A. - 

21 Shahista Gehlot 58600 0.54 N.A. 58600 0.54 N.A. - 

22 Somvir Sindhu 52000 0.48 N.A. 52000 0.48 N.A. - 

23 Rachna Sindhu 51900 0.48 N.A. 51900 0.48 N.A. - 

24 Satya Pal Sindhu 45000 0.41 N.A. 45000 0.41 N.A. - 

25 Saurabh Sindhu 41666 0.38 N.A. 41666 0.38 N.A. - 

26 Usha Sindhu 52675 0.48 N.A. 52675 0.48 N.A. - 

27 Dev Suman Sindhu 40000 0.37 N.A. 40000 0.37 N.A. - 

28 Shashi Sindhu 18466 0.17 N.A. 18466 0.17 N.A. - 

29 Vrit Pal Sindhu (HUF) 13166 0.12 N.A. 13166 0.12 N.A. - 

30 Ekta Sindhu 5000 0.05 N.A. 5000 0.05 N.A. - 

31 Anika Sindhu 500 0.00 N.A. 500 0.00 N.A. - 

32 Rajbir Singh 4665 0.04 N.A. 4665 0.04 N.A. - 

33 Maj Niranjan Singh 6200 0.06 N.A. 6200 0.06 N.A. - 

34 Madhu Singh 36033 0.33 N.A. 36033 0.33 N.A. - 
 Total 7642582 70.24 N.A. 7642582 70.24 N.A. - 

 
 (ii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 

Sl. 
No
. 

 Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

  No. of 
shares 

% of total share of 
the Company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total share 
of the Company 

 At the beginning of the year 7642582 70.24 7642582 70.24 
 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 

Shareholding during the year specifying the reasons 
for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):# 

NIL - NIL - 

 At the End of the year 7642582 70.24 7642582 70.24 
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 Reason of Change in Shareholding –N.A. 

Sl. 
No 

Name Shareholding Date Increase/ 
Decrease 
in 
sharehold
ing 

Reason Cumulative 
Shareholding 
during the year (01-
04-20 to 31-03-21) 

  No. of Shares at the 
Beginning (01-04-
20/ end of the Year  
(31-03-21) 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

N.A.  N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 
 
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 

ADRs): 

Sl. 
No 

 Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

 For each of Ten Shareholders No. of shares % of total 
share of the 
Company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total share 
of the Company 

 At the beginning of the year 1525421 14.02 1525421 14.02 
 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during 

the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):* 

 
N.A. 

 
N.A. 

 
N.A, 

 
N.A. 

 At the End of the year(or on the date of separation, if 
separated during the year) 

1525421 14.02 1525421 14.02 

 
Reason of Change in Top Ten Public Shareholding*  
Sl. 
No 

Name Shareholding Date Increase/ 
Decrease 
in 
shareholdi
ng 

Reason Cumulative 
Shareholding 
during the year (01-04-
20 to 31-03-21 

  No. of Shares at 
the 
Beginning (01-
04-20 / end of 
the Year  
(31-03-21) 

% of 
total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

1. Manak Vanija Private 
Limited  

424320 3.90 01-04-2020   424320 3.90 
424320 3.90 31-03-2021 - - 424320 3.90 

2. Meghdoot Vanijya 
Privated Limited  

320175 2.95 01-04-2020   320175 2.95 
320175 2.95 31-03-2021 - - 320175 2.95 

3. Gangadhar  Satpathy 168640 1.55 01-04-2020 - - 168640 1.55 
168640 1.55 31-03-2021 - - 168640 1.55 

4. Shila  Satpathy 168640 1.55 01-04-2020 - - 168640 1.55 
168640 1.55 31-03-2021 - - 168640 1.55 

5. Harsh Tribhuwan 
Nath Wahal 

168143 1.55 01-04-2020 - - 168143 1.55 
168143 1.55 31-03-2021 - - 168143 1.55 

6 Sanjay Kumar 
Sarawagi 

64171 0.59 01-04-2020 - - 64171 0.59 
64171 0.59 31-03-2021 - - 64171 0.59 

7. 
Ex - Serviceman Vir 
Transport Pvt. 
Limited 

61866 0.57 01-04-2020 - - 61866 0.57 

61866 0.57 31-03-2021 - - 61866 0.57 

8. 
Ex - Serviceman 
Abhimanyu Transport 
Pvt. Limited  

61866 0.57 01-04-2020 - - 61866 0.57 

61866 0.57 31-03-2021 - - 61866 0.57 

9. Yaspal Saharan  49200 0.45 01-04-2020 - - 49200 0.45 
49200 0.45 31-03-2021 - - 49200 0.45 

10. Talqeen Qureshi  38400 0.35 01-04-2020 - - 38400 0.35 
38400 0.35 31-03-2021 - - 38400 0.35 
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 (v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sl. 
No 

Name Shareholding Date Increase/ 
Decrease 
in 
shareholding 

Reason Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 
(01-04-20 to 31-03-21) 

No. of Shares at 
The beginning 
(01-04-20) / end 
of the year 
(31-03-21) 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares of the 
Company 

A Director: 
1. Rudra Sen Sindhu 1334835 12.27 01/04/2020 - - 1334835 12.27 

1334835 12.27 31/03/2021 - - 1334835 12.27 
2.  Kuldeep Singh 

Solanki 
2503982 23.01 01/04/2020 - - 2503982 23.01 
2503982 23.01 31/03/2021 - - 2503982 23.01 

3 Samai Singh 2000 0.02 01-04-2020 - - 2000 0.02 
2000 0.02 31-03-2021 - - 2000 0.02 

4. Sarvesh Sindhu  248866 2.29 01-04-2020 - - 248866 2.29 
248866 2.29 3103-2021 - - 248866 2.29 

5 Nishi Sabharwal * - - - - - - - 
6. Ramesh Shah - - - - - - - 
7. Renuka Hooda* - - - - - - - 
B. Key Managerial Personnel 
1 Akash Shrivastava, 

CEO 
- - - - - - - 

2. Jagdish Chandra, 
CFO 

460 - 01-04-2020 - - 460 - 

460 - 31-03-2021 - - 460 - 

3. Renu - - - - - - - 

 Mrs. Renuka Hooda, Independent Director of the Company tender her resignation w.e.f. 12-11-2020 and Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal has 
been appointed as Independent Director of the Company w.e..f. 12-11-2020 at the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 

V. INDEBTEDNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (Rupees in Lakhs) 

 Secured Loans 
excluding deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid  
iii) Interest accrued but not due 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
17,819.48 
2,768.54 

Nil 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
17,819.48 
2,768.54 

Nil 
Total (i+ii+iii) NIL 20,588.02 NIL 20588.02 
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 
Addition 
Reduction 

 
NIL 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 1,700.64 

 
NIL 
NIL 

 
NIL 

1,700.64 
Net Change NIL (1,700.64) NIL (1,700.64) 
Indebtedness  at the end  of the financial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid  
iii) Interest accrued but not due 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
16,240.82 
2,646.56 

Nil 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
16,240.82 
2,646.56 

Nil 
Total (i+ii+iii) NIL 18,887.38 NIL 18,887.38 

 
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

Sl. No. Particular of Remuneration  Name of MD / WTD / 
Manager 

Total Amount 

    
1. Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act,1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- 
tax Act, 1961 

NIL NIL NIL 

2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL 
3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL 
4. Commission 

-   as % of profit 
NIL NIL NIL 
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-   others, specify… 
5. Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL 
 Total (A) NIL NIL NIL 
 Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL NIL 

 

B. Remuneration to other directors: Amount in Lakhs  
Sl. 
No. 

Particulars of Remuneration 
 

Name of Directors Total 
Amount Sh. Samai 

Singh 
Sh. Ramesh 
Shah 

Ms. Nishi 
Sabharwal  

Ms. Renuka 
Hooda 

 1. Independent Directors 
· Fee for attending board committee meetings 
· Commission 
· Others, please specify 

 
1.10 
NIL 
NIL 

 
0.35 
NIL 
NIL 

 
0.40 
NIL 
NIL 

 
0.85 
NIL 
NIL 

 
2.70 
NIL 
NIL 

 Total (1) 1.10 0.35 0.40 0.85 2.70 
 2. Other Non-Executive Directors 

· Fee for attending board committee meetings 
· Commission 
· Others, please specify 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL 

 Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
 Total (B)=(1+2) 1.10 0.35 0.40 0.85 2.70 
 Total Managerial Remuneration 1.10 0.35 0.40 0.85 2.70 
 Overall Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD 

 (Rupees in Lakhs) 
Sl. 
No. 

Particular of Remuneration  Name of Key Managerial Personnel  
 CEO 

(Akash 
Shrivastava 

Company 
Secretary 
(Renu) 

CFO 
(Jagdish 
Chandra) 

Total 
Amount  

1 Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act,1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961 

 
24.22 

 
1.20 

 
14.80 

 
40.22 

2. Stock Option - - - - 
3. Sweat Equity - - - - 
4. Commission 

-   as % of profit 
-   Others, specify 

- - - - 

5. Others, please specify - - - - 
 Total (A) 24.22 1.20 14.80 40.22 
 Ceiling as per the Act N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

*Note: Mrs. Renu appointed as Company secretary w.e.f.25-06-2020 . 
 

VII. Penalty / Punishment/ Compounding of offences: 

Type Section of the 
Companies Act 

Brief 
description 

Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/ Compounding 
fees imposed 

Authority [RD 
/NCLT / Court] 

Appeal made, 
If any(give 
details) 

A. Company 
Penalty - - - - - 
Punishment - - - - - 
Compounding - - - - - 
B. Directors 
Penalty - - - - - 
Punishment - - - - - 
Compounding - - - - - 
C. Other Officers in default 
Penalty - - - - - 
Punishment - - - - - 
Compounding - - - - - 
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Annexure – “C” 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31STMARCH, 2021 
 
1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY 

 
The Corporate Governance refers to set of policies, systems, regulations and procedures to be followed in the best interest 
of stakeholders i.e. Shareholders, Consumers, Banks, financial institutions and employees of the Company etc. Our 
Company is making regular compliances and furnishing the information related to the performance and prospect of the 
Company keeping in view of true spirit of the Corporate Governance. The Company’s philosophy is the conduct of its 
affairs transparently with all persons dealing with the Company and/or having a stake in the Company. As required under 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, all necessary disclosures are set out towards achievements 
of good Corporate Governance.  
 
2.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company provides leadership, strategic guidance to the Company and exercises control over 
the Company and accountable at all time to the shareholders of the Company. The present Board comprises of 6 (Six) 
directors (of which 3 are non-executive independent directors) who possess the requisite qualifications and experience in 
general corporate management, finance, banking and other allied fields enabling them to contribute effectively in their 
capacity as Directors of the Company. 
 
2.1 The composition of the Board of Directors as on date is as follows: 

Name of Director 
 

Category DIN No. of 
shares 
held 

Core Skill, Expertise & / Competencies 

Mr. Rudra Sen 
Sindhu 

Non-Executive –Non 
Independent Director  

00006999 1334835 He is an ex-army man and has bachelor's 
degree in arts and has more than 37 years’ 
experience in coal mining and mining 
logistics and setting up and operation of 
power plants and non-banking finance 
business. 

Mr. Kuldeep Singh 
Solanki 

Non-Executive –Non 
Independent Director 

00009212 2503982 He is an ex-army man and has bachelor's 
degree in arts and has more than 35 years’ 
experience in coal mining and coal washing, 
operation of power plants and non-banking 
finance business. 

Mr. Sarvesh 
Sindhu 

Non-Executive –Non 
Independent Director 

06545787 248866 He has MBA degree from Boston University, 
United States of America and has been 
pursing family business since last 4 years i.e. 
coal mining, contract mining, mining 
logistics and setting up and operation of 
power plants and non-banking fiancé 
business.    

Mr. Ramesh Shah Independent Director 00029864 NIL He is qualified Chartered Accountant and 
Cost Accountant and having extensive 
experience of over 27 years of heading 
functions like statutory audit, taxation, 
accounts, finance, costing, MIS, internal and 
management audit, commercial, 
administration, material management, 
systems and controls, mergers, acquisition, 
takeovers, etc.. 

Mr. Samai Singh Independent Director 00235036 2000 He is an ex-army man and has bachelor's 
degree in arts. He has extensive experience 
of over 20 years in administration, 
transportation, loading, mining, finance, 
investment stock broking etc. 

Mrs. Renuka 
Hooda* 

Independent Director 03611979 NIL She has Master degree in Commerce and has 
in depth knowledge in the field of Finance 
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Name of Director 
 

Category DIN No. of 
shares 
held 

Core Skill, Expertise & / Competencies 

and Investment. She also has approximately 
11 years of experience in Accounts, 
investments and finance. She joined our 
Company in the end of the year 2015 

Mrs. Nishi 
Sabharwal * 

Independent Director  06963293 NIL She is a Masters in Economics, from Agra 
University. In a career spanning 30 years, she 
has held numerous senior positions across 
various business segments. She has worked 
with a multinational bank for 12 years across 
business segments and worked with a large 
Indian Private banks for 3 years. She has 
specialized in Client Experience 
Management, Relationship Banking, Wealth 
Management, Investment Advisory, Private 
Banking, Business Banking, International 
Trade Services, Branch Banking, Team 
Building Management, Business 
Development. She joined our Company in 
the end of the year 2020 

* Mrs. Renuka Hooda resigned as Independent Director and Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal has been appointed as independent 
director of the Company w.e.f.12-11-2020. 
 
2.2 Board Meetings held during the year under review: 
 
a) Number, dates of Board and committee Meetings held during the financial year indicating the number of 

meeting attended by each director 
 
During the year under review, 5 Board meetings, 4 Audit Committee Meetings, 5 Shareholders Relationship Committee 
Meetings, 3 Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings and 1 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
Meeting were held. The intervening gap between two board meetings and audit committee meetings was within the period 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
During the year under review, the Board met 5 times. The following table summarise the attendance of the Directors of the 
Company at Board meetings held during the financial year under review:  

Name of Directors of the 
Company 

Dates of Board meetings and attendance of Directors 
25/06/20 17/08/20 12/11/20 12/02/21 31/03/21 Meeting Attended 

Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu  Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 5 
Mr. Kuldeep Singh Solanki  No Yes No Yes Yes 3 
Mr.  Samai Singh  Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 5 
Mr. Sarvesh Sindhu* Yes No No Yes Yes 3 
Mr. Ramesh Shah* N.A. Yes Yes Yes No 3 
Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal**  N.A. NA Yes Yes Yes 3 
Mrs.  Renuka Hooda  Yes Yes Yes NA NA 3 

*Mr. Sarvesh Sindhu and Sh. Ramesh Shah have been appointed as directors w.e.f.25-06-2020 and **Mrs. Renuka Hooda 
resigned as Independent Director and Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal has been appointed as independent director of the Company 
w.e.f.12-11-2020. 
 
Mr. Sarvesh Sindhu attended BM held on 25-06-2021and Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal attended BM held on 12-11-2020  as 
Special invitees   
b) Attendance record of Directors at Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting of the Company held during the 

financial year 2020-21 and details of number of Directorships / chairmanship/ memberships in the committees 
of other companies are given as under:  

Name of 
Director 

Attendance details  Number of 
other 

Companies in 
which he / she 

is Director 

No of post of 
Chairperson in 
Audit/ 
Stakeholder 
Committee held 

Number of 
memberships 
in 
Audit/ 
Stakeholder 

Name of Listed 
Entities including 
this listed entity 
where the person is 
a Director  

At Board 
Meeting 

At AGM 
held on 
30-09-
2020 

34



SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L26912DL1991PLC045449 

  

 
 

(other than 
foreign 

companies, LLP 
and section 8 
Companies) 

in 
listed entities 
including this 
listed entity 

Committee(s) 
including this 
listed entity 

Mr. Rudra Sen 
Sindhu 

5 Yes 13 - 4 Sainik Finance & 
Industries Limited 
Sindhu Trade 
Links Limited 

Mr. Kuldeep 
Singh Solanki 

3 Yes 10 - - Sainik Finance & 
Industries Limited 

Mr. Samai 
Singh 

5 Yes 6 1 1 Sainik Finance & 
Industries Limited 

Mrs. Renuka 
Hooda* 

3 Yes 2 1 1 Sainik Finance & 
Industries Limited 

Mr. Sarvesh 
Sindhu* 

3 Yes 4 NIL NIL Sainik Finance & 
Industries Limited 

Mr. Ramesh 
Shah* 

3 Yes 7 2 4 Sainik Finance & 
Industries Limited, 
Apex Capital and 
Finance Limited 
and Sindhu Trade 
Links Limited 

Mrs. Nishi 
Sabharwal* 

3 N.A. 8 1 9 Sainik Finance & 
Industries Limited 
Globus Power 
Generation Limited 
and Shyam 
Telecom Limited  

*Mr. Sarvesh Sindhu and Sh. Ramesh Shah have been appointed as directors w.e.f.25-06-2020 and **Mrs. Renuka Hooda 
resigned as Independent Director and Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal has been appointed as independent director of the Company 
w.e.f.12-11-2020. 
 
2.3 Independent Directors: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The Board also has a woman director. Whenever new Non-executive and 
Independent Directors are inducted in the Board they are introduced to our Company’s culture through appropriate 
orientation session and they are also introduced to our organization structure, our business, constitution, board procedures, 
our major risks and management strategy. The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in accordance with the Act and 
the Listing Regulations. 
 
The Company issues a formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors in the manner provided under the Act. As per 
regulation 46(2) of the Listing Regulations, the terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors are placed on 
the Company’s website www.sainikfinance.com. The Board evaluates the performance of Non-executive and Independent 
Directors every year. All the Non-executive and Independent Directors are eminent personalities having wide experience in 
the field of business, industry and administration. Their presence on the Board is advantageous and fruitful in taking 
business decisions. 

 
The Independent Directors held a Separate Meeting without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members of 
Management. All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting. The following issues were discussed in detail: 
 
a) Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors of the Company  and the Board as a whole; 
b) Reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole; 
c) Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board 

that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 
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3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
3.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
The Audit Committee has been constituted by the Board of Directors in order to meet the requirements of section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 as well as regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. All the members of the committee are financially literate. 
 
The terms of reference of the audit committee are broadly included: 
 
(i) the remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company; 
(ii) review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;  
(iii) examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon; 
(iv) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 
(v) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
(vi) valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;  
(vii) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
(viii) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters; and 
(ix) oversee the vigil mechanism established by the Company for directors and employees to report genuine concerns.” 
The Audit Committee shall also exercise the following powers in addition to the powers specified above: 
- To investigate any activity within its terms of reference; 
- To seek information from any employee; 
- To obtain outside legal or other professional advice; 
- To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; 
- Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 

that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 
- Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the 

statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees; 
- Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 
- Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for approval, 

with particular reference to: 
 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 
report in terms of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013; 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and 
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

 
- Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval. 
 
- Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public 

issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in 
the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization 
of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in 
this matter. 

 
- Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal 

control systems. 
 
- Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, 

staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of 
internal audit. 

 
- Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on. 
 
- Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected 

fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the 
board. 
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- Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

 
- To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 

(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 
 
- To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is in existing. 
 
- Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance 

function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background, etc. of the 
candidate. 

 
- Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.” 
 
During the year under review, the Audit Committee has been reconstituted by appointing Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal & Mr. 
Ramesh Shah, independent directors as members of the committee in place of Mrs. Renuka Hooda, independent director of 
the Company with effect from 12th November 2020. As on date the Audit Committee comprise the following members:  
 

Mr. Samai Singh Chairman Independent Director. 
Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu Member Non-Executive Non Independent Director. 
Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal  Member Independent Director 
Mr. Ramesh Shah Member Independent Director 

 
During the year under review, 4 (Four) Audit Committee meetings were held. The attendance record of the members 
during these meetings is set down below: 
 

Date of Meeting Mrs. Renuka 
Hooda 

Mr. Rudra Sen 
Sindhu 

Mr. Samai 
Singh 

Mrs. Nishi 
Sabharwal 

Mr. Ramesh Shah 

25-06-2020 Yes Yes Yes N.A. N.A. 
17-08-2020 Yes Yes Yes N.A. N.A. 
12-11-2020 Yes Yes Yes N.A. N.A. 
12-02-2021 N.A. Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
3.2 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 
The Stakeholder Relationship Committee looks into the matters of complaints of the investors and shareholders relating to 
the non-receipt of dividend warrants, annual reports, share transfers/ transmission in time, issue of duplicate share 
certificate, re-mat / de-mat of shares, change of address etc. and the redressal of their complaints.  
 
The Stakeholder Relationship Committee has been constituted by the Board of Directors in order to meet the requirements 
of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as the regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
During the year under review, the Stakeholder Relationship Committee has been reconstituted by inducting Mrs. Nishi 
Sabharwal, independent director as member of the committee in place of Mrs. Renuka Hooda, independent director of the 
Company with effect from 12th November 2020 and Sh. Samai Singh, Member of the Committee was appointed as 
Chairman of Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee with effect from 12th November, 2020. As on date the Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee comprise the following members:  
Mr.  Samai Singh  Chairman   Independent Director 
Mr.  Rudra Sen Sindhu   Member    Non –Executive Non Independent Director. 

Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal  Member Independent Director 

Mrs. Renu Company Secretary Compliance Officer 

 
The Committee met 5 times during the year under review. The following table summarizes the attendance of the members 
at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company: 

Date of meeting  Mrs. Renuka 
Hooda 

Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu Mr. Samai Singh Mrs. Nishi 
Sabharwal 

25-06-2020 Yes Yes Yes NA 
17-08-2020 Yes Yes Yes NA 
12-11-2020 Yes Yes Yes NA 
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Date of meeting  Mrs. Renuka 
Hooda 

Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu Mr. Samai Singh Mrs. Nishi 
Sabharwal 

12-02-2021 NA Yes Yes Yes 
31-03-2021 NA  Yes  No Yes 

 
The details of shareholders complaints received from shares holders, status thereof etc. are summarized as under during the 
year under review: 
 

SL. 
No. 

Particulars  No. 

1. Number of shareholders complaints received from shareholders/ investors from April 01, 2020 to 
March 31, 2021 regarding non-receipt of dividend / interest warrants, non-receipt of shares sent 
for transfer, Annual Reports etc. 

Nil  

2. Number of complaints attended NIL 
3.  Number of complaints pending NIL 

 
The details of transfer of shares during the year under review are summarized as under: 

SL. No. Particulars  No. 
1. Number of request of Share Transfer received during the year under review. 1 
2.  Number of Share Transfer request executed. NIL 
3. Number of Share Transfer request rejected. 1 
4. Number of Shares for which above requests received. 366 
5. Number of Shares for which requests approved. NIL 
6. Number of Shares for which requests rejected. 366 
7. Number of Share Transfer request pending. NIL 
8. Number of equity shares acquired by Promoters from off market in dematerialized form 

during the year under review.  
NIL 

 
3.3 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
This Committee shall identify the persons, who are qualified to become Directors of the Company / who may be appointed 
in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal 
and also shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance. Committee shall also formulate the criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independent of the Directors and recommend to the Board a Policy, relating 
to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 
 
The broad terms of reference of the nomination and remuneration committee are as under: 
 
- identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 

accordance with the criteria laid down 
- recommend to the Board their appointment and removal  
- shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance. 
- formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director  
- recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and 

other employees. 
- while formulating the policy under sub-section (3) of section 178 of the Act ensure that: 
 

(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors 
of the quality required to run the company successfully; 

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 
(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between 

fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of 
the company and its goals. 

 
During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been reconstituted by inducting Mrs. 
Nishi Sabharwal, independent director as member of the committee in place of Mrs. Renuka Hooda, independent director 
of the Company with effect from 12th November 2020 and Sh. Samai Singh, Member of the Committee was appointed as 
the Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from 12th November, 2020. As on date the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprise the following members: 

Mr. Samai Singh  Chairman Independent Director 
Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu Member Non -Executive Non Independent Director 
Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal Member Independent Director 
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The Committee met 3 times during the year under review. The following table summarizes the attendance of the members 
at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company: 

Date of meeting  Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu Mr. Samai Singh Mrs. Renuka Hooda Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal 
25-06-2020 Yes Yes Yes NA 
17-08-2020 Yes Yes Yes NA 
12-11-2020 Yes Yes Yes NA 

 
3.4 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE  
 
The Board of Directors of Company has pursuant to the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
rules made thereunder, constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. During the year ended review, such CSR 
Committee was reconstituted by inducting Smt. Nishi Sabharwal, Independent Director of the Company in place of 
outgoing member of the Committee i.e. Mrs. Renu Hooda, Independent Director of the Company with effect from 12th 
November, 2020.  
 
As on date the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of the following members: 

Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu Chairman Non -Executive Non Independent Director 
Mr. Kuldeep Singh Solanki    Member  Non -Executive Non Independent Director  
Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal    Member Independent Director 

 
CSR Committee has in exercise of its authority and discharge of its responsibility, formulated a CSR Policy known as the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company which has been placed at the company’s website  
www.sainikfinance.com 
 
The CSR Committee met 1 times during the year under review. The following table summarizes the attendance of the 
members at the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company: 
 

Date of meeting  Mr. Rudra Sen 
Sindhu 

Mr. Kuldeep Singh 
Solanki  

Mrs. Renuka 
Hooda 

Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal 

17-08-2020 Yes Yes Yes NA 
 
4 THE MANNER OF THE BOARD EVALUATION 
 
The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees and individual 
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed 
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of the 
criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc. 
The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the 
basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. 
 
The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) reviewed the performance of the individual 
directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the Board and committee meetings 
like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In 
addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. 
 
A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of the 
Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence of judgement, 
safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The performance evaluation of the Independent 
Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The director who is subject to evaluation shall not participate.  The 
performance evaluation of other non-independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors who also 
reviewed the performance of the Secretarial Department. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation 
process. 
 
In a separate meeting of independent Directors, performance of non-independent directors, performance of the Board as a 
whole was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors.  
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5. POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION 
 
a) Criteria of selection of Non-executive Directors 
 
The Non-executive Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise and experience so as to have a diverse Board 
with Directors having expertise in the fields of marketing, finance, taxation, law, governance and general management. In 
case of appointment of Independent Directors, the Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the independent nature of 
the Directors vis-a-vis the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge its function and duties effectively. 
 
The Committee shall ensure that the candidate identified for appointment as a Director is not disqualified for appointment 
under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Committee shall consider the following attributes / criteria, whilst recommending to the Board the candidature for 
appointment as Director. 

 
i. Qualification, expertise and experience of the Directors in their respective fields; 
ii. Personal, Professional or business standing; 
iii. Diversity of the Board. 

 
In case of re-appointment of Non-executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the performance evaluation 
of the Director and his engagement level. 
 
b) Executive Chairman / Director /KMP– Criteria for selection / appointment 
 
For the purpose of selection of the Executive Chairman / Director/KMP, the Committee shall identify persons of integrity 
who possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and shall take into 
consideration recommendation, if any, received from any member of the Board. 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will also ensure that the incumbent fulfils such other criteria with regard to 
age and other qualifications as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws. 
 
c) Remuneration to the independent directors or for the Executive Director /KMP at the time of appointment or 

re-appointment, 
 
At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Executive Director shall be paid such remuneration as may be mutually 
agreed between the Company (which includes the Committee and the Board of Directors) and the Executive Chairman / 
Director within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General Meeting. The remuneration 
of the Executive Director comprises of fixed and variable component as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The 
fixed component comprises salary, allowances, perquisites, amenities and retrial benefits.  
 
The remuneration for the KMP at the time of the appointment has to be approved by the Board but any subsequent material 
increments thereof shall be approved by the Managing Director of the Company, if appointed, as per the HR policy of the 
Company and ratified by the Board. 
 
d) Remuneration Policy for the Senior Management Employees 
 
In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management Employees, the Committee shall ensure the relationship of 
remuneration and performance benchmark is clear. The Executive Director will carry out the individual performance 
review based on the respective defined objectives, qualification, expertise, experience and other factors whilst 
recommending the annual increment and performance incentive to the Committee for its review and approval.  
 
6 BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
The Internal Auditors also report to the Board from time to time from the purpose of risk management. Business Risk 
Evaluation and Management is an outgoing process within the Organization. The Company has a strong risk management 
framework to identify, monitor and minimize risks as also identify business opportunities. 
 
The objectives and scope of the Risk Management includes broadly comprise of 
 

1. Oversight of risk management performed by the executive management. 
2. Reviewing the policy and framework in line with legal requirements and SEBI guidelines. 
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3. Reviewing risks and evaluate treatment including initiating mitigation actions. 
4. Defining framework for identification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation and reporting of risks. 
5. Within its overall scope as aforesaid, the Board shall review risks trends, exposure, potential impact analysis and 

mitigation plan 
 
7. GENERAL MEETINGS 
Location and time of the last three Annual General Meetings: 

Year Date Time Location 
2020 30th September, 2020 11.15 A.M. Annual General Meeting held through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 

Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”).  
2019 30th September, 2019 9.30 A.M. Farm House of M/s Kapil Constructions Private Limited, Anandgram (Near 

Rajokari), Church Road Extension, Mata Amritanandmayi Math, Abdul 
Gaffar Khan Marg, New Delhi -110 070 

2018 29th September, 2018 9.30 A.M. Farm House of M/s Kapil Constructions Private Limited, Anandgram (Near 
Rajokari), Church Road Extension, Mata Amritanandmayi Math, Abdul 
Gaffar Khan Marg, New Delhi -110 070 

 
The following table summarizes the details of the special resolutions passed during the last three years: 
 

Sl.  Particulars  Status Remarks 
1. Whether any Special 

Resolutions were passed at 
the last three Annual 
General Meeting. 

Yes, 
AGM held on 30th 
September, 2019 

Special resolution passed u/s 149 and 152 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for appointment of Mrs. Renuka Hooda as 
independent director for second term for five years 

2. Whether any special 
resolutions passed last year 
through postal ballot. 

No N.A. 

3. Persons who conducted the 
postal ballot 

N.A. 

4. Procedure for postal ballot N.A. 
 
8. DISCLOSURES 

a) Except as disclosed in annual report of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, there 
was no related party transactions with its promoters, Directors or the management, their subsidiaries / relatives 
that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. 

b) There were no cases of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by the 
Stock Exchanges, or the Securities and Exchange Board of India or any other statutory body/ authority, on any 
matter related to capital markets during the last three years. 

c) The related party details are disclosed in the notes to financial statements. The Register of Contracts containing 
the transactions in which Directors are interested, is regularly placed before the Board for its approval. 

d) Except as disclosed in annual report of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, there 
was no transaction with any person or entity belonging to the promoter / promoter group which hold(s) 10% or 
more shareholding in the Company. 

e) No personnel have been denied access to the Chairman or members of the Audit Committee. The mechanism of 
Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism is in place. 

f) To the extent possible, the Company has complied with the mandatory requirement of this clause. 
g) The Company has complied with all applicable Accounting Standards in preparation of its financial statements 

pursuant to the amended Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013. 
h) As the Company does not hold debt instruments or does not have fixed deposit programme or any scheme or 

proposal of involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad, it did not obtained any Credit Rating 
from any agencies. 

i) The Company did not raise any fund through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement during 
the year under review. 

 

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE INVESTORS/SHAREHOLDERS 
 

a ) Half Yearly report sent to each household of 
shareholders 

No, the results were published by the Company in 
National and Regional Newspapers in English and 
Hindi. 

b) Quarterly results Are published in the following newspapers: 
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The Financial Express - English / and Dainik 
Haribhoomi - Vernacular language (Hindi) 

c) Any website where displayed www.sainikfinance.com 
d) Whether the website also displays official news 

releases 
Yes 

e) Presentations made to institutional investors and 
analysts 

No 

f) Whether Management Discussion and Analysis 
Report forms part of the Annual Report 

Yes 

g) BSE Listing Centre (Listing Centre) Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for 
corporates. All periodical and other compliance fillings 
are filed electronically on the Listing Centre. 

h) SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) Investor complaints are processed at SEBI in a 
Centralised web-based complaints redress system. The 
salient features of this system are centralised database of 
all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports 
(ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by 
investors of actions taken on the complaints and their 
current status. 

 
10.  GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION  
 
Annual General Meeting 

 
 Date   : 30th September, 2021 

 
 Day    : Thursday  

Time: 11.15 A.M., Indian Standard Time (“IST”)  
Venue: Through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) Facility 
 

 ISIN : INE584B01013 
 
Financial Calendar (tentative):  Financial year - April 01, 2021 –  March 31, 2022 
 
Quarterly results- For Quarter ending: 

   30-06-2021 – 13th August, 2021  
   30-09-2021 – 1st / 2nd week of November, 2021 
   31-12-2021 – 1st / 2nd week of February, 2022 
   31-03-2022 – 1st / 2nd week of May, 2022 

Book closure:  
Saturday, 25rd September, 2021 to Thursday, 30th September, 2021 (both days inclusive) 
 
Listing on Stock Exchange(s):  BSE Limited, Mumbai, Floor 25, P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001. 
 
The Listing fees have been paid to the Stock Exchange for the financial year 2021-22. 
 
Stock Exchange Code: For BSE Limited - 530265 (SAINIK) 
 
Market Price data as traded at BSE Limited) during the year under report: The Company’s shares are listed at BSE 
Limited. Stock Exchange Code of the Company is 530265. The market data as traded at BSE Limited during the year 
2020-21 are as under: 
 

Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) 
April, 2020 25.00 23.00 October, 2020 20.00 18.05 
May, 2020 24.70 24.70 November, 2020 19.30 16.75 
June, 2020 29.00 28.50 December, 2020 17.15 15.95 
July, 2020 28.50 23.30 January, 2021 22.70 20.50 
August, 2020 22.20 14.20 February, 2021 25.75 19.85 
September, 2020 17.40 16.60 March, 2021 20.00 18.85 
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Share Transfer System: 
 
The Company’s Shares are traded on BSE Limited compulsorily in the dematerialized form. During the year under review, 
all requests received for transfer of shares for off market transaction in physical form furnishing with a copy of PAN card 
of the transferee(s) in compliance with the SEBI circular in that behalf were processed by the Registrar and Transfer 
Agents and were approved by Stakeholders Relationship Committee. However, the SEBI has amended regulation 40 of the 
Listing Regulations, pursuant to which transfer of securities cannot be processed unless securities are held in 
dematerialised form (except transmission of securities or transposition of names) subsequent to 31 March 2019. 
Accordingly, the Company has sent letters to those members holding shares in physical form advising them to 
dematerialise their holding so that the shareholders may transfer their shares easily and eliminates possibility of loss of 
certificate.  
 
Dematerialization of Shares and details thereof  
The Company’s Demat ISIN in NSDL (National Securities Depository Limited) and CDSL (Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited) is INE584B01013. 
 
The shareholders desirous of getting the shares dematerialized should approach a depository participant (DP) (For example, 
Indus Portfolio Private Limited) and get a depository account opened. The share certificates should be deposited with the 
same Depository Participant who shall approach the Company and Company’s RTA and get the shares dematerialized. As 
on 31st March, 2021, 9412306 Equity shares of the Company i.e. 86.51% of total paid up share capital are held in 
dematerialized form.  
 
Disclosure in relation to the sexual harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013:  

In compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the 
Company has a policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace. During the financial year ended 31st 
March 2021, no complaint of sexual harassment has been received by the Company.  

Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account: 

As the Company, does not have any demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account, the disclosure with respect to 
the same is not required to be given. 

Outstanding GDR / Warrants / Convertible Instruments: 
The Company has no outstanding GDR/Warrants/Convertible Instruments. 
 
Share Registrar & Transfer Agents: 
Indus Portfolio Private Limited, 
G - 65, Bali Nagar, New Delhi-110 015. 
Telephone Nos.: 91-11-47671200 Fax no: 91-11- 25449863. 
Email: rs.kushwaha@indusinvest.com  
Website:www.indusinvest.com 
 
Business Hours: 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (Monday to Saturday except second and fourth Saturdays) 
 
The shares of the Company are traded on the stock exchange in dematerialized form with effect from 18th July, 2000. 
 
DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2021 

Category wise shareholding 
(in shares) 

Number of 
Shareholders 

% to total 
Shareholders 

Number of Share 
held 

%to total share 
capital 

Upto-500 2963 85.21 300573 2.76 
501 – 1000 172 4.95 133789 1.23 
1001 – 5000 237 6.82 577727 5.31 
5001– 10000 43 1.24 311782 2.87 
10001-50000 30 0.86 686322 6.31 
50001-100000 11 0.32 728543 6.70 
100001-500000 19 0.55 4302447 39.54 
ABOVE 500000 2 0.06 3838817 35.28 
Total 3477 100.00 10880000 100.00 
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SHAREHOLDING DETAILS AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2021: 

Category No. of Shares held  Percentage of 
Shareholdings  

Promoters 7642582 70.24 
Institutional Investors - - 
Mutual Funds and UTI - - 
Banks, Financial institutions, Insurance Companies (Central / State 
Govt. Institutions/Non-govt. Institutions) 

- - 

FIIs - - 
Private Bodies Corporate 993726 9.13 
Indian Public 2211065 20.32 
NRIs  32425 0.30 
Clearing House/ Member 202 0.01 

TOTAL 1,08,80,000 100.00 
 
TOP 10 SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2021: 

Sr. No. Name Equity Shares Percentage of Shareholding  
1. Kuldeep Singh Solanki 2503982 23.01 
2. Rudra Sen Sindhu 1334835 12.27 
3. Parmeshwari Devi 4,56,532 4.20 
4. Yuvraj Singh Solanki 4,32,833 3.98 
5. Manak Vanijya Private Limited 4,24,320 3.90 
6. Indu Solanki 3,37,833 3.11 
7. Meghdoot Vanijya Private Limited 3,20,175 2.94 
8. Sarvesh Sindhu 2,48,866 2.29 
9. Vir Sen Sindhu (HUF) 2,47,066 2.27 
10. Vrit Pal Sindhu 2,06,200 1.90 

 
ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE: 
For any query related to Annual Report, Transfer of shares and other query related to shares, please contact at the following 
addresses. 
 
Registered Office of the Company, 
129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road, Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110035  
Tel. No: 011-28315036, Fax. No: 011-28315044 
E-mail: info@sainik.org 
CIN – L26912DL1991PLC045449 
Business Hours: 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (Monday to Saturday- ‘except second and fourth Saturdays’) 
 
Corporate office of the Company  
7th Floor, Office Tower, Ambience Mall, N.H-48, Gurugram-122002, Haryana 
Tel. No: 0124-2719000   
E-mail:legal.secretarial@sainikmining.com 
Business Hours: 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (Monday to Saturday- ‘except second and fourth Saturdays’) 
 
Registrar & Transfer Agents: 
Indus Portfolio Private Limited, 
G-65,  Bali Nagar, New Delhi-110 015. 
Tel. Nos: 91-11-47671200 Fax no: 91-11- 25449863. 
Email: rs.kushwaha@indusinvest.com Website: www.indusinvest.com 
Business Hours: 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (Monday to Saturday except second and fourth Saturdays’) 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 13th August, 2021 

 Order of the Board of Directors                                                                      
For SAINIK FINANC & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 
Kuldeep Singh Solanki 

Director 
DIN: 00009212 

 
Rudra Sen Sindhu 

Director 
DIN: 00006999  
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 
Sainik Finance & Industries Limited (SFIL), a listed Company is engaged in the business of investment, finance and 
lending. It is Non- Systematically Important Non-Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI). SFIL had to steer through a difficult year due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Industry and Economy overview   
 
The impositions of strict lockdown and social distancing measures taken to combat the spread of COVID19 have adversely 
affected the economy in 2020-21. As per the Second Advance Estimates released by the National Statistical Office (NSO), 
the growth rate of the gross domestic product (GDP) at constant market prices has been estimated to contract by 8.0 per 
cent in 2020-21, as compared to the growth of 4.0 percent (1st revised estimates) growth recorded in the previous year. The 
growth of the gross value added (GVA) at constant basic prices has been estimated to contract by 6.5 per cent in 2020-21, 
with agriculture and allied sectors, industrial sector and services sector growing at 3.0 percent, (-) 8.2 per cent and (-)8.1 
per cent respectively. On the demand side, the growth in government final consumption expenditure at constant (2011-12) 
prices is estimated at 2.9 per cent in 2020-21 (2nd advance estimates), as compared to 7.9 per cent in 2019-20 (1st revised 
estimates). Exports and imports of goods and services are estimated to contract (at constant prices) by 8.1 per cent and 17.6 
per cent in 2020-21. Information on saving and investment is available only till the year 2019-20. Gross saving as 
proportion of GDP at current market prices is estimated at 31.4 per cent in 2019-20 as compared to 30.6 percent in 2018-
19. Gross capital formation, also known as investment, was estimated to be 32.2 per cent of the GDP at current market 
prices in 2019-20, as compared to 32.7 per cent in 2018- 19. Fixed investment (Gross Fixed Capital Formation) to GDP 
ratio (at current prices) is estimated to be 26.7 per cent in 2020-21 (2nd advance estimates), vis-à-vis 28.8 per cent in 2019-
20 (1st revised estimates). 
 
Consumer Price Index Combined (CPI-C) inflation averaged 6.3 per cent in Apr-Jan., 2020-21, but the monthly price index 
declined in January 2021 to 4.1 per cent, mainly due to decline in the food inflation to 1.9 percent in January 2021 from 3.4 
per cent in December, 2020. During April-Jan, 2020-21, Food inflation based on Consumer Food Price Index (CFPI) 
averaged 8.4 per cent. Inflation measured in terms of Wholesale Price Index (WPI) declined from 4.3 per cent in 2018-19 
to 1.7 per cent in 2019-20.WPI inflation averaged 0.2 per cent during April-January, 2020-21 and stood at 2.0 per cent in 
January 2021. 
 
The performance of the industrial sectors based on the Index of Industrial Production (IIP) comprising mining, 
manufacturing and electricity showed negative growth in industrial production during 2019-20. According to the data on 
the IIP released by the National Statistical Office (NSO) under the Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation 
(MOSPI), the Index of Industrial Production (IIP) based industrial growth during 2019-20, was (-) 0.8 per cent as 
compared to 3.8 per cent growth achieved during the corresponding period of the previous year. Out of the three broad 
sectors, mining and electricity sectors recorded growth of 1.6 per cent and 1.0 per cent in 2019- 20 as against 2.9 per cent 
and 5.2 per cent growth achieved respectively during corresponding period of the previous year. Manufacturing sector fell 
by 1.4 per cent in 2019-20 as against a growth of 3.9 per cent in the corresponding period of the previous year. During 
April-November 2020-21, the IIP contracted by 15.5 per cent. 
 
The COVID-19 Pandemic and Lockdown 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic is a once in a lifetime occurrence that has brought with it unimaginable suffering to people and 
to almost all sections of the economy. When the pandemic struck and led to nationwide lockdowns to curtail the 
transmission of disease, it was natural to fear that the global economy would stay in extreme stress of the kind not seen 
since the Great Depression and would have a long-lasting economic impact. To counter the crippling impact of the 
lockdowns on economies, the world’s policymakers have resorted to fiscal and monetary measures never seen before in 
global economic history. Multiple vaccines were found with impressive efficacy levels in less than a year which will 
probably rank as among one of the most incredible achievements in science to save lives of the peoples. The announcement 
of successful development of vaccines seemed to lift spirits around the world. Unfortunately, the advent of winter saw 
several countries battle second waves of COVID-19 infections, including more virulent strains leading to partial 
lockdowns. The race between vaccines and variants is heating up as massive vaccination drives are underway. The only 
three preventives are masks, social distancing and vaccinations. Fortunately for India, which is home to some of the largest 
vaccine makers in the world, the supply constraints should be limited and temporary. Moreover, our experience in 
implementing large scale vaccination programmes should help in vaccinating our vulnerable population. 
 
Given the impact of the pandemic, FY2021 was expected to be an extremely demanding year. The consensus was that GDP 
growth in FY2021 would not only be negative but also would constitute the greatest fall in growth since 1979-80. In fact, 
the degrowth in GDP was much larger than expected. For April-June 2020, real GDP contracted by a massive 24.4%. India 
had never recorded a quarter of negative growth since it began issuing such data publicly in 1996. No other large economy 
shrank so much during the pandemic. In the second quarter, July-September 2020, GDP again contracted by 7.3%. The 
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consensus was that growth in the second half of the fiscal year would be far less than what was needed to erase the effect of 
the deep recession in the first half.  
 
Thankfully, we began to witness early signs on resumption of economic activity in the second half of the year with several 
high frequency indicators suggesting that the economy was back on to positive growth. The third quarter (October-
December 2020) recorded a GDP growth of 0.4%. And, as mentioned earlier, the second advance estimates of national 
income for FY2021 released by the CSO indicates a negative GDP growth of 8% for FY2021, 
 
Monetary Policy and inflation rate 
 
The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) reduced the repo rate by 185 bps to 4.40% during the year ended March, 2020 to 
mitigate the economic risks arising amidst the deteriorating economic condition.  
 
Retail inflation, measured by the Consumer Price Index (CPI), which had moderated in March 2020 with food inflation 
easing from double digits in December 2019 - January 2020 again surged on account of supply disruptions in April 2020 to 
8.6% from 7.8% in March 2020 despite agriculture being the bright spot. CPI breached the RBI’s upper tolerance threshold 
of 6% for six consecutive months (June to November 2020) before falling to 4.6% in December 2020 on the back of easing 
food prices and favourable base effects. The RBI monetary policy dated 7 April 2021 estimates the CPI inflation for the 
fourth quarter at 5%. To alleviate the economic stress induced by the pandemic the Government of India announced a 
Rs.20.9 lakh crore economic package (or about 10% of GDP). The guarantee schemes and liquidity measures aided growth 
in bank credit, enabled abundant liquidity in the financial sector which was directed toward impacted segments like 
industrial and service sector. Non-food credit growth of the scheduled commercial banks in the aggregate was 6.7% as of 
26 March 2021 over 27 March 2020. Credit growth to industrial sector over the same period was 0.4%. Having said that, 
credit growth within the industrial sector was the largest in the medium scale industry and the overall credit growth was 
brought down owing to a contraction of credit to large scale industry. The credit growth in personal loan segment 
witnessed decline in growth rates to 10.2% as of 26 March 2021 over 27 March 2020 compared to 15.0% as of 27 March 
2020 over 29 March 2019. Various measures taken by RBI ensured sufficient liquidity at all times during FY2021, and 
thus calmed sentiments in bond markets which had seen volatile conditions in March and April 2020. The RBI reduced its 
policy rates only once during this fiscal on 22 May 2020 by 40 basis points (bps) to 4%. As an additional measure to 
increase credit intermediation, the RBI increased the margin between repo and reverse repo from 25 bps to 65 bps. The 
central bank’s unprecedented monetary easing and open market purchases kept interest rates at comfortable levels during 
the year despite a record growth in Government borrowings. It was only after the announcement of a growth-centric and 
expansionary Union Budget for 2021-22 that yields in bond markets rose on expectations of the increased borrowing 
programme of the Government of India. While the RBI has maintained an accommodative stance so far, multiple factors 
like sticky inflation levels, elevated crude oil prices, and risks of US treasury yields will play a part in its ultra-
accommodative stance and may have a consequential impact on interest rates in FY2022. The Government is taking on the 
onus of heavy lifting to revive the investment cycle. A growth-centric and expansionary Union Budget for 2021-22 puts 
out hope that it will set the tone for infrastructure growth over the next few years. The fiscal deficit for 2021-22 is budgeted 
at 6.8% of India’s GDP though high but way below the revised estimate of 9.5% in 2020-21. Given the unprecedented 
economic havoc caused by the pandemic, such deficits are in line with actions taken globally. Indeed, most experts feel that 
FY2022 is a year when fiscal discipline will be kept in partial abeyance. Even so, implementation of the various budget 
measures is now all-crucial for the economic and fiscal health of the nation.  
 
NBFC Companies:  
 
NBFCs have become important constituents of the financial sector and have been recording higher credit growth than 
scheduled commercial banks (SCBs) over the past few years. NBFCs are continuously leveraging their superior 
understanding of regional dynamics, well-developed collection system and personalised services to expedite financial 
inclusion in India. Lower transaction costs, quick decision making, customer orientation and prompt provision of services 
have typically differentiated NBFCs from banks. Considering the reach and expanse of NBFCs, these are well-suited for 
bridging the financing gap. Systemically important NBFCs have demonstrated agility, innovation and frugality to provide 
formal financial services to millions of Indians. Over the last decade, NBFCs have witnessed phenomenal growth. From 
being around 12% of the balance sheet size of banks in 2010, these are now more than a quarter of the size of banks. 
NBFCs are the largest net borrowers of funds from the financial system with gross payables of Rs.9.37 lakh crore as of 30 
September 2020. House Finance Companies (HFCs) are the second largest borrowers of funds from the financial system 
with gross payables of around Rs.6.20 lakh crore as at 30 September 2020. The RBI has been enhancing the regulatory 
oversight of large NBFCs. Keeping in mind potential systemic risks that NBFCs might pose to the financial system, the 
RBI in its ‘Discussion Paper on Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs:  
 
A Scale-Based Approach’ (12 January 2021) seeks to balance regulatory arbitrage in favour of NBFCs and the recent 
growth trajectory of NBFCs by adopting a new approach towards regulating NBFCs. To provide further relief to distressed 
customers, the RBI in its notification dated 6 August 2020, allowed banks, NBFCs and HFCs to undertake one-time 
restructuring of stressed loans on account of COVID-19 pandemic. NBFCs and HFCs were more impacted than banks as 
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these entities had to provide moratorium to their customers, without getting similar relief on their liabilities. To provide 
additional relief, the Government of India announced ex-gratia payment to lenders for waiving off compound interest for 
loans up to Rs. 2 crore for some category of borrowers. Recently, the Honourable Supreme Court has directed all banks 
and financial institutions to refund compound interest, interest on interest or penal interest collected during the moratorium 
period irrespective of the loan amount and category of borrowers. The Supreme Court also lifted the ban it had imposed on 
declaring accounts of borrowers as non-performing assets. Customer servicing and debt recovery was already envisaged as 
a challenge during the pandemic induced stress. Individuals were losing their livelihoods and businesses were struggling to 
overcome disruptions while facing demand-supply constraints.  
 
To provide succor to customers, the authorities went all out to offer relief by announcing equated monthly interest (EMI) 
moratoriums, Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme for the SME sector, relief on compound interest and a resolution 
framework for COVID-19 related stress. Debt recovery in the first half of the fiscal was severely disrupted. However, the 
second half saw some semblance of normalcy with the gradual opening up of the economy as customers and lenders came 
to terms with the emerging scenario. However, this pandemic induced disruption has impacted the portfolio quality of all 
lenders; and they will have to redefine customer service and debt recovery in the post-pandemic world. The first three 
challenges were common to banks, NBFCs and HFCs. The last, namely ‘continuing to service their own debt’ created 
severe stress for NBFCs and HFCs. The known structural arbitrage that NBFCs and HFCs enjoyed such as not maintaining 
a Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) and a Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) became a severe disadvantage during the pandemic. 
The unfolding of events after the lockdown resulted in creating a scenario of NBFCs having to provide adequate relief on 
debt servicing obligations to their customers while not being granted the same relief on their liabilities. NBFCs and HFCs 
who had adopted prudent practices of maintaining adequate liquidity were able to tide over this problem; others could not. 
Thus, the business model of the NBFC sector was severely tested in FY2021. This was the fourth large external stress that 
the sector has faced in the last few years, namely, (i) demonetisation, (ii) GST implementation, (iii) failure of a large 
NBFC, and (iv)the pandemic. The fact that many NBFCs have managed to overcome these severe stresses without 
significant impact is a testimony to their resilience. With superior capital adequacy, better margins, frugal cost 
management and lower non-performing assets (NPAs), the NBFC sector is well poised to seize the opportunity provided in 
the post-pandemic revival cycle. The revised regulatory framework proposed by the RBI intends to make the NBFC sector 
more resilient.  
 
Possible threats 
 
As we get into an environment which is likely to be largely positive over medium to long term, there may be significant 
roadblocks in the shorter term due to funding difficulties which are facing by NBFC. Despite recent push by the RBI, the 
resolution of stressed assets in the system is likely to take more time. Also the effect of various loan waivers on credit 
culture in the rural areas is still to be seen. Your Company acknowledges these possible negative factors and has a plan to 
mitigate them through its deep domain knowledge, strong risk framework and an efficient collection mechanism. 
 
Outlook 
 
The markets will continue to grow and mature leading to differentiation of products and services. Each financial 
intermediary will have to find its niche in order to add value to consumers. “Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan” has been 
announcement of Government of India. Such Abhiyan may boost up the economy and NBFC business may increase in 
future. The Company is cautiously optimistic in its outlook for the financial year 2020-21. We believe that the growth 
momentum of NBFCs will result in their share in the financial services sector increasing in the near future. 
 
Fixed Deposits  
 
The Company is a non-deposit accepting -NBFC. The Company has not accepted any fixed deposit during the period under 
review. 
 
Internal control systems and their adequacy 
 
The Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure operational efficiency, protection and conservation of 
resources, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and compliance with laws and regulations. The internal control 
system is supported by an internal audit process for reviewing the design, adequacy and efficacy of the Company’s internal 
controls, including its systems and processes and compliance with regulations and procedures. Internal Audit Reports are 
discussed with the Management and are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board which also reviews the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the internal controls in the Company. The Company’s internal control system is commensurate with 
the size, nature and operations of the Company.  
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Risk management  
 
As an NBFC, SFIL is exposed to credit, liquidity and interest rate risk. It has continued to invest in talent, processes and 
emerging technologies for building advanced risk and underwriting capabilities. The Company recognizes the importance 
of risk management and has accordingly invested in appropriate processes, people and a management structure. The Board 
of Directors of the Company reviews the asset quality at frequent intervals. The asset quality of the Company continues to 
remain healthy. The nature of business the Company is engaged in exposes it to a slew of complex and variable risks. The 
rapid and continuous changes in the business environment have ensured that the organization becomes increasingly risk 
focused to achieve its strategic objectives. SFIL’s policies ensure timely identification, management and mitigation of 
relevant risks, such as credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, operational risk, reputational and regulatory risks, which 
help the Company move forward with vigour. 
 
Financial performance with respect to operational performance 
 
i) Share Capital 
 
The Authorised share capital of the Company is Rs.11,00,00,000/-(Rupees Eleven Crores Only) divided into 11000000 
Equity shares of Rs.10/-each. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital of the Company is Rs.10,88,00,000/-(Rupees 
Ten Crores Eighty Eight Lakhs Only) divided into 10880000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid up. 
 
ii) Net Worth 
 
The Net worth of the Company has been decreased to Rs.4,323.69 Lakhs during the current year as compared to 
Rs.4,417.78 Lakhs during the previous year.   
 
iii) Total Income 
 
During the year under review the total income of the Company was Rs.2,482.52 Lakhs as compared to Rs.3,409.29 Lakhs 
during the previous year. 
 
iv) Other Income 
 
During the year under review other income of the Company was Rs.403.89 Lakhs as compared to Rs.7.43 Lakhs during the 
previous year.  
 
v) Interest and Finance Charges 
 
During the year under review total interest and finance charges were Rs.1,683.94 Lakhs as  compared to Rs.2,467.32 Lakhs 
during the previous year. 
 
vi) Tax Expense 
 
During the year under review current tax expenses were Rs.83.97 Lakhs and deferred tax expenses were Rs. (144.63)  
Lakhs as compared to Rs.210.76 Lakhs and Rs.10.02 Lakhs respectively during the previous year 
 
vii) RBI Guidelines 
 
The Company has complied with all the applicable rules and regulations of the Reserve Bank of India. 
 
viii) Human Resources/ Industrial Relations 
 
The Company has a dedicated team who has been contributing to the progress and growth of the Company. The manpower 
requirement at the offices of the Company is assessed continuously and recruitment is conducted accordingly. 
 
ix) Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year along 

with a detailed explanation thereof 
 
During the year under review, the return on networth as compared to the immediately previous financial year is 
decremental.  
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x) Performance during the year 
 
During the year under review, there was impairment of financial assets for Rs.834.53 Lakhs as compared to Rs.198.76 
during the previous year.  Consequently, during the year under review, the Company incurred loss (before tax) of 
Rs.156.84 Lakhs as compared to the Profit of Rs.627.04 Lakhs during the previous year.  
 
  

By Order of the Board of Directors                                                                     
For SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 

 
Place: New Delhi  
Dated:  13th August, 2021 

Kuldeep Singh Solanki  
Director 

DIN: 00009212 

Rudra Sen Sindhu 
Director 

DIN:00006999 
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT 

To, 
The Board of Directors, 
Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 
  
This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees. In addition, the Company has 
adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. These Codes are available on the 
Company’s website. 
 
I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel, 
affirmation that they have complied with the ‘Code of Conduct’ and ‘Our Code’ in respect of the Financial Year 2020-21. 
 
 
Place: New Delhi                                       Akash Shrivastava  
Date: 13th August, 2021                                 Chief Executive Officer 

 
 

CEO / CFO Certification 
 

To 
The Board of Directors 
Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 
 
1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of Sainik Finance & Industries Limited for the 

financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 and certify that these statements, to the best of our knowledge and belief : 
 
i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 

that might be misleading. 
 

ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which 

are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct. 
 
3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 

evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have not 
come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls. 
 

4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that: 
i) There are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
ii) There are change no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; however, the financial statement 

for the year ended 31 March, 2021 has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Indian Accounting 
Standard (IndAS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to 
time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with guidelines issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) 
as applicable to a Non-Banking Finance Company (‘NBFC’)  

iii) There are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware. 
 

 
 
 
 
Place: New Delhi  
Dated: 13th  August, 2021 

For and on behalf of the Company 
SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 
 

Akash Shrivastava  Jagdish Chandra  
Chief Executive Officer           Chief Financial Officer 

 
 

  

50



SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L26912DL1991PLC045449 

  

 
 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To 
The Members 
Sainik Finance & Industries Limited  
 
1. The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Sainik Finance & Industries Limited (hereinafter referred as to the 

“Company”), contains details as required by the provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing Regulations”) 
(‘Applicable criteria’) with respect to Corporate Governance for the year ended 31 March 2021. This report is required 
by the Company to be annexed with the Directors’ Report, in terms of Para E of Schedule V to the aforesaid Listing 
Regulations, for further being sent to the Shareholders of the Company. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 

 
2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company 

including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the Corporate Governance Report. 
 

3. The Management along with the Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with 
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, our responsibility is to express a reasonable assurance in the 
form of an opinion whether the Company has complied with the specific requirements of the Listing Regulations 
referred to in paragraph 3 above. 
 

5. We conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance Report in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports 
or Certificates for Special Purposes and the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). The Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special 
Purposes requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI. 
 

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality 
Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and 
Related Services Engagements. 
 

7. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks associated in 
compliance of the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria. Summary of key procedures performed 
include: 

 
i. Reading and understanding of the information prepared by the Company and included in its Corporate 

Governance Report; 
ii. Obtained and verified that the composition of the Board of Directors w.r.t. executive and non-executive directors 

has been met throughout the reporting period; 
iii. Obtained and read the Directors Register as on 31 March 2021 and verified that at least one women director was 

on the Board during the year; 
iv. Obtained and read the minutes of the following meetings held between 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021; 

a. Board of Directors meetings; 
b. Audit committee meetings; 
c. Nomination and remuneration committee meetings; 
d. Stakeholders Relationship committee meetings 
e. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meeting ; and 
f. Annual General meeting; 

 
v. Obtained necessary representations and declarations from directors of the Company including the independent 

directors; and 
vi. Performed necessary inquiries with the management and also obtained necessary specific representations from 

management. 
 

51



SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L26912DL1991PLC045449 

  

 
 

The above-mentioned procedures include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance 
Report on a test basis. Further, our scope of work under this report did not involve us performing audit tests for the 
purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or the financial 
statements of the Company taken as a whole. 

 
Opinion 

 
8. Based on the procedures performed by us as referred in paragraph 7 above, and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, as applicable for the year ended 31 March 2021, referred to in 
paragraph 1 above. 
 
Other matters and Restriction on Use 
 

9. This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

10. This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to 
comply with its obligations under the Listing Regulations with reference to compliance with the relevant regulations of 
Corporate Governance and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not 
accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or 
into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update this report for 
events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 13th August, 2021 

For Nagar Goel & Chawla 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 009933N 
 
Karan Sabharwal  
Partner 
Membership No.523373  
UDIN 21523373AAAADU2770 

 
  

52



SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L26912DL1991PLC045449 

  

 
 

Annexure- D 
FORM AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties 
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction 
under third proviso is given below: 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:  
Sainik Finance & Industries has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related parties 
which is not at arm’s length during financial year 2020-21. 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis and in ordinary course of business: 
 

S. 
No. 

Name of Related 
Party  

Nature of Relation 
Ship 

Nature of 
Contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transaction 

Duration of 
the contracts / 
arrangements / 
transaction 

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transaction 

Date of 
approval by 
the Board 

Amount 
incurred 
during the 
year (Rs. In 
lakhs) 

1. Indus Portfolio 
Private Limited 

Common 
directorship 

Services received  N.A. RTA Services 
received  

N.A. 0.64 

2. Kapil Constructions 
Private Limited 

Director is 
shareholder and 
Relative of  director 
is director  

Services Received  N.A. Rent paid N.A. NIL 

3. 
 

ACB (India) 
Limited (Spectrum 
Coal and Power 
Limited  merged 
with ACB (India) 
Limited) w.e.f 
18.02.2020) 

Common Directors ICD refunded 
back 
 

Repayable on 
demand  

ICD taken 
repayable on 
demand  

N.A. 820.00 

Interest paid  N.A. Interest paid on ICD 
taken and which is 
repayable on 
demand 

N.A. 588.82 

4. Kartikay 
Exploration and 
Mining Services 
Private Limited  

Director’s relative 
is director and 
member 

ICD received back  Repayable on 
demand 

ICD given 
repayable on 
demand 

N.A 105.00 

Interest due  N.A. Interest on ICD 
given which is 
repayable on 
demand   

N.A. 08.09 

5. Indus Automobiles 
Private Limited  

Common 
shareholders  

Sale of Fixed 
Assets  

N.A. Advance against 
property received  

12-11-2019 407.38 

Credit Balance 
Written off. 

N.A. Credit Balance 
Written Off. 

N.A. 21.20 

Advance Received  N.A. Advance Received  N.A. 34.29 
6. Sainik Automobiles  Director’s relative 

is partner 
Interest due (un-
matured interest 
income)  

N.A Interest on ICD 
given which is 
repayable on 
demand 

N.A. 4.25 

7. Mittersen Agro 
Farms Private 
Limited 

Relative is 
shareholder 

Interest payment 
due  

Repayable on 
demand 

Interest payment 
due on ICD taken 
which is repayable 
on demand  

N.A 13.86 

8. Sh. Akash 
Shrivastava  

Chief Executive 
Officer  

Salary paid  N.A. Payment of Salary 
to KMP 

N.A. 24.22 

Loan Given N.A. Loan given N.A. 10.00 
Interest accrued N.A. Interest  N.A. 0.35 

9. Sh. Jagdish Chandra Chief Financial 
Officer 

Salary Paid  N.A. Payment of Salary 
to KMP 

N.A. 14.80 

10. Ms. Renu  Company Secretary  Salary Paid N.A. Payment of Salary 
to KMP 

N.A. 1.20 

11. Samai Singh Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fee paid  N.A. Sitting Fee paid  N.A. 1.10 

12. Nishi Sabharwal Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fee paid N.A. Sitting Fee paid N.A. 0.40 

13. Ramesh Shah Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fee paid N.A. Sitting Fee paid N.A. 0.35 

14 Renuka Hooda Independent 
Director 

Sitting Fee paid N.A. Sitting Fee paid N.A. 0.85 
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Annexure- E 
 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
To,  
The Members of  
Sainik Finance & Industries Limited  
129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road,  
Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi- 110035. 
 
1. That Sainik Finance & Industries Limited (CIN-L26912DL1991PLC045449) is having registered office at 129, 

Transport Centre, Rohtak Road, Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi -110035 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’). The 
equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited. 

 
2. We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of the 

Company on our emal, produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Sub clause 10 (i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

3. As on 31st March, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of the following directors: 
SL. 
No. 

Name of Director DIN Date of initial appointment in 
the Company 

Date of re-appointment  in 
the Company (AGM date)* 

1. Rudra Sen Sindhu 00006999 22/08/1991 - 
2. Kuldeep Singh Solanki 00009212 27/03/1997 - 
3. Samai Singh*   00235036 31/07/2013 28/09/2017 
4. Ramesh Shah* 00029864 25/06/2020 30/09/2020 
5. Sarvesh Sindhu* 06545787 25/06/2020 30/09/2020 
6. Nishi Sabharwal 06963293 12//11/2020 - 

*Sh. Samai Singh, independent directors of the Company has been reappointed as independent directors of the 
Company for second term of 5 years at Annual General Meetings held on September 28, 2017 and Ramesh Shah who 
was appointed as Independent Director of the Company at Board meeting held on June 25, 2020 has been reappointed 
as independent director of the Company for the term of 5 years at Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 
2020. Further Sh. Sarvesh Sindhu who has appointed as additional director of the Company w.e.f. June 25, 2020 has 
been appointed as Director of the Company at Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2020. Mrs. Nishi 
Sabharwal was appointed as woman Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. November 12, 2020 

 
4. Based on verification and examination of the disclosures/ register under section 184/ 189, 170, 164, 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and DIN based search on MCA Portal (www.mca.gov.in), we certify as under: 
 

 None of the above named Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India /Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2021. 
 

5. Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
6. This certificate is based on the information and records available up to date of this certificate and we have no 

responsibility to update this certificate for the events and circumstances occurring after the date of the certificate. 
 

7. Further, in view of the high spread Corona Virus (COVID-19 pandemic), we have verified the information and 
documents which are provided by the management of the Company on the email but we have not verified any 
documents physically. 

 For S. S. Bhati & Associates 
Company Secretaries  

 
 
Place: Noida  
Date:  April 28, 2021 

Satyapal Singh Bhati 
Proprietor 

FCS No. 8252, C.P. No. 9387 
UDIN-F008252C000196858 
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Annexure- F 

THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 
 
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

 
a) Introduction 

 
The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities of Sainik Finance & Industries Limited (“SFIL” or “the 
Company”) are guided by the vision and philosophy of its Promoters. They believe SFIL does not grow by making 
financial profits only, it grow if it contribute consistently for the growth of the society and environment to which they 
belong. The Company strongly believes in the theory of participative growth, enhancing societal /environment 
commitments. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is a tool which can be used for sustainable development. SFIL 
recognizes this and intends to contribute to the social cause by making donations towards various charitable activities 
and supporting rural development and education initiatives by financing various activities like building of educational 
institutions, repair and maintenance of roads, installation of hand pumps and other accessories in villages etc.  The 
Company being a corporate entity falling within the purview of Section 135 of the Act read with CSR Rules made 
thereunder. The CSR Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), has in exercise of 
its authority and discharge of its responsibility, formulated a CSR Policy, which has been approved by the Board as the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company.  
 
The Company addresses the needs of communities in the areas of health, education, environment conservation, 
infrastructure and community development and response to natural calamities. The Company intended to fine tune its 
activities around the activities specified in schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

b) Guiding Principles 
 

Sainik Finance & Industries Limited believes that social investments should: 
 

i) Benefit Generations: The Company believes in ‘investment in resource creation’ for use over generations. 
The Company tries to identify sustainable projects which will benefit the society for long periods.  

ii) Promote Health: The Company believes that good health is pre-requisite for both education and productivity. 
iii) Encourage for Self-help: To guide and do hand-holding for self-help, individually and collectively, to create 

excellence for self and for the team. 
iv) Target those who need it most: Care for the sections of the society that are socially and economically at the 

lowest rung irrespective of their religion or caste or language or colour. 
v) Sustain Natural Resources: The Company encourages balanced development and ensure least adverse impact 

on environment- ‘Growth with Mother Nature blessings’ 
 
c) CSR Policy 

 
A detailed CSR policy was framed by the Company with approvals of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
(CSR Committee). CSR policy has been approved by the Board. CSR policy gives an overview of the projects or 
programs or activities which are proposed to be undertaken by the Company in the coming years. The CSR policy is 
placed on the Company’s website www.sainikfinance.com  

 
2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

 
Sl. 
No 

Name of Director Designation /Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 
during the year 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee 
attended during the year 

1 Sh. Rudra Sen Sindhu Chairman  
Non- Executive 
Director 

1 1 

2. Sh. Kuldeep Singh Solanki  Member 
Non- executive Director 

1 1 

3. Mrs. Renuka Hooda* Member  
Independent Director 

1 1 

4. Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal*  Member  
Independent Director 

N.A. N.A 

*Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal has been appointed as member of CSR Committee in place of outgoing independent directors Mrs. Renuka 
Hood who tendered her resignation from the Board w.e.f. 12-11-2020.   
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3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed 
on the website of the Company are http://www.sainikfinance.com/management.html and 
http://www.sainikfinance.com/investors.html respectively. 
 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not applicable  
 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: 

 
Sl. 
No. 

Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (Rs.in 
Lakh) 

Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, 
if any (in Rs.in Lakh) 

Not Applicable 
 
6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Average net profit of the Company for the last three 

financial years i.e. 31-03-2018, 31-03-2019 and 31-03-2020: Rs.658.46 Lakh. 
 

7. Details net profit, set off, CSR obligations etc.:  
a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs.13.17 Lakhs 
b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years 
NIL 

c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any NIL 
d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c) Rs.13.17 Lakhs 

 
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
 

Total Amount Spent for 
the financial year ended 
31st March, 2021(Rs in 
Lakh)  
  

Amount Unspent (Rs in Lakh)  
Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5) 

Amount  Date of 
Transfer  

Name of the 
Fund 

Amount. Date of transfer. 

13.20  NIL N.A. N.A. NIL N.A. 
   
 (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 
 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 
Sl. 
No. 

Name 
of the 
Project. 

Item 
from the 
list of 
activities 
in 
Schedul
e VII to 
the Act 

Local 
area 
(Yes 
/No). 

Location of the 
project. 

Project 
durat-
ion. 

Amount 
allocated 
For the 
project (in 
Rs.). 

Amount 
spent in 
the 
current 
fina-ncial 
Year (in 
Rs.). 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account for 
the project as 
per 
Section 
135(6) (in 
Rs.). 

Mode of 
Implementa
tion- Direct 
(Yes /No). 

Mode of Implemen 
tation–Through 
Implementing 
Agency 

    

State Distr-
ict. 

     Name CSR 
Regist-
ration 
number 

             
Not Applicable 

 
 (c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 
 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
Project 

Item from the 
list of 
activities in 
schedule VII 
to the Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No). 

Location of the project. Amount 
spent for the 
project (in 
Rs.). 

Mode 
of impleme
nttation 
Direct  
(Yes/No). 

Mode of implementation –Through 
implementing 
agency. 

State. District. Name. CSR registra
tion number. 

1. Providing 
health care 
facility 

Clause (i) 
Promoting 
health care 
including 

No Rajasthan Balana 3,34,020 No Solanki Shiksha 
And Manav 
Nirman Sanstha 

N.A.* 
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preventive 
health care 
etc. 

2. Promotion of 
Education  

Clause (ii) 
promoting 
education 

No Karnataka Bangalore  2,21,480 No Solanki Shiksha 
And Manav 
Nirman Sanstha 

N.A.* 

3. Promotion of 
Sports  

Clause (iv) 
training to 
promote 
sports 
 

Yes New Delhi New Delhi 1,04,500 No Solanki Shiksha 
And Manav 
Nirman Sanstha 

N.A.* 

4. Promoting 
Education 
Facility  

Clause (ii) 
promoting 
education 

Yes Haryana Hissar 6,60,000 No. Param Mitra 
Manav Nirman 
Sanstahn 

CSR000087
20 

Total  13,20,000    
* Detail are pertaining upto 31st March 2021 and registration is required on or after 1st April 2021. 
 
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads     : NIL 
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable   : NIL  
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)   : Rs.13.20 Lakh 
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: 
Sl No. Particular Amount (Rs in Lakh) 
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 13.17   
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 13.20 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil  
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years, if any 
Nil  

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil  
   
 
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 
 
Sl. No. Preceding 

Financial 
Year. 

Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account 
under section 135 (6) 
(in Rs.) 

Amount spent in 
the 
reporting Financial 
Year (in Rs.). 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
section 135(6), if any. 

Amount remaining to be 
spent in 
succeeding financial years. 
(in Rs.) 

    Name 
of the 
Fund 

Amount 
(in Rs) 

Date of 
transfer 

 

Not Applicable 
 

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 
Sl. No. Project ID. Name of 

the Project. 
Financial Year in 
which the project 
was commenced. 

Project 
duration. 

Total 
amount 
allocated 
for the 
project 
(in Rs.). 

Amount 
spent on the 
project in 
the reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 
Rs). 

Cumulative 
amount spent at 
the end of 
reporting 
Financial Year. 
(in Rs.) 

Status of the 
project -
Completed 
/Ongoing. 

         
Not Applicable 

 
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through 

CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): Nil 
 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable 
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Not Applicable 
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their 

address etc.: Not Applicable 
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital 

asset): Not Applicable 
 
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): 

Not applicable. 
   
Date :  13th August, 2021 
Place : New Delhi 

Rudra Sen Sindhu  
Chairman of the CSR Committee 

Kuldeep Singh Solanki  
Director 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
To the Members of  Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Sainik Finance & Industries Limited  comprising of 
the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the 
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘the Ind AS financial statements’). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (‘the Act’) in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, their losses including other comprehensive income, their cash 
flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the  Ind AS financial statements. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
We draw attention to note no. 40 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements in terms of which it has been reported 
that in certain cases, the Company has advanced loans on which no amount has been received against the principal and 
interest accrued thereon but the same is in accordance with the loan agreements entered by the Company which 
provides for payment of interest along with principal amount or at the expiry of the said loan agreements. Although, the 
Company is confident of the recovery of the said amounts as per respective terms of the loan agreements and has 
obtained declarations and confirmations from the respective parties. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key Audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
 
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We 
have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance 
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 
statements.  
The results of audit procedures performed by us, including those procedures performed to address the matters below, 
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Ind AS financial statements 
 
Sl. Key Audit matter Auditors’ Response 
 
1. 
 
 
 

 
Impairment on financial assets (expected credit 
losses). 
Ind AS 109 requires the Company to recognise 
impairment loss allowance towards its financial assets 

 
We read and assessed the Company’s accounting policies for 
impairment of financial assets and their compliance with Ind 
AS 109. 

 We tested the criteria for staging of loans based on 
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Sl. Key Audit matter Auditors’ Response 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(designated at amortised cost and fair value through 
other comprehensive income) using the expected 
credit loss (ECL) approach. Such ECL allowance is 
required to be measured considering the guiding 
principles of Ind AS 109 including:  

 unbiased, probability weighted outcome 
under various scenarios;  

 time value of money;  
 impact arising from forward looking macro-

economic factors and;  
 availability of reasonable and supportable 

information without undue costs.  
 
Applying these principles involves significant 
estimation in various aspects, such as:  

 grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity 
by using appropriate statistical techniques;  

 staging of loans and estimation of behavioral 
life;  

 determining macro-economic factors 
impacting credit quality of receivables;  

 estimation of losses for loan products with 
no/minimal historical defaults.  

 
Considering the significance of such allowance to the 
overall financial statements and the degree of 
estimation involved in computation of expected credit 
losses, this area is considered as a key audit matter. 

their past-due status to check compliance with 
requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of 
performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any loss 
indicators were present requiring them to be classified 
under stage 2 or 3 and vice versa.  

 
 We evaluated the reasonableness of the Management 

estimates by understanding the process of ECL 
estimation and tested the controls around data 
extraction and validation. 

 Tested the ECL model, including assumptions and 
underlying computation.  

 Assessed the floor/minimum rates of provisioning 
applied for loan products with inadequate historical 
defaults.  

 Audited disclosures included in the Ind AS financial 
statements in respect of expected credit losses. 

 
 Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon 
 

 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information which comprises the 
Director’s Report including annexures to Director’s Report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report and 
Report on Corporate Governance, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 

 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and accordingly, we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with financial statements  or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 Based on the work we have performed, if  we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information;  we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS financial 
statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and  statement of changes in equity  in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified 
under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose 
of preparation of the Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.  
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In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies are responsible for 
assessing the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Those respective Board of Directors of the Companies are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
process of the Company. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement on the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, desssign and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind 
AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charge with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public benefits of such communication.  
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
 
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements; 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books. 
 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, 
the Cash Flow Statement and  Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Ind AS financial statements; 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 
of the Act.  
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2021 taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31  March, 2021 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure (B)”.  
 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the  requirements  of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our information and accordingly to the 
explanations given to us, no remuneration has been paid by the company to its directors during the year. 
 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

 
i. There is no pending litigation which would have its impact on Ind AS financial statement of the 

Company. 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses. 
iii. There are no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company. 
 

For Nagar Goel & Chawla 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 009933N 
 
Karan Sabberwal 
Partner 
Membership No. : 523373 
UDIN: 21523373AAAADO1668 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 30 June 2021 
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ANNEXURE (A) TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March, 2021, we report that: 
 
(i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper records 

showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets (property, plant and 
equipment). 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a regular programme of physical 

verification of its property, plant and equipment by which all fixed assets (property, plant and equipment) are 
verified at periodic intervals. In our opinion, the period of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed during physical verification of 
fixed assets (property, plant and equipment). 

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

the Company, all immovable property has been sold during the year and accordingly there is no immovable 
property as on 31 March 2021. 
 

(ii) The company does not hold any physical inventory as at year end. Accordingly paragraph 3(ii) of the order is 
not applicable to the company. 
 

(iii) The company has granted loans to companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013(‘the Act’) 
a) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans have 

been granted to the companieslisted in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act  were not, prim
a facie, prejudicial to the interests of the Company. 
 

b) In our opinion, the borrowers have been regular in the repayment of the principal and payment of interest 
on loans where so stipulated unless the arrangement does not contain any such schedule for repayment of 
principal/interest. 

 
c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loans granted to companies listed in the register maintained 

under Section 189 of the Act. 

 
(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company did not make 

any investment as per provisions of section 186(1) of the Act. Further, the Company is exempted from 
compliance of section 185 and 186 (except sub-section “1” of Section 186) of the Act. 
 

(v) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the public. Accordingly, the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India  and the provisions of section 73 to 76 
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder in this regard, are not applicable. 
 

(vi) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Central Government has not specified for 
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the activities carried 
on by the Company. Hence, the provisions of paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(vii) In respect of statutory dues; 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales 
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tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, goods and service tax and other material statutory 
dues, as applicable.  

 
Further, there are no undisputed amounts payable outstanding as at 31 March, 2021 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they become payable. 

 
(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material statutory dues which have not 

been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.  
 

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised loan 
or borrowings from banks, financial institutions, and Government or debenture holders during the year under 
audit and therefore paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(ix) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not raised any moneys by way 
of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and not availed the facility of term 
loans during the year under audit and therefore paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, no fraud on or by the company or any fraud by its officers or employees was noticed or reported during the 
year. 
 

(xi) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no managerial 
remuneration has been paid or provided during the year under audit. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order 
is not applicable on the Company. 
 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 
 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year under audit. 
 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(xvi) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

For Nagar Goel & Chawla 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 009933N 
 
Karan Sabberwal 
Partner 
Membership No. : 523373 
UDIN: 21523373AAAADO1668 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 30 June 2021 
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ANNEXURE- (B) TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sainik Finance & Industries Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit with reference to these Ind AS financial statements. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements.   
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that  
 

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company;  
 

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and  
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3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements. 
 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, 
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. 
 
For Nagar Goel & Chawla 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 009933N 
 
Karan Sabberwal 
Partner 
Membership No. : 523373 
UDIN: 21523373AAAADO1668 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 30 June 2021 
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Sainik Finance & Industries Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

ASSETS
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 9.75                                      6.99                                       
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents -                                        -                                         
Receivables -

Trade Receivable -                                        -                                         
Other Receivable -                                        -                                         

Loans 4 21,451.34                             22,210.84                              
Investments 5 0.39                                      0.39                                       
Other financial assets  6 1,465.04                               3,037.41                                

22,926.52                             25,255.63                              
Non-financial Assets

Current tax assets (Net) 7 209.98                                  219.38                                   
Deferred tax assets (Net) 8 268.28                                  123.64                                   
Property, plant and equipments 9 0.01                                      27.26                                     
Other non-financial assets 10 4.50                                      6.49                                       

482.77                                  376.77                                   

Total assets 23,409.29                             25,632.40                              

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Payables
Trade Payables -
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises -                                        -                                         
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 
     small enterprises

11 3.26                                      4.72                                       

Other Payables-
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises -                                        -                                         
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 
     small enterprises

-                                        -                                         

Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 12 16,240.82                             17,819.48                              
Other financial liabilities 13 2,646.56                               2,768.54                                

18,890.64                             20,592.74                              
Non-financial Liabilities

Provisions 14 29.40                                    28.30                                     
Other non-financial liabilities 15 165.56                                  593.58                                   

194.96                                  621.88                                   
EQUITY
Shareholder's funds

Equity Share capital 16 1,088.00                               1,088.00                                
Other equity 17 3,235.69                               3,329.78                                

4,323.69                               4,417.78                                

Total liabilities and equity 23,409.29                             25,632.40                              

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts 1-2 0.00                                      (0.00)                                      
As per our report of even date
For  Nagar Goel & Chawla On behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants For  Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 009933N

Karan Sabberwal Rudra Sen Sindhu Kuldeep Singh Solanki
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 523373 DIN-00006999 DIN-00009212

Akash Shrivastava Renu
Chief Executive Officer Company secretary
PAN-BAYPS2407Q PAN-BUPPR8662B 

Jagdish Chandra
Place : New Delhi Chief financial officer
Date  : 30 June 2021 PAN-AAJPU3255G
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Sainik Finance & Industries Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note
For the year ended                 

31 March 2021
For the year ended            

31 March 2020

I Revenue from operations:
Interest Income 18                              2,078.63                          3,401.86 

II Other income 19                                 403.89                                 7.43 

III Total Income (I+II) 2,482.52                            3,409.29                         

Expenses:
Finance costs 20 1,683.94                            2,467.32                         
Impairment of financial instruments 21 834.53                               198.76                            
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in- trade and work-in-
progress

22 -                                     0.03                                

Employee benefits expense 23 62.29                                 62.65                              
Depreciation and amortization 24 0.34                                   0.71                                
Other expenses 25 58.26                                 52.78                              

IV Total expenses 2,639.36                            2,782.25                         

V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax  (III-IV)
(156.84)                              627.04                            

VI Exceptional items -                                     -                                 
VII Profit before tax ( V-VI )   (156.84)                              627.04                            
VIII Tax expense:

(1) Current tax 83.31                                 210.76                            
(2) Deferred tax(Credit) (144.63)                              10.02                              

(61.32)                                220.78                            
IX Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIII ) (95.52)                                406.26                            
X Profit/(Loss) for the period from discontinuing operations -                                     -                                 
XI Tax expense of discontinuing operations -                                     -                                 
XII Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations (after tax) ( X-XI ) -                                     -                                 
XIII Profit for the period  (IX-X) (95.52)                                406.26                            
XIV Other Comprehensive Income -                                     -                                 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss
Remeasurement gain/(losses) on defined benefit plan 2.63                                   (9.67)                              
Tax impact on above (0.66)                                  2.44                                
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) 1.97                                   (7.23)                              

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (93.55)                                399.03                            

Earnings per equity share:
Basic and diluted earning per share (in Rs.) 38 (0.88)                                  3.73                                
[face value of Rs. 10 each]

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-2

As per our report of even date
For  Nagar Goel & Chawla On behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants For  Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 009933N

Karan Sabberwal Rudra Sen Sindhu Kuldeep Singh Solanki
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 523373 DIN-00006999 DIN-00009212

Akash Shrivastava Renu
Chief Executive Officer Company secretary
PAN-BAYPS2407Q PAN-BUPPR8662B 

Jagdish Chandra
Place : New Delhi Chief financial officer
Date  : 30 June 2021 PAN-AAJPU3255G

Particulars
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Sainik Finance & Industries Limited
Statement  of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 For the year ended
  31 March 2021 

 For the year ended
31 March 2020 

A)   Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit before tax                                    (156.84)                                    627.04 
Adjustments for   :-
Depreciation and amortisation 0.34                                                                               0.71 
Impairement of financial instruments 834.53                                                                       198.76 
Profit on sale of fixed assets (378.08)                                                                             -   
Bad debt  written off (net) -                                                                                 1.44 
Sundry balance written back (21.20)                                                                               -   
Investment Adjustment                                             -                                        (0.07)
Provision made for gratuity                                         1.11                                        2.76 
Operating profit before working capital changes-                                     279.86                                    830.64 
Adjustments for   :-
(Increase)/Decrease in loans and advances (53.83)                                                                    1,780.49 
Decrease/ (Increase) in other financial assets                                  1,572.37                                  (575.39)
Decrease in other non financial assets                                         1.99                                            -   
Decrease in inventories                                             -                                          0.03 
(Decrease)/ Increase  in trade payables & other liabilities                                    (548.85)                                 1,287.72 
Cash used in operations-                                  1,251.54                                 3,323.49 
Income tax refund                                       85.67                                      87.07 
Income tax paid                                    (160.80)                                  (342.62)
Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Items                                  1,176.41                                 3,067.93 
Extraordinary items                                             -                                              -   
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)                                  1,176.41                                 3,067.93 

B)   Cash flow from investing activities:
Proceeds from Sale of Assets                                     405.01                                            -   
Proceeds from bank deposits                                             -                                        30.35 
Net cash  flow from investing activities  (B)                                                  405.01                                      30.35 

C)   Cash flow from financing activities:
Repayment of borrowing                                 (1,578.66)                               (3,127.77)
Net cash used in financing activities  (C )                                 (1,578.66)                               (3,127.77)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)                                         2.76                                    (29.49)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year (refer note no. 3 )                                         6.99                                      36.48 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (refer note no. 3 )
  -  Cash and cash equivalents                                         9.75                                        6.99 
  -  Non-current bank balances                                             -                                              -   

                                        9.75                                        6.99 
     

Cash and cash equivalents comprises:                                        (0.00)                                      (0.00)
 For the year ended

  31 March 2021 
 For the year ended

31 March 2020 

                                        0.13                                        0.86 
                                        3.06                                        6.13 
                                        6.56                                            -   
                                        9.75                                        6.99 

Note : The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect method' as set out in Ind AS 7 on 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

As per our report of even date
For  Nagar Goel & Chawla On behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants For  Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 009933N

Karan Sabberwal Rudra Sen Sindhu Kuldeep Singh Solanki
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 523373 DIN-00006999 DIN-00009212

Akash Shrivastava Renu Jagdish Chandra
Place : New Delhi Chief Executive Officer Company secretary Chief financial officer
Date  : 30 June 2021 PAN-BAYPS2407Q PAN-BUPPR8662B PAN-AAJPU3255G

        Particulars

Particulars

Cash-in-hand
Balance with banks-  in Current account
Cheques in hand
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Sainik Finance & Industries Limited
Statement  of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital
Amount

Balance as at 01 April 2019 1,088.00        
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2019-20 -                
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,088.00        
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2020-21 -                
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,088.00        

b. Other equity

Particulars
Total

Securities 
premium 
account

General 
reserve

Statutory 
Reserve under 
Section 45-IC of 
the RBI Act, 
1934

Retained 
earnings

Items of 
Other 

comprehensi
ve income

Balance as at 01 April 2019 400.15           71.92        758.69               1,699.45       0.56             2,930.77   
Profit for the year -            406.26          406.26      
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) -                -            -                    -                (7.23)            (7.23)         
Total comprehensive income for the year -                -            -                    406.26          (7.23)            399.03      
Transfer to reserve fund in terms of section 45-IC(1) of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 81.25                 (81.25)          -               -            
Demand/(excess) provision of income tax for earlier years (0.01)            -               (0.01)         
Balance as at 31 March 2020 400.15           71.92        839.94               2,024.44       (6.67)            3,329.78   

-            
Balance as at 01 April 2020 400.15           71.92        839.94               2,024.44       (6.67)            3,329.78   
Profit for the year -                -            (95.52)          -               (95.52)       
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) -                -            -                1.97             1.97          
Total comprehensive income for the year -                -            -                    (95.52)          1.97             (93.55)       

Transfer to reserve fund in terms of section 45-IC(1) of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 -                -                    -                -               -            
Demand/(excess) provision of income tax for earlier years -                -            (0.54)            -               (0.54)         
Balance as at 31 March 2021 400.15           71.92        839.94               1,928.39       (4.70)            3,235.69   

As per our report of even date
For Nagar Goel & Chawla On behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants For  Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 009933N

Karan Sabberwal Rudra Sen Sindhu Kuldeep Singh Solanki
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 523373 DIN-00006999 DIN-00009212

Akash Shrivastava Renu
Chief Executive Officer Company secretary
PAN-BAYPS2407Q PAN-BUPPR8662B 

Jagdish Chandra
Place : New Delhi Chief financial officer
Date  : 30 June 2021 PAN-AAJPU3255G

Other equity
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SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
Notes on the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2021  
(All amount are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 
 
 
1. Background 

 
The Company was incorporated on 22 August 1991 with Registrar of Companies, NCT Delhi and Haryana (ROC) in 
the name of Garuda Clays Limited.  Later on Ramanuj Leasing Limited which was incorporated on 02 January 1985 
with the object to carry on leasing & finance activities, was merged with Garuda Clays Limited by order of the Hon’ble 
High Court of Delhi dated 01 November 1999 and the said order was filed with ROC on 04 December 2000. The name 
of   Garuda Clays Limited was changed to the present name i.e. Sainik Finance & Industries Limited.  
 
The Company was earlier engaged in manufacturing of Portland cement (ITC Code: 25.23.29.10) and Pre-Stressed 
Concrete Pole (ITC Code-68.69.60.00).  The business operation with respect to manufacturing of Portland cement and 
Pre-Stressed Poles were discontinued in July, 2012. The Company disposed-off the Plant & machinery and factory 
structure during the previous years.   
 
The Company is presently engaged in non-banking finance activities and is registered with Reserve Bank of India as 
Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC).  The Reserve Bank of India has issued its Certificate of Registration No. 
N.14.02967 dated 03 September 2003.    
   

 
2. Significant accounting policies 
 

2.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements 
 
The accompanying financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
(‘Ind AS’) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and 
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with guidelines issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) as applicable to a 
Non Banking Finance Company (‘NBFC’). The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except in case of significant uncertainties. The accounting policies 
have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year. The 
financial statements are presented in Indian rupees. 

 
2.2 Presentation of financial statements 

 
The Company presents its Balance Sheet in order of liquidity. The Company generally reports financial assets and 
financial liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance Sheet. They are offset and reported net only when Ind AS 
specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts 
without being contingent on a future event. Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the 
same on a net basis when permitted by Ind AS specifically unless they are material in nature.  
 
Critical accounting estimates and judgments  
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates and 
judgments. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of items, it is 
possible that the outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from those on which the Management’s 
estimates are based. Accounting estimates and judgments are used in various line items in the financial statements 
for e.g.: 

 Business model assessment [Refer note no.2.15(i)]  
 Fair value of financial instruments [Refer note no.2.16, 31] 
 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) [Refer note no. 2.4]  
 Impairment on financial assets [Refer note no.2.15(i), 30]  
 Provisions and other contingent liabilities [Refer note no. 2.8, 34]  
 Provision for tax expenses [Refer note no. 2.10, 28] 
 Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment [Refer note no.2.6] 

 
2.3 Current/ Non-current classification 

 
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current. 
Assets 
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
(a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating 

cycle; 
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
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SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
Notes on the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2021  
(All amount are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 
 

 
(c) it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
(d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least 12 months after the reporting date. 
 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 
Liabilities 
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
(a) it is expected to be settled in, the company’s normal operating cycle; 
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
(c) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or   
(d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months 

after the reporting date. 
 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
 
Operating cycle 
Based on the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their 
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current. 
 

2.4 Revenue recognition 
 
Interest income 

            The Company recognises interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all    financial assets subsequently 
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). EIR is calculated by 
considering all costs and incomes attributable to acquisition of a financial asset or assumption of a financial liability 
and it represents a rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments/receipts through the expected life of 
the financial asset/financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a 
financial liability.  

 
The Company recognises interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other 
than credit-impaired assets. In case of credit-impaired financial assets regarded as ‘stage 3’, the Company 
recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of impairment loss of the financial asset at EIR. If the financial 
asset is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.  
 
Delayed payment interest (penal interest) levied on customers for delay in repayments/non-payment of contractual 
cash flows is recognised on realisation. 
 
Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is recognised at the 
contractual rate of interest. 

 
2.5 Inventory 

 
Raw material, packing materials, stores and spares, finished goods, semi-finished goods & stocks in process are 
valued at cost or market price whichever is lower in accordance with valuation principles laid out in Ind AS-2. 

  
2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment 

 
Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, consistent with the criteria specified in Ind AS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ 

 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  
Depreciation / amortisation are provided over the useful life of the assets, pro rata for the period of use, on a 
straight-line method. The useful life estimates prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the 2013 Act have been 
considered as useful life for tangible assets. Acquired intangible assets are amortised over a period as per 
management estimates of their useful life. Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the month in which 
asset is ready for use. 
 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

71



 
 

SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
Notes on the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2021  
(All amount are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 
 

 
Gains / losses on disposal of assets 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included under other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the 
asset is derecognised. 
 

2.7 Impairment of non- financial assets 
 
An assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date to ascertain whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of asset is determined. If the carrying 
value of relevant asset is higher than the recoverable amount, the carrying value is written down accordingly. 
 

2.8 Provisions and contingent liabilities 
 

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires 
an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a 
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will 
not, require an outflow of resources. The Company also discloses present obligations for which a reliable estimate 
cannot be made. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of 
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.  
 

2.9 Earnings per share 
 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of 
all dilutive potential equity shares. 
 

2.10 Taxes 
 
i) Current tax 
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards 
(ICDS) prescribed therein. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in other equity. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 
 
ii) Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax 
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.  
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilized.  
 
Unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any, are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that 
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in 
OCI or in other equity. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and 
the same taxation authority. 
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SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
Notes on the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2021  
(All amount are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 
 
 

2.11 Employee benefits 
 

i) Short Term Employee Benefits: (i.e. benefits payable within one year) are recognized in the period in which 
employee services are rendered. 

 
ii) Contributions towards provident fund are recognized as expense. Provident Fund contributions in respect of all 

employees are made to Provident Fund Authorities.   
 

iii) Provision for gratuity payable has been made in accordance with the period of qualifying service put in by each 
employee of the Company from the date of joining and up to the end of the financial year.  

 
iv) Contribution to Central Government Employees State Insurance Scheme for eligible employees is recognized 

as charge for the year. 
 

2.12 Finance costs 
 
Borrowing costs on financial liabilities are recognised using the EIR. 

 
2.13 Provisions and contingencies 

 
The Company creates a provision when there is a  present obligation as a result of a past event that  probably 
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure  
for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably 
will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of 
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
 

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities 
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 

2.15 Financial Instruments 
 
A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Trade receivables and payables, loan receivables, investments in 
securities and subsidiaries, debt securities and other borrowings, preferential and equity capital etc. are some 
examples of financial instruments.  
 
All the financial instruments are recognised on the date when the Company becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instruments. For tradable securities, the Company recognises the financial instruments on 
settlement date.  
 

(i) Financial assets  
 

Financial assets include cash, or an equity instrument of another entity, or a contractual right to receive cash or 
another financial asset from another entity. Few examples of financial assets are loan receivables, investment in 
equity and debt instruments, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.  
 
Initial measurement  
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value including transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets except in the case of financial assets recorded at FVTPL where the transaction costs 
are charged to profit or loss. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into four categories:  
(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost  
(b) Debt instruments at FVOCI  
(c) Debt instruments at FVTPL  
(d) Equity instruments designated at FVOCI  
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SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
Notes on the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2021  
(All amount are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 
 

(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost  
The Company measures its financial assets at amortised cost if both the following    conditions are met:   
 The asset is held within a business model of collecting contractual cash flows; and  
 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Sole Payments of Principal and 

Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.  
 

To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as the nature of 
portfolio and the period for which the interest rate is set.  

 
The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets 
to achieve its business objective. The Company’s business model is not assessed on an instrument by instrument 
basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is 
different from the Company’s original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the 
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly 
originated financial assets going forward.  

 
The business model of the Company for assets subsequently measured at amortised cost category is to hold and 
collect contractual cash flows. However, considering the economic viability of carrying the delinquent portfolios in 
the books of the Company, it may sell these portfolios to banks and/or asset reconstruction companies.  

 
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost on effective interest 
rate (EIR). The expected credit loss (ECL) calculation for debt instruments at amortised cost is explained in 
subsequent notes in this section.  

 
(b) Debt instruments at FVOCI  
The Company subsequently classifies its financial assets as FVOCI, only if both of the following criteria are met:  

 
 The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 

financial assets; and  
 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal 

and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.  
 

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured at each reporting date at fair value with such 
changes being recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). The interest income on these assets is recognised 
in profit or loss. The ECL calculation for debt instruments at FVOCI is explained in subsequent notes in this section.  

 
Debt instruments such as long term investments in Government securities to meet regulatory liquid asset 
requirement of the Company’s deposit program and mortgage loans portfolio where the Company periodically 
resorts to partially selling the loans by way of assignment to willing buyers are classified as FVOCI.  

 
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss.  

 
(c) Debt instruments at FVTPL  
The Company classifies financial assets which are held for trading under FVTPL category. Held for trading assets 
are recorded and measured in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Interest and dividend incomes are recorded in interest 
income and dividend income, respectively according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to receive the 
same has been established. Gain and losses on changes in fair value of debt instruments are recognised on net basis 
through profit or loss.  

 
The Company’s investments into mutual funds, Government securities (trading portfolio) and certificate of deposits 
for trading and short term cash flow management have been classified under this category.  

 
(d) Equity investments designated under FVOCI  
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ are measured at fair value. The Company has 
strategic investments in equity for which it has elected to present subsequent changes in the fair value in other 
comprehensive income. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.  

 
All fair value changes of the equity instruments, excluding dividends, are recognised in OCI and not available for 
reclassification to profit or loss, even on sale of investments. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an 
impairment assessment. 
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De-recognition of Financial Assets  
The Company derecognises a financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) when:   

 The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or  
 The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under an 
assignment arrangement and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset. Once the asset is derecognised, the Company does not have any continuing involvement in the 
same.  
 

The Company transfers its financial assets through the partial assignment route and accordingly derecognises the 
transferred portion as it neither has any continuing involvement in the same nor does it retain any control. If the 
Company retains the right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing 
liability for that servicing contract. A service liability in respect of a service is recognised at fair value if the fee to 
be received is not expected to compensate the Company adequately for performing the service. If the fees to be 
received are expected to be more than adequate compensation for the servicing, a service asset is recognised for the 
servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial 
asset.  

 
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between:  

 the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and   
 the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is 

recognised in profit or loss.  
 
Impairment of financial assets  
ECL is recognised for financial assets held under amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI, and certain 
loan commitments.  
 
Financial assets where no significant increase in credit risk has been observed are considered to be in ‘stage 1’ and 
for which a 12 month ECL is recognised.  
 
Financial assets that are considered to have significant increase in credit risk are considered to be in ‘stage 2’ and 
those which are in default or for which there is an objective evidence of impairment are considered to be in ‘stage 
3’. Lifetime ECL is recognised for stage 2 and stage 3 financial assets.  
 
At initial recognition, allowance (or provision in the case of loan commitments) is required for ECL towards default 
events that are possible in the next 12 months, or less, where the remaining life is less than 12 months.  
 
In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, allowance (or provision) is required for ECL towards all possible 
default events over the expected life of the financial instrument (‘lifetime ECL’).  
 
Financial assets (and the related impairment loss allowances) are written off in full, when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery.  
 
Treatment of the different stages of financial assets and the methodology of determination of ECL  
 
(a) Credit impaired (stage 3)  

The Company recognises a financial asset to be credit impaired and in stage 3 by considering relevant objective 
evidence, primarily whether:  
 

 Contractual payments of either principal or interest are past due for more than 90 days;  
 The loan is otherwise considered to be in default.  

 
Restructured loans, where repayment terms are renegotiated as compared to the original contracted terms due 
to significant credit distress of the borrower, are classified as credit impaired. Such loans continue to be in 
stage 3 until they exhibit regular payment of renegotiated principal and interest over a minimum observation 
period, typically 12 months– post renegotiation, and there are no other indicators of impairment. Having 
satisfied the conditions of timely payment over the observation period these loans could be transferred to stage 
1 or 2 and a fresh assessment of the risk of default is done for such loans.  

 
Interest income is recognised by applying the EIR to the net amortised cost amount i.e. gross carrying amount 
less ECL allowance.  
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(b) Significant increase in credit risk (stage 2)  
An assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition is performed at each 
reporting period by considering the change in the risk of default of the loan exposure. However, unless 
identified at an earlier stage, 30 days past due is considered as an indication of financial assets to have suffered 
a significant increase in credit risk. Based on other indications such as borrower’s frequently delaying payments 
beyond due dates though not 30 days past due are included in stage 2 for mortgage loans.  
 
The measurement of risk of defaults under stage 2 is computed on homogenous portfolios, generally by nature 
of loans, tenors, underlying collateral, geographies and borrower profiles. The default risk is assessed using PD 
(probability of default) derived from past behavioural trends of default across the identified homogenous 
portfolios. These past trends factor in the past customer behavioural trends, credit transition probabilities and 
macroeconomic conditions. The assessed PDs are then aligned considering future economic conditions that are 
determined to have a bearing on ECL.  
 

(c) Without significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition (stage 1)  
ECL resulting from default events that are possible in the next 12 months is recognised for financial instruments 
in stage 1. The Company has ascertained default possibilities on past behavioural trends witnessed for each 
homogenous portfolio using application/behaviourial score cards and other performance indicators, determined 
statistically.  
 

(d) Measurement of ECL  
The assessment of credit risk and estimation of ECL are unbiased and probability weighted. It incorporates all 
information that is relevant including information about past events, current conditions and reasonable forecasts 
of future events and economic conditions at the reporting date. In addition, the estimation of ECL takes into 
account the time value of money. Forward looking economic scenarios determined with reference to external 
forecasts of economic parameters that have demonstrated a linkage to the performance of our portfolios over a 
period of time have been applied to determine impact of macro economic factors.  
 
Measurement of expected credit losses are based on 3 main parameters: 
 

 Probability of default (PD): 
It is defined as the probability of whether borrowers will default on their obligations in future. Since the 
company don’t have any history of past losses therefore it was not adequate enough to create our own internal 
model through which actual defaults for each grade could be estimated. Hence, the default study published by 
one of the recognised rating agency is used for estimating the PDs for each range grade. 
 

 Loss given default (LGD):  
It is the magnitude of the likely loss, if there is a default. The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD 
given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value. 
The default study published by one of the recognised rating agency is used for estimating the LGD for secured 
and unsecured loans. 

 
 Exposure at default (EAD):  

EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest 
from the Balance Sheet date to the date of default together with any expected drawdowns of committed 
facilities. 

 
Write offs – The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written-off (either partially or in full) to the 
extent that there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is 
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income 
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off and when there is no 
reasonable expectation of recovery from the collaterals held. However, financial assets that are written-off 
could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery 
of amounts due. 
 
The Company has calculated ECL using three main components: a probability of default (PD), a loss given 
default (LGD) and the exposure at default (EAD). ECL is calculated by multiplying the PD, LGD and EAD and 
adjusted for time value of money using a rate which is a reasonable approximation of EIR.  
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 Determination of PD is covered above for each stages of ECL.  
 EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and 

interest from the Balance Sheet date to the date of default together with any expected drawdowns of 
committed facilities.  

 LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among 
other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the 
time value of money.  
 

(ii) Financial liabilities  
 
Financial liabilities include liabilities that represent a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another 
financial asset to another entity, or a contract that may or will be settled in the entities own equity 
instruments. Few examples of financial liabilities are trade payables, debt securities and other borrowings 
and subordinated debts.  
 
Initial measurement  
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net 
of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other 
payables, debt securities and other borrowings.  
 
Subsequent measurement  
After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR. 
Any gains or losses arising on derecognition of liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  
 
Derecognition  
The Company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled or expired.  
 

(iii) Offsetting of financial instruments  
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet only 
if there is an enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts with an intention to settle on a net 
basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
 

2.16 Fair value measurements 
 
The Company measures its qualifying financial instruments at fair value on each Balance Sheet date.  
 
Fair value is the price that would be received against sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place in the accessible principal 
market or the most advantageous accessible market as applicable.  
 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.  
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy into Level I, Level II and Level III based on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole.  
 
 
For assets and liabilities that are fair valued in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based 
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period.  
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis 
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy 
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3 Cash and cash equivalents

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Cash in hand # 0.13                     0.86                        

Balances with banks 

-  in Current account 3.06                     6.13                        

Cheques in hand 6.56                     -                          

9.75                     6.99                        

# Cash Balance in hand including imprest with employees

4 Loans

( measured at amortised cost)

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Corporate loan/Inter corporate deposit's

To related parties  (refer note no. 36) 1,262.08             1,300.11                 

To others 20,318.07           21,029.96               

Trade advances 1,034.87             372.55                    

Less : Unmatured interest 127.28                19.60                      

22,487.74           22,683.02               

Loans 22,487.74           22,683.02               

Less:Impairment loss allowance 1,036.40             472.18                    

Total(A) 21,451.34           22,210.84               

(B) Out of above

(i) Secured -                      -                          

(ii) Unsecured 22,487.74           22,683.02               

Less:Impairment loss 1,036.40             472.18                    

21,451.34           22,210.84               

Total(B)=(i)+(ii) 21,451.34           22,210.84               

(C)Out of above

(I) Loans in India

(i)Public sector -                      -                          

Less:Impairment loss -                      -                          

Subtotal(i)

(ii) Others 22,487.74           22,683.02               

Less:Impairment loss 1,036.40             472.18                    

Subtotal(ii) 21,451.34           22,210.84               

(II) Loans outside india -                      -                          

Total ( C)=(I+II) 21,451.34           22,210.84               

Summary of loans by stage distribution

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

13,449.14   8,766.23     272.38        21,460.84           1,152.81     69.37                      

238.05        525.97        272.38        379.86                57.64           34.69                      

13,211.09   8,240.26     -              21,080.98           1,095.17     34.68                      

    As at31 March 2021     As at31 March 2020

Particulars

Gross carrying amount

Less:Impairment Loss

Net Carrying amount
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Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans is as follows

Particulars

Loans

 Impairment 

Loss Loans

 

Impairment Loans

 Impairment 

Loss Loans  Impairment Loss 

As at 31 March 2020 21,460.84   379.86          1,152.81     57.64          69.38           34.69                  22,683.03   472.18                    

Transfer during the year -

transfer to stage 1 -              -                          

transfer to stage 2 (7,613.42)    (468.33)         7,613.42     468.33        -              -                          

transfer to stage 3 (203.00)       (237.69)         203.00        237.69                -              -                          

(191.53)       564.22          190.00        -              76.56           -                      75.03           564.22                    

Amount written off during the year (3.75)           (190.00)       (76.56)         (270.31)       -                          

As at 31 March 2021 13,449.14   238.06          8,766.23     525.97        272.38        272.38                22,487.75   1,036.40                 

Particulars

 Loans 

 Impairment 

Loss  Loans 

 

Impairment 

Loss  Loans 

 Impairment 

Loss  Loans  Impairment Loss 

As at 01 April 2019 24,590.44   435.25          -              -              69.80           34.90                  24,660.23   470.15                    

Transfer during the year -

transfer to stage 1 -              -                          

transfer to stage 2 (1,337.41)    (23.67)           1,337.41     23.67          -              -                          

transfer to stage 3 -              -                          

(1,785.46)    (31.72)           5.40            33.97          (0.43)           (0.21)                   (1,780.49)    2.03                        

Amount written off during the year (6.73)           (190.00)       (196.73)       

As at 31 March 2020 21,460.84   379.86          1,152.81     57.64          69.38           34.69                  22,683.01   472.18                    

Details of impairment on financial instruments disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

(i) Net impairment loss allowance charge/(release) for the year 564.22                2.03                        

(ii) Amounts written off during the year 270.31                196.73                    

Impairment on loans

Add: Impairment on other assets -                      -                          

Impairment on financial instruments -                      -                          

834.53                198.76                    

As at 31 March 2020

New credit expsoures during the year. 

Net of repayments

Total

As at 31 March 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

TotalStage 2 Stage 3

New credit expsoures during the year. 

Net of repayments

Stage 1
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5 Investments

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

(At fair value through Profit & loss)

(i) Quoted 

Equity Shares 0.19                                              0.12 

Add:Fair value gain/(losses) -                                               0.07 

0.19                     0.19                        

(ii) Un-quoted 

Equity Shares 0.20                     0.20                        

Add:Fair value gain/(losses) -                      -                          

0.20                     0.20                        

Total(i+ii) 0.39                     0.39                        

Particulars

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Out of above

in India 0.39                     0.39                        

Outside India -                      -                          

0.39                     0.39                        

6 Other financial assets

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Interest accrued and due 0.86                                       1,218.65 

Interest accrued but not due 1,464.18                               1,818.76 

1,465.04             3,037.41                 

7 Current tax assets

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Advance tax & TDS 209.98                219.38                    

209.98                219.38                    

8 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Reconciliation of tax expenses and profit before tax multiplied by corporate tax rate

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Profit before tax                (156.84)                      627.04 

At corporate tax rate of 25.17% (Previous year 25.17%)                  (39.48)                      157.83 

Tax on non-deductible expenditure                  122.79                        52.93 

Tax expense                    83.31                      210.76 

Deferred tax recorded in balance sheet
As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Deferred tax liabilities:

 - Related to property, plant and equipment (0.02)                   2.33                        

Deferred tax assets:

  -Provision for ECL 260.86                118.85                    

 - Related to gratuity 7.40                     7.12                        

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net 268.28                123.64                    

Changes in deferred tax assets recorded in profit or loss

Deferred tax relates to the following:

-  Related to Property, plant  and equipments (DTL) (2.35)                   (0.36)                       

 - Related to gratuity (DTA) 0.28                     0.30                        

  -Provision for ECL (DTA) 142.01                (10.68)                     

144.64                (10.02)                     

Particulars
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9    Property, Plant and Equipment

Land Building Furniture & 
Fixtures

Office 
Equipments

Computer & 
printers Total

At cost as at 1st April 2020 16.03                      12.29                      0.10                0.23                  0.21               28.86               
Additions                      -   
Disposals*                       16.03                       12.29                  0.10                    0.23 -                                28.65 
At cost at the end of the year -                         -                         -                  -                    0.21               0.21                 

Accumulated depreciation as at the beginning of the year                             -                           1.22                  0.09                    0.10                 0.19                  1.60 
Depreciation for the period -                         0.30                        -                  0.03                  0.01                                0.34 
Disposals*                         1.52                  0.09                    0.13 -                                  1.74 
Accumulated depreciation as at the end of the year -                         -                         -                  -                    0.20               0.20                 
Net carrying amount as at the end of the year** -                         -                         -                  -                    0.01               0.01                 

 Land  Building  Furniture & 
Fixtures 

 Office 
Equipments 

 Computer & 
printers  Total 

Gross Carrying amount(Deemed cost)
At cost as at 1st April 2019                       16.03                       12.29 0.10                0.23                  0.21               28.86               
Additions -                  -                    -                 -                  
Disposals -                  -                    -                 -                  
At cost at the end of the year 16.03                      12.29                      0.10                0.23                  0.21               28.86               

Accumulated depreciation as at the beginning of the year -                         0.61                        0.06                0.05                  0.16               0.88                 
Depreciation for the period -                         0.61                        0.03                0.05                  0.03               0.72                 
Disposals -                  -                    -                                      -   
Accumulated depreciation as at the end of the year -                         1.22                        0.09                0.10                  0.19               1.60                 
Net carrying amount as at the end of the year 16.03                      11.07                      0.01                0.13                  0.02               27.26               

**Computers are appearing at 5% carrying value (i.e. scrap value) and depreciation has been charged accordingly.

Particulars

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

 As at 31 March 2020 

*All assets consisting of Building, Furniture & Fixtures and Office Equipment’s was sold along with land in Rewari location.
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10 Other non-financial assets

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Security deposits -                      2.37                        

Balances with government authorities 4.27                     3.89                        

Other advances recoverable 0.23                     0.23                        

                     4.50                      6.49                        

11 Payables

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

(I) Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                      -                          

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises -                      -                          

(II) Other payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                      -                          

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3.26                     4.72                        

3.26                     4.72                        

Disclosure relating to Micro, small and medium enterprises (MSME) :

-                      -                          

-                      -                          

-                      -                          

-                      -                          

-                      -                          

-                      -                          

12 Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

(A) In India

(At amortised cost)

Inter corporate deposits             16,240.82                 17,819.48 

Outside India  -  - 

16,240.82           17,819.48               

(B)Out of above

Secured  -  - 

Unsecured

From related parties

Inter corporate deposits (refer note no. 36 ) 4,864.66             95.46                      

From others

Inter corporate deposits 11,376.16           17,724.02               

 16,240.82           17,819.48               

13 Other financial liabilities

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 2,646.56                               2,768.54 

2,646.56             2,768.54                 

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year

(b) The amount of interest paid under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

("MSMED Act"), along with the amounts of the payment made beyond the appointed day during the year.

(c )The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid 

but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED 

Act.

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a 

deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act

* There is no micro, small and medium Enterprises, to whom the company owes dues which are outstadnding 

for more than 45 days during the year.  This information  as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small 

and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been 

identified on the basis of information available with the company.
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14 Provisions

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Provision for employee benefit

For gratuity 29.40                  28.30                      

29.40                  28.30                      

15 Other non-financial liabilities

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Statutory dues 138.81                                     215.71 

Expenses payable 26.75                  23.87                      

Advance from party -                      354.00                    

165.56                593.58                    

16 Equity Share capital

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

Authorised share capital 

110,00,000  equity shares  face value of Rs. 10/- each 1,100.00             1,100.00                 

(Previous year 110,00,000 equity shares)

Issued , subscribed & paid up capital

108,80,000 equity shares of face value Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 1,088.00             1,088.00                 

(Previous year 108,80,000 equity shares)

1,088.00             1,088.00                 

a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period

 No. of 

shares Amount

 No. of 

shares Amount

10880000                    1,088 10880000 1,088                      

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

c) The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

 No. of 

shares (%)

 No. of 

shares (%)

2503982 23.01% 2503982 23.01%

1334835 12.27% 1334835 12.27%

3838817 35.28% 3838817 35.28%

At the commencement and at the end of the year

The Company has only one class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs.10 per share. All shares rank pari passu with respect to dividend, voting rights and other 

terms. Each shareholder is eligible to one vote per share. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of  Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. The repayment of equity share capital  in the event of liquidation and buy back of shares are 

possible subject to prevalent regulations. In the event of liquidation, normally the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company 

after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Particulars

 As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2021

Name of shareholder

Kuldeep Singh Solanki

Rudra Sen Sindhu

Total

As at 31 March 2020As at 31 March 2021
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17 Other equity

As at

31 March 2021

As at

31 March 2020

General reserve

Opening Balance 71.92                  71.92                      

Add : Transfer during the year

Total 71.92                  71.92                      

Statutory Reserve under Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934

Balance as per last year 839.94        758.69        

Add :  Transferred from profit and loss account -              839.94                81.25           839.94                    

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss account

Balance as per last year 2,017.77     1,700.01     

Add : Profit for the year (93.55)         399.04        

1,924.22     2,099.05     

 

Transfer to reserve fund  (Pursuant to RBI norms) -              81.25           

Demand/(excess) provision of income tax for earlier years 0.54             1,923.69             0.01             2,017.77                 

Securities Premium

Opening Balance 400.15        400.15        

Add : Transfer during the year -              400.15                -              400.15                    

Total reserves and surplus 3,235.69             3,329.78                 

Notes:

i)Statutory Reserve under Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934:

ii)Securities premium:

iii)General reserve:

iv)Retained earnings:

The Company created a reserve pursuant to section 45 IC the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 by transferring amount not less than twenty per cent of its net profit 

every year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and before any dividend is declared.

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Account. In case of equity-settled share based payment 

transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and nominal value of share is accounted as securities premium account. The account is utilised in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage in accordance with 

applicable regulations. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general 

reserve has been withdrawn.

However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribution to shareholders.
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18 Revenue from operations
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020
Interest income
Interest on loans  2,078.63                  3,401.86                   

2,078.63                  3,401.86                   

19 Other income
 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020 

Sale of scrap 1.18                         0.91                          
Credit balance written off 21.20                       -                           
Interest on Income Tax Refund 3.43                         6.45                          
Gain on Sale of Land & Building 378.08                     -                           
Net gain on fair value changes -                           0.07                          

403.89                     7.43                          

 
20 Finance cost

 For the year ended 
31 March 2021 

 For the year ended 
31 March 2020 

Interest on borrowings 1,683.94                  2,467.32                   

1,683.94                  2,467.32                   

21 Impairment of financial instruments 

-                                       834.53 -                                           198.76 

22 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020
Finished & semi finished goods
A. Opening stock   
Finished goods -                 0.03                   
Semi-finished goods -                 -                     

-                 0.03                   
Add : purchased during the year -                 -                     

-                 0.03                   
B. Less : Closing stock
Finished goods -                 -                     

-                 -                     
-                           0.03                          

(Increase)/Decrease in stocks                              -                             0.03 

For the year ended 31 March 2020

On Loans (refer note no.40)

On Financial 
instruments 

measured at fair 
value through 

OCI

On Financial 
instruments measured at 

Amortised Cost

On Financial 
instruments 

measured at fair 
value through OCI

On Financial 
instruments measured at 

Amortised Cost

-                 834.53                     -                     198.76                      

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars
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23 Employee benefits  expense
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Salary, wages and other benefits* 57.22                       55.63                        
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note no.27) 3.82                         3.99                          
Staff welfare expenses 0.14                         0.27                          
Provision for gratuity 1.11                         2.76                          

62.29                       62.65                        
*Salary includes Director remuneration of Rs. Nil  ( previous year Rs. Nil ) 

24 Depreciation and amortization
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Deprecation and amortization 0.34                         0.71                          
0.34                         0.71                          

25 Other expenses
 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020 

Advertisement expenses 1.04                         0.63                          
Repairs & maintenance-Office 0.30                         0.80                          
Travelling & conveyance 2.14                         1.76                          
Rates fees & taxes 6.01                         5.58                          
General expenses 0.77                         1.38                          
Bank Charges 0.01                         0.04                          
Security expenses 3.92                         7.84                          
Electricity & water charges 2.02                         3.04                          
Donation -                           0.05                          
Legal & professional charges 16.08                       10.77                        
Newspaper & periodicals 0.02                         0.02                          
Auditor's remuneration (refer note no 33 ) 3.41                         3.39                          
AGM expenses -                           0.39                          
Printing & stationery 0.48                         1.97                          
Postage & courier -                           1.38                          
Telephone expenses 0.22                         0.39                          
Rent paid -                           0.60                          
Festival expenses -                           0.19                          
Sundry balance written Off -                           1.44                          
Sitting Fees 2.70                         -                           
Interest on late payment of TDS 5.94                         -                           
CSR expense (refer note no.26) 13.20                       11.14                        

58.26                       52.78                        
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26 Disclosure pertaining to Corporate Social Responsibility expenses

In cash Yet to be paid 
in cash

For the year 
ended 

31st March 
2021

In cash Yet to be paid in 
cash

For the year ended 
31st March 2020

Amount spent during the year
 - Contribution to Trust registered u/s 11 of Income tax act 13.20              -                   13.20              11.14          -                         11.14                     
Total 13.20              -                   13.20              11.14          -                         11.14                     

27 Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan - Provident Fund (PF) Contribution

For the year ended 
31 March 2021

For the year ended 
31 March 2020

3.82                        3.99                       

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

Interest Rate Risk: 

Longevity Risks:

Salary Risks:

The disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) -19 “Employee Benefits” is as under.

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020
I. Assumption

Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
Interest / Discount Rate 6.75% 6.65%

     Rate of increase in compensation 8.00% 8.00%
Expected average remaining service 16.67 14.80

II. Reconciliation of net defined benefit (asset)/liability
(a) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 28.30                      15.87                      
Interest Cost 1.88                        1.22                        
Current Service Cost 1.85                        1.54                        
Transfer in of liability
Past Service Cost (vested benefits)
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses (2.63)                      9.67                        
Benefits Paid -                          -                          
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 29.41                      28.30                      

Amount required to be spent by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) related activities during the year is Rs 13.17 lacs (previous year Rs 11.13 lacs)
The amount recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on CSR related activities is Rs 13.20 Lacs (previous year Rs 11.14 Lacs) (Refer note 25), 
which comprises of :

Particulars

2020-21 2019-20

The gratuity benefits under the plan are related to the employee’s last drawn salary. Consequently, any unusual rise in future salary of the employee raises the quantum
of benefit payable by the company, which results in a higher liability for the company and is therefore a plan risk for the company.

The estimates of the future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, include inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and
demand in the employment market. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield on government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated
average remaining service.

The Company makes contributions towards PF, in respect of qualifying employees. The amount recognised as an expense and included in Note 23 “Employee benefits
expense ” under the head “Contribution to Provident and Other Funds” are as under.

The employees of the Company are members of a retirement contribution plan operated by the government. The Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll cost to the retirement contribution scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the plan is to make the
specified contributions

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, under which every employee who has completed atleast five years of service gets a gratuity on departure @15 days of
last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service.
The plan is of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. The actuarial risks
associated are:

The risk of government security yields falling due to which the corresponding discount rate used for valuing liabilities falls. Such a fall in discount rate will result in a
larger value placed on the future benefit cash flows whilst computing the liability and thereby requiring higher accounting provisioning. 

Longevity risks arises when the quantum of benefits payable under the plan is based on how long the employee lives post cessation of service with the company. The
gratuity plan provides the benefit in a lump sum form and since the benefit is not payable as an annuity for the rest of the lives of the employees, there is no longevity
risks.

Particulars
Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund (refer note no.23)
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Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020
(b)  Reconciliation of present value of plan asset

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of year -                         -                         
Transfer in of Funds -                         -                         
Interest Income -                         -                         
Contributions -                         -                         
Benefits paid -                         -                         
Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income -                         -                         
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year -                         -                         

(c) Reconciliation of net defined benefit (asset)/liability
Present value of Obligation as at the end of year 29.41                      28.30                     
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of year -                         -                         
Recognised in Balance Sheet - (Asset) / Liability 29.41                      28.30                     

III. Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation
Due to Demographic Assumption -                         0.01                       
Due to Financial Assumption (2.76)                      1.65                       
Due to Experience 0.13                        8.00                       
Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Obligation (2.63)                      9.67                       

IV. Actual Return on Plan Assets
Actual Interest Income -                         -                         
Expected Interest Income -                         -                         
Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income -                         -                         

V. Net Interest
Interest Expense 1.88                        1.22                       
Interest Income -                         -                         
Net Interest Exp/(Income) 1.88                        1.22                       

VI. Expenses Recognised in Profit and Loss account under
Employee benefit expenses
Current Service Cost 1.85                        1.54                       
Net Interest Exp/(Income) 1.88                        1.22                       
Past Service Cost (vested benefits) -                         -                         
Expenses recognised in Profit and Loss Account 3.73                        2.76                       

VII. Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Obligation (2.63)                      9.67                       
Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income -                         -                         
Total Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognised in OCI (2.63)                      9.67                       

VIII. Others
Weighted average duration of defined benefit Obligation 16.67                      14.80                     

Sensitivity analysis :

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020
Change in rate of Discount Rate + 100 basis points 25.98                      24.85                     
Change in rate of Discount Rate- 100 basis points 33.44                      32.39                     
Change in rate of Salary Escalation Rate + 100 basis points 33.38                      32.32                     
Change in rate of Salary Escalation Rate - 100 basis points 25.97                      24.84                     
Change in rate of Attrition Rate + 100 basis points 29.13                      27.98                     
Change in rate of Attrition Rate - 100 basis points 29.71                      28.66                     
Change in rate of Mortality Rate + 100 basis points 29.40                      28.29                     
Change in rate of Mortality Rate - 100 basis points 29.42 28.32

Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020
Year 1 0.65                        0.71                       
Year 2 - 5 4.42                        4.36                       
Year 6-10 4.03                        3.67                       
More than 10 years 67.60                      67.40                     

Notes: 

Sensitivity analysis for significant actuarial Assumptions, showing how the defined benefit Obligation would be affected, considering increase/decrease of 100 basis 

Since the gratuity plan of the Company is not funded, and hence the disclosure related to plan assets are not applicable.
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28 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes'

(i) Tax Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars
For the year ended 31 

March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020
Current tax:
     In respect of current year 83.31                           210.76                       
     In respect of prior years -                               
Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (144.63)                        10.02                         
Total Income Tax recognised in profit or loss
     Current tax 83.31                            210.76                        
     Deferred tax (144.63)                        10.02                         
Total Income Tax recognised in profit or loss (61.32)                          220.78                       

(ii) Income Tax recognised in Other comprehensive income

Particulars
For the year ended 31 

March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020

Remeasurement of defined employee benefits (0.66)                            2.44                           
Total Income tax recognised in Other comprehensive income (0.66)                            2.44                           

(iii) Reconciliation of effective tax rate :
The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in profit or loss is as follows :

Particulars
For the year ended 31 

March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020
Profit /(Loss) before Tax (156.84)                        627.04                       
Enacted income tax rate (%)- Normal Tax 25.17% 25.17%
Enacted income tax rate (%) -Special Tax (Capital Gain) 22.88% -                             
Income tax expense calculated at applicable income tax rate (39.48)                          157.83                       

Expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes 215.23                         53.72                         
Dividend income exempt from income tax -                             
Deductions available under income tax (163.20)                        (0.79)                          
Effect of differential tax rate 70.76                           -                             
Adjustment against b/f losses -                               -                             
Income tax for earlier year -                               -                             
Income Tax expense recognised in profit and loss 83.31                           210.76                       
Deferred Tax recognised in profit and loss (144.63)                        10.02                         
Tax recognised in profit and loss (61.32)                          220.78                       
Actual effective income tax rate (%) 39.10% 35.21%

(iv) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Particulars As at As at 
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Deferred Tax Asset :
Loans & Advances (EIR Adjustment and ECL Provision) 260.86                         118.85                       
Provisions for gratuity 7.40                             7.12                           
Deferred Tax Liability:
Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets (0.02)                            2.33                           
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 268.28                         123.66                       

(v) Movement in temporary differences

Particulars
For the year ended 31 

March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020
Credit / (Charge) in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period 
Loans & Advances 142.01                         (10.68)                        
Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets (2.35)                            (0.36)                          
Provisions 0.94                             0.31                           
Total (a) 145.30                         (10.01)                        
Credit / (Charge) in the other comprehensive income during the period
Provisions - employee benefits (0.66)                            2.44                           
Total (b) (0.66)                            2.44                           
Net deferred income tax asset at the beginning (c) 123.64                         131.22                       
Net deferred tax asset/(Liabilities) at the end of the period (d) = (a) + (b) + (c) 268.28                         123.64                       

Deferred tax related to items recognised in Other comprehensive income during the year:

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax 
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29     Maturity Analysis of Assets & Liabilities

Within 12 Months After 12 months Total Within 12 Months After 12 months Total
Assets
Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents 9.75                           -                              9.75                             6.99                             -                               6.99                           
Bank balances other than Cash & cash equivalents -                             -                              -                               -                              -                               -                             
Receivables -                             
 - Trade Receivables -                             -                               -                              -                               -                             
 - Other Receivables -                             -                               -                              -                               -                             
Loans 21,429.01                  22.33                          21,451.34                    22,195.92                   14.92                           22,210.83                  
Investments 0.39                           -                              0.39                             0.39                             0.39                           
Other financial assets 1,465.04                    -                              1,465.04                      3,037.41                     -                               3,037.41                    
Non-financial Assets
Current tax assets(net) 209.98                       -                              209.98                         -                              219.38                         219.38                       
Deferred tax asset (net) -                             268.28                        268.28                         -                              123.64                         123.64                       
Property, plant and equipment -                             0.01                            0.01                             -                              27.26                           27.26                         
Other non-financial assets 4.50                           -                              4.50                             -                              6.49                             6.49                           
Total Assets 23,118.67                  290.62                        23,409.29                    25,240.71                   391.70                         25,632.40                  

LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Payables
(i)Trade Payables 3.26                           -                              3.26                             4.72                             -                               4.72                           
(ii)Other Payables -                             -                              -                               -                              -                               -                             
Borrowings 16,240.82                  -                              16,240.82                    17,819.48                   -                               17,819.48                  
Other financial liabilities 2,646.56                    2,646.56                      2,768.54                     -                               2,768.54                    
Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions -                             29.40                          29.40                           -                              28.30                           28.30                         
Other non-financial liabilities 165.56                       -                              165.56                         -                              593.58                         593.58                       
Total Liabilities 19,056.20                  29.40                          19,085.60                    20,592.75                   621.89                         21,214.64                  
Net 4,062.47                    261.22                        4,323.69                      4,647.96                     (230.19)                        4,417.77                    

As at As at 
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
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30 Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from its business operations:

i) Credit risk

a) Maximum exposure to the Credit risk
This table below shows the Company’s maximum exposure to the credit risk. 

Particulars
As at

31 March 2021
As at

31 March 2020
Financial Assets at amortised cost - Loans & Advances (Gross) 22,487.74               22,683.02               
Less : Impairment loss allowances 1,036.40                 472.18                    
Financial Assets at amortised cost - Loans & Advances (Net) 21,451.34               22,210.83               
Trade receivables -                          -                          
Total 21,451.34               22,210.83               

b) Credit quality analysis

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

Calculation of expected credit losses

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Particulars
As at

31 March 2021
As at

31 March 2020
Gross Stage 1 (DPD< 30 days) Performing asset and 12 monthh ECL 13,449.14               21,460.84               
Less : Impairment loss allowance 238.06                    379.86                    
Net Stage 1 Assets 13,211.08               21,080.98               
ECL Prov. Coverage 1.80% 1.80%

Gross Stage 2 (30>DPD< 90 days) Under performing assets inccrease in credit risk and Lifetime ECL 8,766.23                 1,152.81                 
Less : Impairment loss allowance 525.97                    57.64                      
Net Stage 2 Assets 8,240.26                 1,095.17                 
ECL Prov. Coverage 6.38% 5.26%

Gross Stage 3 (DPD>90) Non-performing assets  credit impaired and lifetime ECL 272.38                    69.38                      
Less : Impairment loss allowance 272.38                    34.69                      
Net Stage 3 Assets -                          34.69                      
ECL Prov. Coverage 0% 100%

Total Loans & Advances 22,487.75               22,683.02               
Less : Impairment loss allowance 1,036.40                 472.18                    
Net Loans & Advances 21,451.35               22,210.84               
ECL Provision Coverage 4.83% 2.13%

Credit impairment charge to the income statement

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March 2021
For the year ended 

31 March 2020
New and increased provisions (incl. write off) 834.53                    198.76                    
Write-backs of specific provisions -                          -                          
Recoveries of specific provisions -                          -                          
Total charge to the income statement 834.53                    198.76                    

The key elements in calculation of ECL are as follows:
PD - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility
has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. 

EAD - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including
repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, accrued interest from missed payments and loan
commitments.

LGD - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The LGD is determined based on
valuation of collaterals and other relevant factors.

For PD the Company has relied upon the PD data from industry benchmarks and external rating agencies. For Loss Given Default (LGD) the Company has relied on internal and
external information.

When determining whether the risk of default has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company considers the DPD status of the loans. Credit risk is deemed to have
increased significantly when an asset is more than 30 days past due (DPD) and other qualitative  internal or external factors demonstrating credit or liquidity risk.

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The board of directors has constituted the 
risk management committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Company’s risk management commiee oversees how 
management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced 
by the Company.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and 
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty fails to meet an obligation under a contract. Lending activities account for most of the Company’s credit risk. Other
sources of credit risk also exist in loans and transaction settlements. Credit risk is measured as the amount that could be lost if a customer or counterparty fails to make repayments. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in case of all the financial instruments is restricted to their respective carrying amount.
Credit Risk is monitored through stringent credit appraisal, counter party limits ands internal risk ranges of the borrowers. Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of
the ability of all the customers and counterparties to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing lending limits where appropriate.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on that date to identify expected losses on account of time value of money and
credit risk. The credit quality of Loans and advances measured at amortised cost is primarily assessed by the Days Past Due (DPD) status and other qualitative factors leading to
increase in credit risk.

In assessing the impairment of financial assets under the expected credit loss model, the Company defines default when a loan obligation is overdue for more than 90 days and credit 
impaired.
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c) Movement in Gross Exposures and credit impairment for loans and advances

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance as at April 1, 2019 24,590.44            -                     69.80             24,660.23             435.25             -                  34.90             470.15            
Changes due to financial assets recognised in opening balance that have: 
- Transferred to 12 month ECL -                        -                  
- Transferred to lifetime ECL -significant increase in credit risk -                        -                  
- Transferred to lifetime ECL credit – impaired (1,337.41)             1,337.41             -                 -                        (23.67)              23.67              -                 -                  
Increase due to financial assets originated
Decrease due to loans derecognised on full payment
Net remeasurement (Due to recovery on regular basis changes in rating, changes in security 
value etc.) (1,785.46)             5.40                    (0.43)              (1,780.49)              (31.72)              33.97              (0.21)              2.03                
Amounts written off during the year (6.73)                    (190.00)              -                 (196.73)                 -                   -                  -                 -                  
Balance as at March 31, 2020 21,460.84            1,152.81             69.38             22,683.01             379.86             57.64              34.69             472.18            
Changes due to financial assets recognised in opening balance that have: 
- Transferred to 12 month ECL
- Transferred to lifetime ECL -significant increase in credit risk
- Transferred to lifetime ECL credit – impaired (7,816.42)             7,613.42             203.00           -                        (706.02)            468.33            237.69           -                  
Increase due to financial assets originated
Decrease due to loans derecognised on full payment
Net remeasurement (Due to recovery on regular basis changes in rating, changes in security 
value etc.) (191.53)                190.00                76.56             75.03                    564.22             -                  -                 564.22            
Amounts written off during the year (3.75)                    (190.00)              (76.56)            (270.31)                 -                  

Balance as at March 31, 2021 13,449.14            8,766.23             272.38           22,487.75             238.06             525.97            272.38           1,036.40         

The Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of Financial Assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI. Company follows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality
since initial recognition. Please refer to the accounting policy for details.

Movement in Gross Exposure to Loans & Advances Movement in ECL
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ii) Liquidity Risk

As at 
31 March 2021 Total Upto 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years

Borrowings (Includes Interest accrued but not due) 16,240.82             16,240.82             -                     -                     -                         
Trade and Other Payables 3.26                       3.26                       -                     -                     -                         
Other Financial Liabilities 2,646.56                2,646.56                -                     -                     -                         

18,890.64             18,890.64             -                     -                     -                        

As at 
31 March 2020 Total Upto 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years

Borrowings (Includes Interest accrued but not due) 17,819.48             17,819.48             -                     -                     -                         
Trade and Other Payables 4.72                       4.72                       -                     -                     -                         
Other Financial Liabilities 2,768.54                2,768.54                -                     -                     -                         

20,592.74             20,592.74             -                     -                     -                        

iii) Market Risk 

iv) Interest rate risk

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Borrowings that are re-priced 0.25% 0.25% 30.38                 33.34                 
Loans that are re-priced 0.25% 0.25% (30.38)                (33.34)                

Interest rate risk is managed primarily by monitoring the sensitivity of expected net interest income (‘NII’) under varying interest rate scenarios. This
monitoring is undertaken by ALCO on regular basis. The NII sensitivities shown are indicative and based on simplified scenarios.

Market Risk is the risk of financial loss arising on account of changes/fluctuations in market variables such as interest rates, equity prices etc. Market risk 
stems from the Company’s Loan book and balance sheet management activities, the impact of changes and correlation between interest rates, credit spreads 
and volatility in bond or equity prices.
Market risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Company has exposure to interest rate risk, primarily from its lending business and related borrowings. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 

% Increase in rate Increase/(decrease) in profit

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or other financial assets. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s
reputation.
Company has in place an Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) which functions as the operational unit for managing the Balance Sheet within the
performance and risk parameters laid down by the Board and Risk Committee of the Board. ALCO reviews Asset Liability strategy and Balance Sheet
management in relation to asset and liability profile. ALCO ensures that the objectives of liquidity management are met by monitoring the gaps in the various
time buckets, deciding on the source and mix of liabilities, setting the maturity profile of the incremental assets and liabilities etc.
Key principles adopted in the Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk include:
a) Monitoring the Company’s liquidity position on a regular basis, using a combination of contractual and behavioural modelling of balance sheet and cash
flow information.
b) Maintaining a high quality liquid asset portfolio or maintaining undrawn bank lines.
c) Operating a prudent funding strategy which ensures appropriate diversification and limits maturity concentrations.

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operation.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
interest accrued till the reporting date.

Contractual cash flows

Contractual cash flows
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31  Financial Instruments

i) Accounting classification and fair values

As at 
31 March 2021 FVTPL Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents -              9.75                       9.75                                 -              -          -          -          
Bank balances other than Cash & cash 
equivalents -              

-                         -                                   
-              -          -          -          

Other receivables -              -                         -                                   -              -          -          -          
Loans & advances -              21,451.34              21,451.34                        -              -          -          -          
Investments 0.39             0.39                                 0.39            
Others financial assets -              1,465.04                1,465.04                          -              -          -          -          
Total 0.39             22,926.13              22,926.52                        0.39            -          -          -          
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables -              3.26                       3.26                                 -              -          -          -          
Borrowings -              16,240.82              16,240.82                        -              -          -          -          
Other financial liabilities -              2,646.56                2,646.56                          -              -          -          -          
Total -              18,890.64              18,890.64                        -              -          -          -          

As at 
31 March 2020 FVTPL Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents -              6.99                       6.99                                 -              -          -          -          
Bank balances other than Cash & cash 
equivalents -              -                         -                                   -              -          -          -          
Loans & advances -              22,210.84              22,210.84                        -              -          -          -          
Investments 0.39             0.39                                 0.39            
Others financial assets -              3,037.41                3,037.41                          -              -          -          -          
Total 0.39             25,255.24              25,255.63                        0.39            -          -          -          
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables -              4.72                       4.72                                 -              -          -          -          
Borrowings -              17,819.48              17,819.48                        -              -          -          -          
Other financial liabilities -              2,768.54                2,768.54                          -              -          -          -          
Total -              20,592.74              20,592.74                        -              -          -          -          

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments (excluding investment in subsidiaries), including their levels in
the fair value hierarchy. The company has disclosed financial instruments not measured at fair value at carrying values because their carrying amounts
are a reasonable approximation of the fair values.

Carrying Amount Fair value hierarchy

Carrying Amount Fair value hierarchy
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32 Disclosure Pursuant to RBI Notification no RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 (refer note no.40)

Asset Classification as per RBI 
Norms

Asset 
classification 

as per Ind 
AS 109

Gross Carrying 
Amount as per 

Ind AS

Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as 

required under Ind 
AS 109

Net Carrying 
Amount

Provisions 
required as 
per IRACP 

norms

Difference 
between Ind AS 
109 provisions 

and IRACP 
norms

1 2 3 4 (5=3-4) 6 (7=4-6)
Performing assets

Stage 1 13,449.14              238.05                      13,211.09        33.62             204.43                
Stage 2 8,766.23                525.97                      8,240.26           21.92             504.05                

Subtotal 22,215.37              764.02                      21,451.35        55.54             708.48                

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 -                         -                           -                   -                 -                     
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 -                         -                           -                   -                     
1 to 3 years Stage 3 -                         -                           -                   -                     
More than 3 years Stage 3 232.56                   232.56                      -                   232.56           -                     
Subtotal for doubtful 232.56                   232.56                      -                   232.56           -                     

Loss Stage 3 39.82                     39.82                        -                   39.82             -                     
Subtotal for NPA 272.38                   272.38                      -                   272.38           -                     

Stage 1 -                         -                           -                   -                 -                     

Stage 2 -                         -                           -                   -                 -                     

Stage 3 -                         -                           -                   -                 -                     
Subtotal -                         -                           -                   -                 -                     

Stage 1 13,449.14              238.05                      13,211.09        33.62             204.43                
Stage 2 8,766.23                525.97                      8,240.26           21.92             504.05                
Stage 3 272.38                   272.38                      -                   272.38           -                     
Total 22,487.75              1,036.40                  21,451.35        327.92           708.48                

Standard

Other items such as guarantees, loan
commitments, etc. which are in the
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered
under current Income Recognition,
Asset Classification and Provisioning
(IRACP) norms

Total
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33. Auditor’s Remuneration: 

 
Particulars                       2020-21                                        2019-20 

Statutory audit fee  3.41 3.39 
Total 3.41 3.39 

 
34.        Contingent Liability  -  Rs. Nil  (previous year – Nil)  

There were no Contingent liabilities and commitment which would impact the financial position of the company. 
 

35. Segment information  
The Company is an NBFC registered with Reserve Bank of India and is in the business of providing credit. As such 
there are no separate reportable segments as per the Accounting Standards (Ind AS-108) –‘Operating Segment 
‘specified under section 133 of the companies Act 2013. Since the business operations of the Company are 
concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the domestic segment and therefore there is no 
reportable geographic segment. 
 

36. As per the Ind AS-24 “Related party disclosures”, disclosure regarding related party as defined, are given below : 
 
a) Enterprises where control Exist  
 Subsidiaries : Nil 
 Other entities under control of company : 

 
Nil 

b) 
 

Other related party with whom the company had 
transactions, etc.  

 

   
 i) Others :  
 a) Kapil Construction Private Limited  

b) Indus Portfolio Private Limited 
c) Mittersen Agro Farms Private Limited  
d) ACB India Limited 
e) Kartikay  Exploration And Mining Services 

Private Limited 
f) Sainik Automobile 
g) Indus Automobile Private Limited 

Directors’ Shareholding 
Directors’ Shareholding 
Directors’ Shareholding 
Directors’ Shareholding 
Directors’ Relative Interested 
 
Directors’ Relative Interested 
Directors’ Relative Interested 

 h) Samai Singh  
i) Nishi Sabharwal  
j) Ramesh Shah 
k) Renuka Hooda (resigned on 12.11.2020) 

Independent director 
Independent director 
Independent director 
Independent director 

   
 ii) Key management personnel (KMP) :  
 a) Akash Shrivastava (appointed on 01.04.2019) Chief Executive Officer 
 a) Jagdish Chandra  

b) Kunal Gupta (resigned on 28.05.2019) 
c) Pooja Bansal (resigned on 04.02.2020) 

Chief Financial Officer 
Company Secretary 
Company Secretary 

 d) Renu  (appointed on 25.06.2020) Company Secretary 
 

c) Related party transactions :       
             

Transaction              Others                KMP                                 Total 
Services received    
Indus Portfolio Private Limited  0.64 - 0.64 

(0.39) (-) (0.39) 
    
Kapil Construction Private Limited  - - - 

(0.60) (-) (0.60) 
Finance provided    
ACB India Limited - - - 
 (350.00) (-) (350.00) 
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Transaction              Others                KMP                                 Total 
Akash Shrivastava - 10.00 10.00 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    
Refund of finance provided    
Kartikay Exploration  & Mining Private 
Limited 

105.00 - 105.00 
(600.00) (-) (600.00) 

    
ACB India Limited - - - 
 (350.00) (-) (350.00) 
    
Repayment of finance received    
ACB India Limited  820.00 - 820.00 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    
Sale of Fixed Assets    
Indus Automobile Private Limited  407.38 - 407.38 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    
Advance  Received    
Indus Automobile Pvt.Ltd. 34.29 - 34.29 
 (354.00) (-) (354.00) 
    
Un-matured Interest income    
Sainik Automobile 4.25 - 4.25 

(4.25) (-) (4.25) 
    
Interest income    
Kartikay Exploration And Mining Private 
Limited 

8.09 - 8.09 
    (224.28) (-)     (224.28) 

    
ACB India Limited  - - - 
 (1.44) (-) (1.44) 
    
Akash Shrivastava - 0.35 0.35 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    
Credit balance written off    
Indus Automobiles Private Limited 21.20 - 21.20 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    
Interest paid    
Mittersen Agro Farms Private Limited 13.86 - 13.86 

(12.41) (-) (12.41) 
    
    
ACB India Limited 588.82 - 588.82 

(661.50) (-) (661.50) 
    
Indus Automobiles Private Limited - - - 
 (21.20) (-) (21.20) 
    
Salary to key managerial personnel     
Akash Shrivastava - 24.22 24.22 
 (-) (26.01) (26.01) 
    
Jagdish Chandra - 14.80 14.80 

(-) (15.21) (15.21) 
    
Kunal Gupta - - - 

(-) (0.36) (0.36) 
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Transaction              Others                KMP                                 Total 
Pooja Bansal - - - 
 (-) (1.20) (1.20) 
    
Renu - 1.20 1.20 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    
Sitting fees to directors    
Col.Samai Singh - 1.10 1.10 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    
Nishi Sabharwal - 0.40 0.40 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    
Ramesh Shah - 0.35 0.35 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    
Renuka Hooda - 0.85 0.85 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    

Figures in ( ) are of previous year 31 March 2020 
 

d) Particulars of balances as on 31st March, 2021  in respect of related party transactions :  
Transaction              Others                 KMP                                   Total 
Finance provided    
Kartikay Exploration And Mining Private 
Limited 

1262.08 - 1262.08 
(1300.11) (-) (1300.11) 

    
ACB India Limited - - - 
 (1.30) (-) (1.30) 
    
Akash Shrivastava - 10.00 10.00 
 (-) (-) (-) 
Interest accrued but not due    
Kartikay Exploration And Mining Private 
Limited 

136.05 - 136.05 
(201.85) (-) (201.85) 

    
Interest accrued and  due    
Akash Shrivastava - 0.35 0.35 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    
Finance received      
Mittersen Agro Farms Private Limited 85.46 - 85.46 

(95.46) (-) (95.46) 
    
ACB India Limited 4779.20 - 4779.20 

(4779.20) (-) (4779.20) 
    
Interest Accrued and due on borrowings    
Mittersen Agro Farms Private Limited 33.99 - 33.99 
 (11.17) (-) (11.17) 
    
ACB India Limited 319.73 - 319.73 
 (595.36) (-) (595.36) 
    
Advance  Received    
Indus Automobile Private Limited - - - 
 (373.08) (-) (373.08) 
    
Trade advances    
Sainik Automobile 44.13 - 44.13 

(40.30) (-) (40.30) 
    98
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Others   

 

 
Kapil Constructions Private Limited - - - 
 (0.54) (-) (0.54) 
    
Salary to key managerial personnel    
Akash Shrivastava - 1.24 1.24 
 (-) (1.33) (1.33) 
    
Jagdish Chandra - 1.09 1.09 
 (-) (0.88) (0.88) 
    
Renu - 0.12 0.12 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    
Sitting fees to directors    
Renuka Hooda - 0.79 0.79 
 (-) (-) (-) 
    

Figures in ( ) are of previous year 31 March 2020 
Notes: 

 Related parties defined under clause 9 of the Ind AS 24 ‘Related party disclosures’ have been identified based on 
management representations made by key managerial personnel and information available with the company. All the 
above transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis.  

 
37. Prudential Norms  of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) : 

 
a) Appropriated 20% of the net profit to “Reserve Fund”  under section 45-IC of the RBI Act.1934. – Rs.  Nil (Previous 

year Rs. 81.26 lakh)   
 

b) Balance Sheet of Non-Deposit taking  Non-Banking Financial Company  - 
(as required in terms of paragraph 13 of  Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting and Holding) Companies 
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank)  Directions, 2007)  

 

 Liabilities side : (Rs.) 
1 Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest 

accrued thereon but not paid: 
 

(a) Debentures: secured 
                           : unsecured  
 (other than falling within the meaning of public deposits*) 
(b) Deferred credits 
(c) Term loans 
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing  
(e) Commercial paper 
(f) Other loans  

* Please see Note 1 below 

Amount 
outstanding-

____________ 
Nil 
Nil 

 
Nil 
Nil 

18887.38  
Nil 
Nil 

 

Amount overdue 
________ 

Nil 
Nil 

 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

 Assets side :  
  Amount outstanding 
2 Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables [other 

than those included in (4) below] : 
(a) Secured  
(b)   Unsecured  

 
 

   -               
            22916.38 

3 
 

Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets 
counting towards AFC activities  
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 (i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors: 
(a)          Financial lease 
(b)  Operating lease  

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors: 
(a) Assets on hire  
(b) Repossessed Assets  

(iii)Hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP activities  
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed 
(b) Loans other than (a) above  

 iv) Other loan counting towards AFC activities  
(c) Loans where assets have been repossessed 
(d) Loans other than (a) above  

 
Nil 
Nil 

 
Nil 
Nil 

 
Nil 
Nil 

 
Nil 
Nil 

4 
 
 
 

Break-up of investments: 
Current investments: 

1. Quoted  
(i)  Shares:     (a)  Equity 

               (b)  Preference 
(ii) Debentures and bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual funds 
(iv) Government securities 
(v) Others (please specify) 

 
 
 

0.19 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

 2. Unquoted: 
(i)  Shares:     (a)  Equity 

               (b)  Preference 
(ii) Debentures and bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual funds 
(iv) Government securities 
(v) Others (please specify) 

Long term investments: 
1. Quoted  

(i)  Shares:     (a)  Equity 
               (b)  Preference 

(ii) Debentures and bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual funds 
(iv) Government securities 
(v) Others (please specify) 

 
0.20 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

 
 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

 2. Unquoted: 
(i)  Shares:     (a)  Equity 

               (b)  Preference 
(ii) Debentures and bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual funds 
(iv) Government securities 
(v) Others (please specify) 

 

 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

 

5 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:   
(Please see note 2 below)  

 Category Amount net of provisions   
          Secured            Unsecured                                      Total 

 1. Related parties **    
 (a)  Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil 
 (b)  Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil 
 (c)  Other related parties  Nil  1405.09 1405.09 
 2. Other than related parties Nil  21511.29 21511.29 
                              Total  Nil  22916.38 22916.38 

100



 
 

SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
Notes on the financial statement for the year ended 31  March 2021 
(All amount are in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 
 
 
 

 
7 Other information 
                  Particulars                            Amount 
 (i) Gross non-performing assets   
  (a)     Related parties  44.13 
  (b)     Other than related parties  355.19 
 (ii) Net non-performing assets   
  (a)     Related parties 19.13 
  (b)     Other than related parties 107.80 
 (iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt  Nil 

Notes: 
i) As defined in Paragraph 2(1) (xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998. 

ii) Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in the Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential 
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007. 

iii) All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets 
acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break up/fair value/NAV in respect of unquoted 
investments should be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long term or current in column (4) above. 

38. Earnings per share: 
 
The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is set out below: 

Particulars       2020-21       2019-20 

Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders  
(Rupees in lakhs) 

(95.52) 
 

406.26 
 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year for calculation of earnings per share 

1,08,80,000 1,08,80,000 

Nominal value per share (Rupees) 10 10 
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees) (0.88) 3.73 

 
39. Additional information in accordance of Companies Act, 2013. The company was discontinued its manufacturing 

operation in the Cement and Poles segment in Financial year 2012-13.  
 

a) Licensed & installed capacity and actual production in MT:  Nil   (previous year- Nil) 
 

b) Quantitative detail of consumption of raw materials and packing material : Nil   (previous year- Nil) 
 

c) Quantitative Detail of Finished Goods:   
 

Particulars 
Opening Stock Closing Stock 

Quantity(Nos) Amount Quantity(Nos) Amount 
Cr.Yr. Pr.Yr. Cr.Yr Pr.Yr. Cr.Yr. Pr.Yr Cr.Yr. Pr.Yr. 

Poles  - 2 - 0.03 - - - - 
 

d) Sales: 
Particulars               Quantity(Nos)                          Amount 
 Cr.Yr Pr.Yr.      Cr.Yr Pr.Yr. 
Poles Nil Nil Nil Nil 

6 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both 
quoted and unquoted): 
(Please see note 3 below) 

 Category Market Value / Break up or 
fair value or NAV 

  Book Value (Net of Provisions) 

 1. Related parties    

 (a)  Subsidiaries Nil Nil 
 (b)  Companies in the same group Nil Nil 
 (c)  Other related parties  Nil Nil 
 2. Other than related parties Nil Nil 
                              Total                Nil              Nil 
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40. In certain cases, the Company has advanced loans on which no amount has been received against the principal and interest 

accrued thereon. The same is in accordance with the loan agreements entered by the Company which provides for 
payment of interest along with principal amount or at the expiry of the said loan agreements. The Company has correctly 
followed the relevant provisions of IND-AS as well as RBI regulations, so far as they are applicable to the said loan 
agreements in respect of provisioning. The Company is confident of the recovery of the said amounts as per respective 
terms of the loan agreements and has obtained declarations and confirmations from the respective parties.  

 
41. The outbreak of COVID 19 pandemic and consequent lockdown has severely impacted business and operations of the 

Company since the last year,  In relation to COVID-19, judgments and assumptions include the extent and duration of the 
pandemic, the impacts of actions of governments and other authorities, and the responses of businesses and consumers in 
different industries. While the methodologies and assumptions applied in the impairment loss allowance calculations 
remained unchanged from those applied prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company has separately incorporated 
estimates, assumptions and judgments specific to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic based on early indicators of 
moratorium and delayed payments metrics observed along with an estimation of potential stress on probability of defaults 
and exposure at defaults. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s impairment loss 
allowance on assets and future results will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and management 
has considered various internal and external information available up to the date of approval of financial results in 
assessing the impact of COVID-19 pandemic in the financial results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2021.  
Management will also continue to monitor changes in future economic conditions. The eventual outcome of the impact of 
COVID-19 may be different from that estimated as on the date of approval of these financial results.. 
 

42. The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make them 
comparable. 
 

43. The Financial Statements have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at its 
meeting held on  30 June 2021. 

 
44. There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements. 
 
 
As per our report of even date   On behalf of the board of Directors   
For NAGAR GOEL & CHAWLA   For SAINIK FINANCE & INDUSTRIES LTD.  
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 009933N 
 
 
 
Karan Sabberwal      Rudra Sen Sindhu     Kuldeep Singh Solanki 
Partner                        Director              Director 
Membership No. : 523373                 DIN-00006999      DIN-00009212 
 
    
 
      Akash Shrivastava  Renu 
      Chief Executive Officer  Company Secretary 
       PAN- BAYPS2407Q  PAN-BUPPR8662B   
               

 

 

Jagdish Chandra 
Place: New Delhi                  Chief Financial Officer    
Dated: 30 June 2021    PAN-AAJPU3255G     
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CIN: L26912DL1991PLC045449 

 
 

FORM NO. MGT-12 
 

 POLLING PAPER  
[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
Name of the Company : M/s Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 
 
Registered office         :  129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road, Punjabi Bagh, New  Delhi -110035 

  

 
 

BALLOT PAPER 
 

No. 
 

Particulars Details 

1 Name of the first named shareholder (in block letters) 
 

 

2 Postal Address 
 
 

 

3 Registered folio no./ *Client ID no. (Applicable to investors 
holding shares in dematerialized form) 
 

 

4 Class of shares 
 

 

 
I hereby exercise my vote in respect of ordinary/special resolution enumerated below by recording my assent / dissent to 
the said resolution in the following manner:  
 
No. Item No. No. of shares 

held by me 
I assent to the 
resolution 

I dissent from 
the resolution 

1. Adoption of the Annual Financial Statements of the 
Company for the Financial year ended 31st March, 2021, 
including the audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2021, the Statement of Profit & Loss, and Cash Flow 
Statement for the Financial year ended on that date and 
the reports of the Board of the Directors and Auditors 
thereon. 
 

   

2. Approval for appointment a Director in place of           
Mr.Kuldeep Singh Solanki, who retires by rotation and, 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 
 

   

3. Appointment of Mrs. Nishi Sabharwal (DIN 06963293) 
as an Independent Director of the Company for the five 
consecutive years  
 

   

4. Approval for the matter relating to entering related party 
transactions with TRN Energy Private Limited. 
 

   

 
 
 
 
Place: ……………………… 
 
Date: ……………………….        Signature of shareholder 
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